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Harrison was not honored by her bank.

17.  Ultimately, Rapid Cash filed a lawsuit in Justice Court to collect upon this debt.
The affidavit of service indicates that Harrison was served on August 8, 2009.

18. Despite leaving twenty (20) voice messages on her answering machine during
April, 2009, Harrison never returned a single call made to her attempting to collect upon her
debt. In fact, the only telephone call Rapid Cash ever received from Harrison occurred on
September 2, 2009, less than one month after service of process had purportedly been made. On
September 2, 2009, Harrison spoke with customer service representative Jessica Tripp. Harrison
advised that Rapid Cash could speak with PDL Assistance as her credit counselor in this matter.
Pursuant to Rapid Cash's standard policies and procedures, Harrison would have becn made
aware of her balance and the status of her account at this time including the pendency of the legal
action that had been filed. At no time during this conversation do Rapid Cash's records reflect
that Harrison stated that she had not been served process or didn't know about the lawsuit.

19.  Rapid Cash records reflect that wage garmishment against Harrison to collect upon

the default judgment started in August 2010. There are no entries in Rapid Cash records

4 of 5
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reflecting that Harrison contacted Rapid Cash to complain about the gamishment, a lack of
service or any other matter.
All of the foregoing are true to the best of my knowledge and this Affidavit is made

subject to the penalties of perjury.
WHEREFOR AFFIANT SAYETH FURTHER NAUGHT
Executed this day of November, 2010 at Las Vegas, Clark County, Nevada.

Randolph Charles Rhode, Jr.

CLARK COUNTY }
} ss.
STATE OF NEVADA }

This instrument was acknowledged before me on day of , 2010 by
Randolph Charles Rhode, Jr..

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me
this day of November, 2010.

NOTARY PUBLIC in and for said
Counly and State

50f5
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CLERK OF THE COURT

ORIGINAL

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
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CASANDRA HARRISON, et al.

Plaintiffs CASE NO. A-624982

vS.

DEPT. NO. XI
FMMR INVESTMENTS, INC.,

et al.

Transeript of

Defendants Proceedings

BEFORE THE HONORABLE ELIZABETH GONZALEZ, DISTRICT COURT JUDGE

STATUS CHECK RE CLASS NOTICE PRELIMINARY INJUNCTION

TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 2, 2010

APPEARANCES:

FOR THE PLAINTIFFS: DAN I. WULZ, ESQ.
JENNIFER DORSEY, ESQ.

FOR THE DEFENDANTS: MARK S. DZARNOSKI, ESQ.

DANIEL F. POLSENBERG, ESQ.

COURT RECORDER: TRANSCRIPTION BY:

JILL HAWKINS
District Court

FLORENCE HOYT
Las Vegas, Nevada 89146

Proceedings recorded by audio-visual recording, transcript
produced by transcription service.
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LAS VEGAS, NEVADA, TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 2, 2010, 9:04 A.M.
(Court was called to order)

THE CQURT: Good morning. Is there anybody who's
appearing on a pro bono basis?

That would be Harrison versus Principal Investments,
A-624982.

MR. DZARNOSKI: Good morning, Your Honor. Mark
Dzarnoski on behalf of the Rapid Cash defendants.

MR. POLSENBERG: Aand Dan Polsenberg, also, Your
Honor.

MS. DORSEY: Good morning, Your Honor. Jennifer
Dorsey and Dan Wulz on behalf of the plaintiffs.:

THE COURT: Did everybody get a copy of the
affidavit that I was handed this morning of --

MS. DORSEY: We did get that yesterday --

THE COURT: -- Mr. Gonzalez? No relation.

MS. DORSEY: -~ yesterday afternoon. But we're
going to be quick for you today here, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Okay.

MS. DORSEY: I think that we're in agreement that
what we're going to do -- the TRO hasn't actually gone into
effect yet because we've had a snafu with the Constable's
Office. Without an order basically terminating the
garnishments from you they wouldn't stop the garnishments.

So, so far we don't have any relief. So --

000391
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THE COURT: Why's that?

MR. DZARNOSKI: Your Honor, the -- I contacted the
Las Vegas Constable's Office, and their position is they have
a duly issued order from a court and that therefore they
didn't care much what I said or what my clients wanted, that
unless they had an order from the -- a court, that they would
not stop garnishments.

I spoke with counsel for the plaintiffs immediately
after that, and we figured that we couldn't go forward and
file in front of Justice Court, so we thought we thought we'd
come back to you.

THE COURT: You could. It just wouldn't be
practical.

MR. DZARNOSKI: That's correct. I do have an order,
by the way, for you to sign today. And we've also agreed to
extend the relief for two weeks, if we could, for you to set
a preliminary injunction evidentiary hearing. So there's
some --—

MS. DORSEY: Two weeks from now,

MR. DZARNOSKI: So there's some fill-in-the-blanks
here.

MS. DORSEY: Yes.

THE COURT: Okay. Let me ask a couple questions.
Does anybody feel the need to do any discovery prior to having

the preliminary injunction hearing?
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MS. DORSEY: One of the other things that we're
hopeful in doing, Your Honor, is possibly sitting down in the
next two weeks and figuring out where we're at and Rapid Cash
is at in determining if they're able to obtain informatiocon
about our class members. And we've been talking about that
and through their progress, also. So we're sort of conducting
informal discovery in that way right now.

THE COURT: Here is my problem, and it is a problem
that I face because of the nature of the cases assigned to me.
I have scheduled the CityCenter litigation for a hearing
related to whether something is in substantial compliance with
my CMO. I've already had two and a half days of hearings,
I've scheduled five more hearings on that single issue for the
week of November 15th. I can schedule you on the 19th of
November, hoping they will be able to finish this what should
be a very discrete issue in four more days.

MR, DZARNOSKI: Okay. That's fine with me, Your
Honor.

MS. DORSEY: 18th?

MR. WULZ: We'll make it work.

MS. DORSEY: We'll make it work. That works for us.

THE CQURT: And instead of the day that it's going
to remain in, I'm going to say the conclusion of the hearing
scheduled here.

MS. DORSEY: Okay.

000393
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THE COURT: Because my practice is to leave the
restraining order in practice until we conclude the hearing,
because I can only give you a day we're going to start. I
can't guess when you're goilng to finish.

MR. DZARNOSKI: May we have an expedited discovery
in case we decide to take the depositions of the plaintiffs?

THE COURT: Certainly. Why don't you tell me what
you want to do.

MR. DZARNOSKI: At this point we would probably just
limit it to depositions of the plaintiffs.

THE COURT: The class member plaintiffs?

MR, DZARNOSKI: Yes.

THE COURT: Okay. Ms. Dorsey.

MS. DORSEY: Before the hearing? Is that what the
request is?

THE COURT: Yes.

MR. DZARNOSKI: Yeah.

MS. DORSEY: On limited topics, or on the topics
related specifically to the preliminary injunction relief?

THE COURT: I usually permit it on the issues
related to the preliminary injunction because I want everybody
to be ready and nobody to argue there's a due process issue
after I've had a lengthy preliminary injunction hearing.

MR. POLSENBERG: Touche.

THE COURT: Remember who you got sitting over here.
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MR. POLSENBERG: Yeah, Mr. Due Process.

THE COURT: I was pointing to Mr. Polsenberq.

MS. DORSEY: I -- could -- I would have known that
with a blindfold, Your Honor. That's fine.

THE COURT: And, Ms. Dorsey, I'm going to leave you
as the individual in charge of coordinating with my staff
about how we're doing for the 13th.

MS. DORSEY: I will.

THE COURT: I have put you in at 9:30, because
that's probably a better time than others.

MS. DORSEY: Right.

THE COURT: Okay. 9:30. Preliminary injunction
hearing.

MR. DZARNOSKI: Would you like an update on some
other matters?

THE COURT: Anything else?

MR. DZARNOSKI: Yes, Your anor. You had asked for
some -- basically on a status check some information.

THE COURT: Yes.

MR. DZARNOSKI: I wanted to advise the Court that I
have contacted the three attorneys who did file collection
actions on behalf of Rapid Cash during 2004 to 2010, those
three being Mr. Hillin --

THE COURT: You okay?

MR. DZARNOSKI: -- excuse me -~ Mr. Hillin, Mr.
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Callister, and Lizzy Batcher. I have received a spreadsheet
from Mr. Hillin's office that has approximately 14,000 entries
on it. We're sorting through that data now. Unfortunately,
it does not include the years 2005, 2006, and part of 2007.
So we are missing probably at this point, I'm estimating,
5,000 cases that were probably sent to Mr. Hillin's office
during that time frame. He's indicated that he has some data
in his offices but it would require hiring temporary help to
input information into his computer spreadsheet.

As to Mr. Callister, I've received a spreadsheet
indicating that Mr. Callister's office had approximately
1,847 lawsuits that had been filed on behalf of -~ excuse me,
I do have a little bit of a ceold.

THE COURT: It's okay.

MR. DZARNOSKI: 1,175 of them were served by Mr.
Carol, 650 have not finished service. So those would be
reserxved. So it looks like we have a universe of somewhere in
a neighborhood of 1,175 cases out of Mr. Callister's office,
although we haven't identified that they're all default
judgments,

As to Ms. Hatchei's -=

THE COURT: Hold on a second. For Callister's
office you have 1,1757

MR. DZARNOSKI: 1,175 served.

THE COURT: By On Scene Mediations.
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MR. DZARNOSKI: Correct.

THE COURT: Okay. Thank you.

MR. DZARNOSKI: As to Ms. Hatcher, I received a
notice that -- from Ms. Hatcher's office indicating she
couldn't give me any numbers, that the files arxe in
alphabetical order and it will take temporary help in order to
go through all of her files to accumulate any data. And we
haven't determine whether to move forward with that at this
point in time.

As to Rapid Cash's records, they do not have a
records retention policy that involves destroying records,
fortunately. Those documents are all inputted into databases
and computer systems. There was at some point between 2004
and 2010 a migration of data from one computer system to
another, and we haven't confirmed that that didn't corrupt
anything as of yet. But it locks like there is a computer
database that has at least all of the customers of Rapid Cash.

The difficulty we have right now is the only place I
have seen in any of the data that identifies whether a
judgment had been issued is in a note section of a history
report, and it's amongst a whole bunch of other text. And
Rapid Cash, it has hired or i1s hiring a computer IT consultant
to determine whether or not it is possible to sort those
fields by --

THE COURT: It is possible.
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MR. DZARNOSKI: -- the word "judgment."
- THE COURT: It is possible.

MR. DZARNOSKI: Okay.

THE COURT: I know this from other cases.

MR. DZARNOSKI: Maybe it will be possible. I don't
what's entailed in it. But that's what they -- where they're
hiring somebody to do so that I can report back to you what
success they have had and what form the data may come out in.

THE COURT: Let me ask the guestion a different way.

'So the Rapid Cash records that were kept include in a note

section the entry of whether a judgment is or is not in place.

MR. DZARNOSKI: As a policy, yes.

THE COURT: Right.

MR. DZARNOSKI: I can't tell you 100 percent right
now.

THE COURT: Right. That's the goal.

MR. DZARNOSKI: Yes.

THE COURT: Does the Rapid Cash information for each
customer include who served the summons?

MR. DZARNOSKI: No. It shows the summons was
served, but it is —-

THE COURT: Not by whom.

MR. DZARNOSKI: It is my information that the sole
person who -- or sole entities that did serve during the

relevant time frame is On Scene Mediation.
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THE COURT: Okay. So we're just going to make the
assumption at this point that all of them that have a judgment
were served by On Scene Mediation --

MR. DZARNOSKI: Correct, Your Honor.

THE COURT: -- except for those Mr. Callister has
that hadn’t been served yet.

MR. DZARNOSKI: Correct. And there are 1,000 -- out
of the 14,000 entries for Mr. Hillin, there's something in the
neighborhood of 1400 entries where On Scene Mediations
reported that they could not effectuate service and as a
result those cases were dismissed for non service. There's an
additional 1,700-and some cases that were pending service that
had not yet been made. Sc there's a large group, maybe 20-
some percent of the 14,000 that are entered in the Hillin
files that have not been served, some of them have been
dismissed for non service, and some of them will be out for
re-service.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. DZARNOSKI: We have alsc contacted an entity
called Russ Cohsulting that are apparently settlement or class

action administrators regarding sending out of notices. It's

-our position that because of the breadth of the notices that

we are being asked to send out to all Rapid Cash customers who
were purportedly served by Mr. Carol who would not have

complaints, we'd like to protect the integrity of that list
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and not turn it over to the plaintiffs in order to basically
do whatever they want with the Rapid Cash customer list.
Ultimately in a case management order what we would like to
see happen is either a special master appointed and/or a class
action administrater under the authority of the Court to
handle the mailings.

THE COURT: 1I'm happy to consider that on an
appropriately noticed motion. It doesn't have to be noticed
in the normal course, because some of the things we're dealing
with are rather urgent.

MR. DZARNOSKI: Very good.

THE COURT: But that is certainly something I will
considexr as part of the discussion. And, remember, our class
notice needs to have two boxes, one, do you claim that you
weren't served, and, two, do you opt out of this class.
Because first they've got to tell me whether they claim they
weren't served to be part of the class, and the only one who
knows that is them.

MR. DZARNOSKI: Actually opt-in as you have made the
order box to say they --

THE COURT: Well, it's essentially an opt-in because
they got two boxes, but then once I know whether they're in
the class, then they have to opt out. But I can't —-- there's
no way for me to know who claims they weren't served.

MR. DZARNOSKI: Right. And so far the -- just to

11
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give you an idea of the cost, the cost was estimated at
$21,000 for a two-page letter, an opt-in form, and a return
envelope, and I'm sure our package will end up being larger.
Ultimately my clients would agree to pay this if we can get a
special master or administrator.

Finally, you had asked for any further information
regarding the procedure to be followed here as an alternative
to an opt-in class. We still maintain, believe that an opt-in
class is not --

THE COURT: Remember I said it was essentially an
opt—-in class because they've got to check as to whether they
claim they were served.

'MR. DZARNOSKI: Our alternative that we are
proposing is that, similar to -- well, first of all, you
decertify the class, declare this complex litigation, and
then, similar to like Southwest Exchange and some other cases
you have had, you have the plaintiffs end up filing a master
complaint in this matter and that as part of the CMO and the
notice that is going out we provide the individuals the right
to opt to basically join the action by filing a simple
joinder. I don't know if you have the authority to waive
appearance fees for these individuals, because obviously that
would be a stumbling block. But that's the procedure that we
believe would be more effective and basically accomplish

everything the Court wanted.
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THE COURT: And that's something also you might want
to put in a written motion, probably as a motion to decertify
the class, because I can't do that on the fly.

MR. DZARNOSKI: And finally, Your Honor, we
still don't have an order yet on the arbitration motion that
you denied for us. And we would like to get an arbitration
ordexr --

THE COURT: Did you submit it to me?

MS. DORSEY: I don't think we've submitted it yet.
We'll get it to you, Your Henor, later today.

THE COURT: Will you please send it to them for them
to review and comment.

MS. DORSEY: Absolutely.

THE COURT: Thank you.

MR. DZARNOSKI: Thank you.

THE COURT: Okay. So it sounds like you have some
motion practice that you're considering doing. All of the
things you're talking about, Mr. Dzarnoski, seems like good
ideas for discussion, and I assume that the plaintiffs will
have a position and we'll figure out a fair way to do things.

MR. DZARNOSKI: Thank you, Your Honor.

THE COURT: All right. Have a nice day. And if --
you think the order I just signed is going to be sufficient
for the Constable to stop the efforts of the garnishments?

MR. DZARNOSKI: I am hopeful. I drafted it that

13
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way. If it's not, I hope you throw him in jail.

THE COURT: IXIf it's —-

MR. POLSENBERG: Can I watch?

THE COURT: If it's not sufficient, can we have a
conference call between counsel in this case and counsel for
the Constable so that we can determine exactly what the
Constable needs --

MR. DZARNOSKI: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: ~- so that I can make sure that we write
it correctly so the Constable will honor what I've asked them
to do.

MR. DZARNOSKI: Yes, Your Honor.

MS. DORSEY: Thank you, Your Honor.

MR. DZARNOSKI: Thank you.

THE COURT: Thank you. Have a lovely day.

MR. POLSENBERG: Thank you, Your Honor.

THE PROCEEDINGS CONCLUDED AT $:1% A.M.

* k* % * K
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CERTIFICATION

I CERTIFY THAT THE FOREGOING IS A CORRECT TRANSCRIPT FROM THE
AUDIO-VISUAL RECORDING OF THE PROCEEDINGS IN THE ABOVE-
ENTITLED MATTER.

AFFIRMATION

I AFFIRM THAT THIS TRANSCRIPT DOES NOT CONTAIN THE SOCIAL

SECURITY OR TAX IDENTIFICATION NUMBER OF ANY PERSON OR ENTITY.

FLORENCE HOYT
Las Vegas, Nevada 89146

I-10-12

. [ |
FLORENCE FHOYT, ggﬁSCRIBER DATE
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CLERK OF THE COURT

DISTRICT COURT

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

CASANDRA HARRISON; EUGENE
VARCADOS; CONCEPCION QUINTINQ; and
MARY DUNGAN, individually and on behalf of
all persons similarly situated,

Plaintiffs,
Vvs.

PRINCIPAL INVESTMENTS, INC. d/b/a
RAPID CASH; GRANITE FINANCIAL
SERVICES, INC. d/b/a RAPID CASH; FMMR
INVESTMENTS, INC. d/b/a RAPID CASH,;
PRIME GROUP, INC. d/b/a RAPID CASH;
ADVANCE GROUP, INC. d/b/a RAPID CASH;
MAURICE CARROLL, individually and d/b/a
ON SCENE MEDIATIONS; VILISIA
COLEMAN, and DOES I through X, inclusive,

Defendants.

CASE NO. A-10-624982-B
DEPT. XI

MOTION TO DISMISS FOR LACK OF

‘SUBJECT MATTER JURISDICTION

AND FOR FAILURE TO STATE A

CLAIM UPON WHICH RELIEF MAY BE

GRANTED

Hearing Date:
Hearing Time:
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COMES NOW Defendants PRINCIPAL INVESTMENTS, INC. d/b/a RAPID CASH;

GRANITE FINANCIAL SERVICES, INC. d/b/a RAPID CASH; FMMR INVESTMENTS,

INC. d/b/a RAPID CASH; PRIME GROUP, INC. d/b/a RAPID CASH; and ADVANCE

GROUP, INC. d/b/a RAPID CASH ("Rapid Cash Defendants”) by and through their counsel

MARK S. DZARNOSKI., Esq. of Gordon Silver and moves this Court for an Order dismissing

Plaintiffs' causes of action for (1) Abuse of Process; (2) Negligent Hiring/Supervision/Retention;

(3) Negligence; (4) Civil Conspiracy; and (5) Violation of NRS Chapter 598 for lack of subject

matter jurisdiction and dismissing Plaintiffs' cause of action for Violation of NRS Chapter 604A

for failure to state a claim upon which relief may be granted. This Motion is made and based

upon NRCP 12(b)(1) and (§5), the Memorandum of Points an Authorities attached hereto, the

pleadings and other papers on file herein and such argument as the Court may permit,

DATED this /é day of December, 2010,

102593-002/1089406

MARK S. DZARNOSKI

Nevada Bar No. 3398

JEFFREY HULET

Nevada Bar No. 10621

Email: jhulet@gordonsilver.com
3960 Howard Hughes Pkwy., 9th Floor
Las Vegas, Nevada 89169

Tel: (702) 796-5555

Attorneys for Defendants

Principal Investments, Inc., d/b/a Rapid
Cash, Granite Financial Services, Inc., d/b/a
Rapid Cash, FMMR Investments, Inc., d/b/a
Rapid Cash, Prime Group, Inc., d/b/a Rapid
Cash and Advance Group, Inc., d/b/a Rapid
Cash

20f16

000407

000407



801000

Gordon Silver

21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

Attorneys At Law
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(702) 786-5555

NOTICE OF MOTION
TO: ALL PARTIES.

YOU AND EACH OF YOU WILL PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that the undersigned will
bring the above MOTION TO DISMISS FOR LACK OF SUBJECT MATTER
JURISDICTION AND FOR FAILURE TO STATE A CLAIM UPON WHICH RELIEF
MAY BE GRANTED on for hearing before the Court on the 25 dayof Jan

2011 at the hour of 9:00 am/pm in Department XI.
DATED this day of December, 2010.
GORDON SILVER

000408

GORDON SILVER

WILLIAM M. NOALL

Nevada Bar No. 3549

MARK S. DZARNOSKI
Nevada Bar No. 3398

JEFFREY HULET

Nevada Bar No. 10621

Email: jhulet@gordonsilver.com
3960 Howard Hughes Pkwy., 9th Floor
Las Vegas, Nevada 89169

Tel: (702) 796-5555

Attorneys for Defendants

Principal Investments, Inc., d/b/a Rapid
. Cash, Granite Financial Services, Inc., d/b/a
Rapid Cash, FMMR Investments, Inc., d/b/a
Rapid Cash, Prime Group, Inc., d/b/a Rapid
Cash and Advance Group, Inc., d/b/a Rapid

Cash

MEMORANUM OF POINTS AND AUTHROTIES

I
THE COURT'S SUBJECT MATTER JURISDICTION: LEGAL STANDARDS

The Nevada Constitution provides that district courts do not have original junisdiction

over actions that fall within the original jurisdiction of the justice courts. Nev. Const. art. 6, § 6.

NRS 4.370(1)(b) confers original jurisdiction upon justices' courts over civil actions for damages

for personal injury, if the damages claimed do not exceed $10,000.00. Thus, the district court has

30f16
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1 || original jurisdiction over such actions only if the plaintiff claims more than $10,000.00 in
2 || damages.

3 Federal courts apply a “legal certainty” test to determine whether a complaint satisfies the
4 || amount-in-controversy requirement of diversity jurisdiction under 28 U.S.C. § 1332, In order to
5 || dismiss a case based on lack of subject matter jurisdiction, it must appear to a legal certainty that

6 || the claim is worth less than the jurisdictional amount. See St. Pau! Indemnity Co. v. Cab Co., 303

7 || U.S. 283, 288-89, 58 S.Ct. 586, 82 L.Ed. 845 (1938); Budget Rent-A-Car Inc. v. Higashiguchi,

8 || 109 F.3d 1471, 1473 (9th Cir.1997).

9 The Nevada Supreme Court has adopted the federal courts' legal certainty test for

10 || determining the jurisdictional amount in controversy in Nevada district courts. Morrison v.

11 || Beach City LLC, 116 Nev. 34, 38, 991 P.2d 982 (2000). The district court need not accept the

12 | allegations of the complaint as true and may conduct a hearing to determine whether the
13 || potential damages in a case fall below the jurisdictional threshold, Jd. at 39.

14 In a consolidated litigation or class action context, individual plaintiff's damages claims
15 | may not be aggregated to satisfy the jurisdictional amount requirement unless the individual

16 || plaintiffs have a common and undivided interest in a claim for damages. Snyder v. Harris, 394

17 || U.S. 332, 89 S.Ct. 1053, 22 L.Ed.2d 319 (1969); See also In re Ford Motor Co./Citibank (South

18 || Dakota), N.A. 264 F.3d 952, 957 (9™ Cir., 2001). "When two or more plaintiffs, having separate

19 || and distinct demands, unite for convenience and economy in a single suit, it is essential that the

20 || demand of each be of the requisite jurisdictional amount." Troy Bank of Troy, Ind., v. G.A.

21 || Whitehead & Co., 222 U.S. 39, 40,32 S.Ct. 9, 56 L.Ed. 81 (1911)

22 When the amount in controversy depends largely on alleged punitive damages, the court

23 || “will scrutinize a claim more closely than a claim for actual damages to ensure Congress's limits

24 || on diversity jurisdiction are properly observed.” McCorkindale v. American Home Assurance

25 || Co., 909 F.Supp. 646, 655 (N.D. Towa 1995). Whether punitive damages are sufficient to meet

26 || the amount in controversy requirement is a two-part test. Wiemers v. Good Samaritan Society,

27 || 212 E.Supp. 1042, 1047 (N.D. Iowa 2002). First, punitive damages must be available as a matter

28 || of state law. Jd. Secondly, the court inquires “whether the amount of punitive damages will morte

Gordon Silver
Atlorneys At Law 4 Of 16

Nimh Floor .
3960 Howard Hughes Pkwy 102593-002/1089406

Las Vegas, Nevada 89103
(702) 796-5555

000409

000409



000410

0L1000

1 || likely than not exceed the required amount in controversy.” [d.
2 Further, as with compensatory damages, Punitive damages asserted on behalf of a

3 || putative class may not be aggregated for purposes of satisfying jurisdictional requirements for

4 || amount in controversy. In re Ford Motor Co./Citibank (South Dakota), N.A.. 264 F.3d 952, 963
5 || (9™ Cir., 2001).
6 NRCP 12(b) provides as follows:
7 {(b) How Presented. Every defense, in law or fact, to a claim for relief in any
pleading, whether a claim, counterclaim, cross-claim, or third-party claim, shall
8 be asserted in the responsive pleading thereto if one is required, except that the
following defenses may at the option of the pleader be made by motion: (1) lack
9 of jurisdiction over the subject matter, (2) lack of jurisdiction over the person, (3)
insufficiency of process, (4) insufficiency of service of process, (5) failure to state
10 a claim upon which relief can be granted, (6) failure to join a party under Rule 19.
A motion making any of these defenses shall be made before pleading if a further
11 pleading is permitted. No defense or objection is waived by being joined with one
or more other defenses or objections in a responsive pleading or motion. If a
12 pleading sets forth a claim for relief to which the adverse party is not required to
serve a responsive pleading, the adverse party may assert at the trial any defense
13 in law or fact to that claim for relief. If, on a motion asserting the defense
numbered (5) to dismiss for failure of the pleading to state a claim upon which
14 relief can be granted, matters outside the pleading are presented to and not
excluded by the court, the motion shall be treated as one for summary judgment
15 and disposed of as provided in Rule 56, and all parties shall be given reasonable
opportunity to present all material made pertinent to such a motion by Rule 56.
16
1.
17
DAMAGES ARE NOT IN EXCESS OF THE JURISDICTIONAL MINIMUM
18
A. Plaintiffs Concede Their Individual Damages are Under $10,000
19
On November 15, 2010, Defendants had the opportunity to conduct limited discovery by
20
deposing each of the named Plaintiffs except for Concepcion Quintino. These Plaintiffs
21
acknowledged that their damages were below the jurisdictional threshold.'
22
1. Eugene Varcados
23
Paragraph 94 of the Complaint sets forth the following allegation: "Rapid Cash's
24
negligent hiring, supervision and/or retention of On Scene Mediations has caused Class
25
Representatives and the Class to suffer damages in excess of ten thousand dollars." Said
26

! As to Quintino, Rapid Cash obtained a default judgment against Quintino on August 19, 2009 as follows:

27 | Judgment Amount: $625.00 Attorney Fees: $156.00 Court Costs: $81.00 Judgment Total: $862.00. A Satisfaction
of Judgment for the amount of $862.00 was filed on September 20, 2010. Thus, damages can legitimately be
28 || estimated as being less than $1,000.00.

Gardon Silver
Atorneys At Law 50f16

Ninth Flgor .
3960 HOvvlard Hughes Pkwy 102593-002/1089406

Las Vegas, Nevada 89109
(702) 796-5585

000410

000410



L 1¥000

o 3 Oy

< O

1
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

Gordon Silver
Attorneys At Law
Ninth Floor
3960 Howard Hughes Pkwy
Las Vegas. Navada £9109
{702) 796-5555

paragraph was shown to Plaintiff Varcados at his deposition and the following exchange
occurred.

Q- I'll show you. Look at paragraph 94.

A. I see that statement. That doesn't mean individually.

Q. Do you believe that you have suffered damages in excess of $10,000?7

MS. DORSEY: Object to form.

A. Me personally?

BY MR. DZARNOSKI:

Q. Yes.

Al That's not what that statement says.

Q. Well we'll leave that for other people to decide what that says. My question to you
is: Do you allege you have suffered damages in excess of $10,000?

MS. DORSEY: Object to form, calls for a legal conclusion.

A. I don't really understand the purpose of your question. That statement doesn't say
me personally. It says the class, and as far as the class is concerned, yeah, I could see where it's
possible.

BY MR. DZARNOSKI:

Q. Regardless of what you believe that statement says, I'm asking you do you believe

you have suffered damages in excess of $10,000?

MS. DORSEY: Same objection.

A. I personally have not had those kinds of damages against me personally at this
point, but as far as the possibility that that could have been the entire class, that's
understandable.
[Varcados Deposition, 40:24 -42:3 attached as Exhibit A].

On December 17, 2009, a default judgment was entered against Varcados as follows:

Judgment Amount -- §1,839.70; Attorney Fees -- $460.00; Court Costs -- $109.50; Judgment
Total -- $2,409.20. Defendant Rapid Cash's records indicate that, although gamishment

proceedings started, only $171.28 was received by Defendant from such gamishment. Clearly,

6oflaG
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| || there is no reasonable basis to conclude that Plaintiff Varcados suffered damages remotely near |
2 || the jurisdictional minimum; rather, they are more than likely less than $250.00. Further, it is
3 || Varcados' belief that the damages allegation in the Complaint involves the aggregation of all
4 | class members' damages claims.

5 2. Mary Dungan

6 Similarly, Mary Dungan was asked questions about damages she suffered in connection
7 with this matter.

8 Q. Do you recall how much money was garnished from your account or garnished

9 | from your wages?

10 A.  Ithink about $900.

11 Q. Do you believe that you are completely paid up now with respect to Rapid Cash?
12 A. Yes.

13 Q. Other than the money that was gamished out of your wages, have you lost any

14 || money because of anything Rapid Cash has done?
15 A. As far as money lost, I would say probably no, but it caused some havoc with my

16 || finances.

17 Q. How s0?
18 A. They took -- they took so much out of each paycheck that there was not
19 {| enough for -~ for bills, made it difficult to pay my bills. -

20 || [Dungan Deposition, 38:12 - 39:3 attached as Exhibit B].

21 On October 16, 2009, a default judgment was entered against Dungan as follows:
22 Judgment Amount -- $730.88; Attorney Fees --$183.00; Court Costs -- $90.00; Judgment
23 || Total -- $1,003.88. Rapid Cash records indicate that Rapid Cash received $888.88 from
24 || garnishment, substantially confirming Plaintiff's recollection and testimony that approximately i
25 || $900 was gamished. On April 21, 2010, Defendant Rapid Cash filed a satisfaction of judgment !

26 || for the entire judgment amount of $1,003.88. Thus, except for some unquantifiable amount

27 | related to causing "some havoc with [her] finances," Plaintiff Dungan's monetary damages are

28 approximately $1,000.00.

3
|
i
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1 3. Cassandra Harrison

2 The following exchange occurred during the deposition of Plaintiff Harrison:

3 Q.  Have you lost any money because of the Rapid Cash lawsuit other than

4 | the money that has been gamished from your wages?

5 A. Have I lost any money pertaining to this?

6 Q. Yes.

7 A It -- it screwed up my bank account if that's what you're talking about. Is that what

8 || youmean?
9 Q. How did it screw up your bank account?
10 A. Well, because of the way it happened, some things that I had automatically
11 | deducted, that didn't happen or part of it happened, and because it just happened so quickly, I
12 (| didn't -- you know, I couldn't make reservations about calling them and telling them what
13 || happened because it just happened so quickly. So as a result of that, some things that would
14 || come out, it didn't happen. My rent didn't happen. My car insurance didn’t happen. Believe it or
15 | not, I pay Palms Mortuary. That didn't happen either, and the gym didn't happen. You know, [

16 || can't -- those are the main things I know.

17 Q. Did you lose your car?

18 A. No, I didn't lose my car.

19 Q. Did you get evicted from your apartment?

20 A No, I didn't get evicted from my apartment.

21 Q. So you caught up and made those payments that you just talked about missing?

22 A. Angrily, if that 1s a word, yes.

23 Q. Did you have a few bad check charges coming out of the bank or anything

24 || because of

25 A. Yes, several.
26 Q. How much are those, 35 apiece?
27 A. Yes, uh-huh.
28 Q. Less than five?
Gordon Silve
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1 A. No, I had more than five because when I couldn’t make up for those items I
2 || named, that hit and it -- it kept hitting until I could get it together to try to get it settled or just

3 || wait until I had the money, which made 1t scarce because the next payday Rapid Cash hit again,

4 [ soit wasn't once a month with Rapid Cash. It was every pay period.

5 || [Harrison Deposition 31:19 - 33:11 attached as Exhibit CJ.

6 The default judgment against Plaintiff Harrison was entered on October 26, 2009 as
7 || follows: Judgment Amount -- $1,205.30; Attorney Fees -- $301.00; Court Costs -- $112.00;
8 || Judgment Total --51,618.30. A satisfaction of judgment for $1,618.30 was filed by Rapid Cash
9 || on September 20, 2010. Thus, exclusive of additional fees for the gamishment and some

10 || unspecified number of $35 charges for bounced checks which she attributes to the wrongful
11 || gamnishment, Plaintiff Harrison's damages approximate $1,600.00 or far from the required
12 || jurisdictional minimum.

13 4. Offsets

14 As set forth above, damages claimed by Plaintiffs are primarily limited to the amounts
15 || collected by Rapid Cash Defendants from gamishments obtained following entry of default

16 || judgments. A substantial component of any such "damages" includes the principal amount of the

17 || loan and the interest thereon. Yet, Plaintiffs do not deny owing the principal and interest portion

18 || of the loan. Any of their claimed "damages" would be substantially offset by the amount of the

19 | loan plus interest owed to Rapid Cash Defendants.

20 a. Yarcados Deposition

21 Q. Do you dispute the fact that you owed them the sum of $588.247? 2

22 A. [ don't dispute that fact. The class-action suit is not disputing that fact.

23 Q. So you acknowledge you owe that money?

24 A. I have never disavowed it. I have never said I didn't. That's not what this action is
25 about.

26 || [Varcados Deposition, 17:10-17 attached as Exhibit D].

27

2 In fact, the loans in default respecting Varcados were two $588.24 loans for a total of § 1,176.48. As set

28 I forth above, garnishments only collected $171.28.
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b. Harrison Deposition

Q. Do you dispute that you owe -- that you borrowed the money from Rapid
Cash?

A. I borrowed the money from Rapid Cash.

Q. And you don't dispute that you owe them the money; right?

MR. WULZ: Object to form.

A. I was getting PDL to pay off my debt. They were going to handle my
business with Rapid Cash.

BY MR. DZARNOSKI:

Q. But you acknowledge you owe Rapid Cash money?

A. Well that's why [ hired them, yes.
(Harrison Deposition, 23:9-21 attached as Exhibit E].

c. Dungan Deposition
You did know you owed Rapid Cash money; right?
Yes.
You don't dispute they gave you a loan?

No.

oo PR

And you don't dispute that you didn't pay them back?
A. No.
[Dungan Deposition, 30:9-16 attached as Exhibit F).

B. Plaintiffs Fail to Adequately Plead Jurisdictional Minimum Damages

1. Abuse of Process

In paragraph 86 of the Complaint, Plaintiffs allege as follows: "Therefore, Defendants
abused the legal process to the detriment of the Class, entitling the Class to equitable and/or legal
relief, including compensatory damages." As to this claim for relief, Plaintiffs wholly fail to

allege any amount of damages suffered either by the Class Representatives individually or by the

Proposed Class Members in the aggregate.

10 0f 16
102593-002/1089406

000415

000415

000415



911000

000416

1 2. Negligent Hiring/Supervision/Retention
2 As set forth hereinbefore, paragraph 94 sets forth the claim that the "Class

3 Il Representatives and the Class" suffered damages in excess of ten thousand dollars. If the Court

4 || were to read this allegation as meaning the aggregated damages of all class members exceeds
5 || $10,000 (as was done by Plaintiff Varcados), the claim is deficient as a matter of law because
6 || aggregation is not permissible. Each individual Plamtiff must independently meet the
7 || jurisdictional requirement of damage.’

8 Alternatively, if the Court were to interpret the allegation as meaning that each individual
9 || Plaintiff has suffered damages in excess of $10,000, it should conduct a hearing regarding

10 || whether this claim is made in good faith as it appears obvious that no individual Plamtiff (by
11 || their own admissions) have suffered monetary loss nearly approaching the jurisdictional
12 { threshold.

13 3. Negligence

14 Paragraph 98 of the Complaint alleges that "Defendants’ negligence has directly and
15 || proximately caused Class Representatives and the Class to suffer damages in an amount in

1

16 || excess of ten thousand dollars." Therefore, the same infirmities exist with respect to this claim
17 || asin the Negligent Hiring claim addressed above.

18 4. Civil Conspiracy.

19 Paragraph 103 sets forth the claimed damages in thé same fashion as paragraphs 94 and
20 || 98 addressed above. Interestingly, paragraph 102 seems to implicitly recognize that the actual
21 || damage to each class member is "nominal." ("as notice is fundamental to due process, damage,
22 | even if nominal, is inherent in being deprived of a fundamental right.")

23 Paragraph 104 contains an allegation that punitive damages are appropriate "in an amount
24 | to be determined at trial." There is no allegation that each Plaintiff is entitled 1o punitive
25 || damages in an amount in excess of ten thousand dollars which might provide some basis for

26 | Plaintiffs to assert subject matter jurisdiction. Even if Plaintiffs were to make such an allegation,

27

} This is particularly true in this case because the Court has declined to certify any class on any damages

28 || cause of action alleged by Plaintiffs.
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it would be necessary for this Court to conduct some analysis to determine whether such a claim
for punitive damages is sufficient to confer subject matter jurisdiction over this claim.

5. Violation of NRS Chapter 598

NRS Chapter 598 generally provides for a public cause of action for deceptive trade
practices. NRS 41.600, however, provides for a private cause of action by a person who is a
victim of consumer fraud and defines “consumer fraud” to include “[a] deceptive trade practice
as defined in NRS 598.0915 to 598.0925, inclusive.” See NRS 41.600(2)(d); See also Nevada
Power Co. v. Eighth Judicial Dist. Court of Nevada ex rel. County of Clark, 120 Nev. 948 at fn7,

102 P.3d 578 (2004). However, NRS 41.600(3) only provides for the relief of monetary

damages. ("If the claimant is the prevailing party, the court shall award the claimant: (a) Any
damages that the claimant has sustained; and (b) The claimant’s costs in the action and
reasonable attorney’s fees.") Thus, while equitable relief for violations of NRS 598 may
properly be sought by the district attomey or attommey general, only damages are available to a
private litigant pursuing a claim under NRS 41.600.

In paragraph 117 of the Complaint, Plaintiffs merely allege that the Class Representatives
and the Class suffered damages. No amount is specified. Plaintiffs fail to meet the jurisdictional
minimum amount required for District Court jurisdiction.

C. Claims for Equitable Relief Do Not Confer Jurisdiction Over What Are
Essentially Damages Actions -

To be sure, Plaintiffs generally allege they are entitled to equitable relief for some of their
claims (para. 86 for Abuse of Process; para. 98 for Negligence; para. 103 for Conspiracy)..
However, the equitable relief prayed for in the Complaint is as follows:

2. An injunction that Rapid Cash vacate and set aside all void default

judgments entered against the Class and, further, as a sanction for fraud upon the

Court, that Rapid Cash dismiss all cases file against the Class with prejudice.

3. All equitable relief that arises from or is implied by the facts, whether or

not specifically requested, including but not limited to disgorgement or restitution

of or imposition of a constructive trust on all funds collected under void default

judgments against the Class, and a declaration of the rights of the parties.

Regarding the Abuse of Process, Negligence, Conspiracy and Chapter 598 claims, the
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1 || imjunctive relief requested is simply not available. NRCP 60(b) provides as follows:

(b) Mistakes; Inadvertence; Excusable Neglect; Newly Discovered Evidence;
Fraud, Etc. On motion and upon such terms as are just, the court may relieve a
party or a party’s legal representative from a final judgment, order, or proceeding
for the following reasons: (1) mistake, inadvertence, surprise, or excusable
neglect; (2) newly discovered evidence which by due diligence could not have
been discovered in time to move for a new trial under Rule 59(b); (3) fraud
(whether heretofore denominated intrinsic or extrinsic), misrepresentation or other
misconduct of an adverse party; (4) the judgment is void; or, (5) the judgment has
been satisfied, released, or discharged, or a prior judgment upon which it is based
has been reversed or otherwise vacated, or it is no longer equitable that an
injunction should have prospective application. The motion shall be made within
a reasonable time, and for reasons (1), (2), and (3) not more than 6 months after
8 the proceeding was taken or the date that written notice of entry of the judgment
or order was served. A motion under this subdivision (b) does not affect the
9 finality of a judgment or suspend its operation. This rule does not limit the power
of a court to entertain an independent action to relieve a party from a judgment,
10 order, or proceeding, or to set aside a judgment for fraud upon the court. Writs of
coram nobis, coram vobis, audita querela, and bills of review and bills in the
11 nature of a bill of review, are abolished, and the procedure for obtaining any relief
from a judgment shall be by motion as prescribed in these rules or by an
12 independent action.

W N

wn

N Oy

13 || Thus, the only ways to set aside an allegedly void judgment are by motion or by independent
14 || action seeking such relief. Further, Abuse of Process, Negligence, Civil Conspiracy and/or
15 || violations of NRS Chapter 598 are not grounds for setting aside a judgment in either a motion or
16 || an independent action. Plaintiffs cannot obtain the functional equivalent of setting aside a
17 || judgment by pursuing injunctive relief based upon these claims.

18 Clearly, the gravamen of the other "equitable relief" prayed for is to return money to
19 || those members of the proposed class from whom Defendanté have collected money based upon a
20 || void judgment. However characterized, that is a request for monetary relief. To confer subject
21 || matter jurisdiction upon the District Court when the amount in controversy cannot satisfy
22 || jurisdictional requirements merely because one calls the monetary relief prayed for in the
23 || Complaint "restitution” rather than "damages" would undermine the very concepts of subject
24 || matter jurisdiction set forth in the Nevada Constitution.

25 Further, the Court implicitly seemed to recognize the damages nature of the majority of

26 || the Plaintiffs' claims during the hearing on Certification of the Class. The Court stated as

27 || follows:
28 At this time the Court is going to grant the motion to certify the class in part. Iam
Aatotyt Al Lo 13 of 16
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1 granting the motion to certify as to the injunctive and equitable issues raised in the
sixth and seventh causes of action as to all customers of Rapid Cash .....
2
[Transcript at 28:5-13 attached as Exhibit G].
3
The Court did not certify any class for a damages action. Nor did the Court indicate it
4
would consider any damages issues as part of a class action.’
5
1018
6
CLAIM FOR VIOLATION OF NRS CHAPTER 604A FAILS TO STATE A CLAIM FOR
7
RELIEF
8
Plaintiffs base their claim for violation of NRS Chapter 604A upon an alleged violation
9
of NRS 604A.415(1). [See Complaint at paragraph 107.] While Plaintiffs set forth a portion of
10
the statute in their allegation, they fail to include the entire section of said statute that they cited.
11
[n its entirety, NRS 604A.415(1) provides as follows:
12
1. If a customer defaults on a loan, the licensee may collect the debt owed to the
13 licensee only in a professional, fair and lawful manner. When collecting such a
debt, the licensee must act in accordance with and must not violate sections 803 to
14 812, inclusive, of the federal Fair Debt Collection Practices Act, as amended, 15
U.S.C. §§ 1692a to 1692j, inclusive, even if the licensee is not otherwise subject
15 to the provistons of that Act.
16 It is clear that NRS 604A.415(1) and sections 803 to 812, inclusive, of the federal Fair

17 || Debt Collection Practices Act are intended to cover and address non-judicial collection
18 || procedures used by creditors (i.e. harassment and abuse, form and time of communication,
19 | disclosure of debt to third persons, etc.)  Section 811 of the Fair Debt Collection Practices Act
20 || is the only provision dealing with judicial remedies and it is a venue provision requiring the
21 || lawsuit to be brought in the judicial district where the consumer signed the agreement or where
22 || the consumer resides. This provision is similar to NRS 604A.415(3) requiring Justice Court
23 || actions to be filed in the township where the loan agreement was signed.

24 Plaintiffs claim that the statute was violated because Defendants obtained default

25 || judgments using false affidavits of service prepared by On Scene Mediations. [Complaint at

26 | ¢ Unfortunately, the Complaint did not number the causes of action as set forth by the Court in the transcript.
It appears as if the Court intended to certify a class for the equitable claims set forth in paragraphs bearing Roman
27 | Numerals VI (Action in Equity for Fraud Upon the Court) and VII (Abuse of Process). Inasmuch as Plaintiffs bave
not submitted a written order to the Court nor has the Court issued a written order sua sponte regarding this hearing,
28 || the uncertainty set forth herein rernains.
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paragraph 108]. Once the complaint has been filed, the matter is governed by rules of judicial
process. Upon the filing of the complaint in a proper venue, it is not a collection issue covered
by NRS 604A.415(1) or sections 803 to 812 of the Fair Debt Collection Practices Act. As such,
there is no relief afforded under NRS Chapter 604A for the conduct alleged in the Complaint.
Iv.
CONCLUSION

For the above and [oregoing reasons, all claims for relief except for the Independent
Action in Equity for Fraud Upon the Court should be dismissed.

DATED this__l_[)_day of December, 2010.

GORDON SHLVER

ON SILVER®
WILLIAM M. HOXLL
Nevada Bar No. 3549
MARK S. DZARNOSKI
Nevada Bar No. 3398
JEFFREY HULET
Nevada Bar No. 10621
Email: jhulet@gordonsilver.com
3960 Howard Hughes Pkwy., 9th Floor
Las Vegas, Nevada 89169
Tel: (702) 796-5555
Attorneys for Defendants
Principal Investments, Inc., d/b/a Rapid
Cash, Granite Financial Services, Inc., d/b/a
Rapid Cash, FMMR Investments, Inc., d/b/a
Rapid Cash, Prime Group, Inc., d/b/a Rapid
Cash and Advance Group, Inc., d/b/a Rapid
Cash
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1 CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE "

2 The undersigned, an employee of Gordon Silver, hereby certifies that on the / é day of

3 | December, 2010, she served a copy of the MOTION TO DISMISS FOR LACK OF
4 || SUBJECT MATTER JURISDICTION AND FOR FAILURE TO STATE A CLAIM

5 || UPON WHICH RELIEF MAY BE GRANTED, by facsimile, and by placing said copy in an

6 | envelope, postage fully prepaid, in the U.S. Mail at Las Vegas, Nevada, said envelope addressed
7 || to:

8 || Dan L. Wuiz, Esq.
Venicia Considine, Esq.
9 Legal Aid Center of Southern Nevada, Inc.
10 800 South Eighth Street
Las Vegas, NV 89101
11 || Fax:(702)388-1642

12 || J. Randall Jones, Esq.

Jennifer C. Dorsey, Esq.

13 Kemp, Jones & Coulthard, LLP

14 || 3800 Howard Hughes Parkway, 17"™ Floor
Las Vegas, NV 89169

15 || Fax: (702) 385-6001

: QQM

18 Anna Dang, an employee 6f
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1 DISTRICT COURT ‘
2 CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
3

CASANDRA HARRISON;
4 EUGENE VARCADOS;

CONCEPCION QUINTINO; and
5 MARY DUNGAN,

individually and on
6 behalf of all persons .

similarly situated, Cenrtified Copy

Plaintiffs,

vs. Case No. A-~10-624982-B
PRINCIPAL INVESTMENTS,

10 INC. d/b/a RAPID CASH;
GRANITE FINANCIAL

11 SERVICES, INC. d/b/a
RAPID CASH; FMMR

12 INVESTMENTS, INC. d/b/a
RAPID CASH; PRIME GROQUP,

13 INC. d/b/a RAPID CASH;
ADVANCE GROUP, INC.

14 d/b/a RAPID CASH;
MAURICE CARROLL,

15 individually and d/b/a
ON SCENE MEDIATIONS;

16 VILISIA COLEMAN, and
DOES I through X,

17 inclusive,
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MR. DZARNOSKI: Would you read me my last

question and his answer.
{Record read by the court
reporter.)
BY MR. DZARNOSKI:
Q. Have you read a copy of the complaint

that's been filed on your behalf?

A, Have I read a copy of the class-action
suit?
Yes.
A. Yes.
Q. In the class-action lawsuit there is a

cause of action that is set forth for negligent
hiring, supervision and retention, and it involves
the use of On Scene Mediations to serve process for
Rapid Cash. Arxe you familiar with that?

A. I recall those names and that issue.

Q. And in paragraph 94 of the complaint
there's an allegation that you as a class
representative have suffered damages in excess of
$10,000. Did you know that?

A. I don't recall that without seeing the
document in front of me.

Q. I'll show you. Look at paragraph 94.

A. I see that statement. That doesn't mean
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1 individually.
2 Q. Do you believe that you have suffered
3 damages. in excess of $10,0007?
4 MS. DORSEY: Object to form.
5 A, Me personally?
& BY MR, D2ZARNOSKI:
7 Q. Yes.
8 A, That's not what that statement says.
9 Q. Well we'll leave that for other people to

10 decide what that says. My question to you is: Do
11 you allege you have suffered damages in excess of
12 $10, 0007

13 MS. DORSEY: Object to form, calls for a
14 legal conclusion.

15 A, I don't really understand the purpose of
16 your question. That statement doesn't say me

17 pergonally. It says the class, and as far as the
18 class is concerned, yeah, I could see where it's

19 possible.

20 BY MR. DZARNOSKI:

21 Q. Regardlegs of what you believe that

22 statement sgays, I'm asking you do you believe you
23 have suffered damages in excess of $10,0007?

24 MS. DORSEY: Same objection,

25 A. I personally have not had those kinds of
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1 damages against me personally at this point, but as'
2 far as the possibility that that could have been the
3 entire class, that's understandable.
4 BY MR. DZARNOSKI:
5 0. What damages have you suffered
6 personally?
7 MS. DORSEY: 1I'm going to object also
8 that we are getting far afield of the preliminary
9 injunction issues right now.
10 MR. WULZ: And same objections.
11 MS. DORSEY: Yes, and of course the same
12 objections as to calls for a legal conclusion.
13 MR. WULZ: That's an unfair question.
14 MS. DORSEY: Yeah, I don't think this is
15 necessary for the preliminary injunction.
16 MR. DZARNOSKI: Well, I appreciate your
17 position, but I do because you have to show a chance
18 of success on the merits of the case in order to
19 entitle you to a preliminary injunction, and whether
20 or not this gentleman has suffered any damages is an
21 important issue.
22 MS. DORSEY: And I think that continues
23 to call for a legal conclusion.
24 BY MR. DZARNOSKI:
25 Q. How have you been harmed, sir?
e ——————————— et
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DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

CASANDRA HARRISON;
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Q. Why not?
A. Well, bad judgment call.
Q. I'm sorry?
A. Bad judgment call.
Q. Did you know that there was an
arbitration agreement in the document?
A. No.
Q. Did you ever write to Rapid Cash telling

them that you didn't want to accept the arbitration

agreement?
A, No.
Q. Do you recall how much money was

garnished from your account or garnished from your

wages?
A, I think about $900.
Q. Do you believe that you are completely

paid up now with respect to Rapid Cash?

A, Yes.

Q. Other than the money that was garnished
out of your wages, have you lost any money because
of anything Rapid Cash has done?

A. Ag far as money lost, I would say
probably no, but it caused some havoc with my
finances.

Q. How 8go7?

000429
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A, They took -- they took 8o much out of
each paycheck that there was not enough for -- for
bills, made it difficult to pay my bills.

Q. You know the constable's the one that
took the money out of your check; right?

A, Yes.

MR. DZARNOSKI: I appreciate you taking
time out of your day and coming over here. Thank
you. I have no further questions.

{Deposition recessed at 3:50

p.m.)
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INC. d/b/a RAPID CASH;
GRANITE FINANCIAL
SERVICES, INC. d/b/a
RAPID CASH; FMMR
INVESTMENTS, INC. d/b/a
RAPID CASH; PRIME GROUP,
INC. d/b/a RAPID CASH;
ADVANCE GROUP, INC.
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1 Q. -- from work?

2 A. From Rapid Cash?

3 Q. Yes.

4 A. 1,600. I think $1,681, something like

5 that.

6 0. Do you know if the debt has been

7 completely satisfied?

8 A. Yes, sirxr. They made sure of it.

9 Q. Did you first contact the Legal Aid

10 Clinic after all the garnishments had been

11 completed?

12 A. Yes. It -- yes, I believe they were.

13 Yes.

14 Q. What did PDL tell you when you told them

15 that your wages were being garnished by Rapid Cash?

16 A, I don't recall what they told me at that

17 time because I was in shock and I was surprised, so

18 like I can't remember.

19 Q. Have you lost any money because of the

20 Rapid Cash lawsuit other than the money that has

21 been garnished from your wages?

22 Aa. Have I lost any money pertaining to this?

23 Q. Yes. i

24 A, It -- it screwed up my bank account if

25 that's what you're talking about. Is that what you
O S S S T -
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1 mean?
2 Q. How did it screw up your bank account?
3 A. Well, because of the way it happened,
4 gome things that I had automatically deducted, that
5 didn't happen or part of it happened, and because it
6 just happened so quickly, I didn't -- you know, I
7 couldn't make reservations about calling them and
8 telling them what happened because it just happened
9 so quickly.
10 S0 as a result of that, some things that
11 would come out, it didn't happen. My rent didn't
12 happen. My car insurance didn't happen. Believe it
13 or not, I pay Palms Mortuary. That didn't happen
14 either, and the gym didn't happen. You know, I
15 can't -- those are the main things I know.
16 Q. Did you loge your car?
17 A. No, I didn‘'t lose my car.
18 Q. Did you get evicted from your apartment?
19 A, No, I didn't get evicted from m?
20 apartment.
21 Q. So you caught up and made those payments
22 that you just talked about missing?
23 A. Angrily, if that is a word, ves.
24 Q. Did you have a few bad check charges
25 coming out of the bank or anything because of --
—_— ——
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1 A, Yes, several.
2 Q. How wmuch are those, 35 apiece?
3 A, Yes, uh-huh.
4 Q. Less than five?
5 A. No, I had more than five because when I
6 couldn't make up for those items I named, that hit
7 and it -- it kept hitting until I could get it
8 together to try to get it settled or just wait until
9 I had the money, which made it scarce because the
10 next payday Rapid Cash hit again, so it wasn't once
11 a month with Rapid Cash. It was every pay pericd.
12 Q. Do you get a direct deposit or do you get
13 a check?
14 A. Direct deposit.
15 Q. aAnd did you know -- the first time that a
16 garnishment happened, did you realize that money had
17 been deducted from your paycheck?
18 A. When I realized it, I received an E-mail
13 from my finance department and that was at the end
20 of the day. I looked at it and then it was just in
21 a matter of a few days after that that that was the
22 first -- the first one.
23 Q. So you were notified in advance by vyour
24 finance department that your wages were going to be
25 garnished?
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1 arbitration, There was no arbitration.
2 Q. Would you like it to go to arbitration?
3 MS. DORSEY: Object to form.
4 A, No. They violated my rights and the

5 rights of the 1,600 [sic] other people that they did
6 this to.

7 BY MR. DZARNOSKI;

8 Q. You don't dispute --
9 A. Which is what our case is about.
10 Q. Do you dispute the fact that you owed

11 them the sum of $588.247

12 A. I don't dispute that fact. The

13 class-action suit is not disputing that fact.
14 Q. So you acknowledge you owe that money?
15 A I have never disavowed it. I have never

16 said I didn't. That's not what this action is

17 about.

18 Q. And after you went on the Internet and
19 you looked at the things that you say you should
20 have gotten, what did you do next?

21 MS. DORSEY: Object to form.

22 A. Called an attorney.

23 BY MR. DZARNOSKI:

24 Q. Who did you call?

25 A. My counsel.
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1 was just where I wanted PDL to handle it.
2 Q. When you hired PDL, did you tell them
3 that Rapid Cash filed a lawsuit against you?
4 A. That was before I ever knew about a
5 lawsuit. I didn't know about a lawsuit until August
6 of this year.
7 Q. So your answer's no, you didn't tell PDL?
8 A. No, I didn't.
9 Q. Do you dispute that you owe -- that you
10 borrowed the money from Rapid Cash?
11 A. I borrowed the money from Rapid Cash.
12 Q. And you don't dispute that you owe them
13 the money; right?
14 MR. WULZ: Object to form.
15 A. I was getting PDL to pay off my debt.
16 They were going to handle my business with Rapid
17 Cash.
18 BY MR. DZARNOSKI:
19 Q. But you acknowledge you owe Rapid Cash
20 money?
21 A. Well that's why I hired them, yes.
22 Q. In Margh -- strike that.
23 In August of 2009, were you working?
24 A, Yes. |
25 Q. Where were you working?
e ————— e T
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1 Q. I'm sorry. They said what?

2 A. I just said I kept getting -- you know, I
3 kept -- you know, this gquy kept -~ every time I

4 talked to him he said he would send we papers and I

5 never saw any and I was just waiting for the papers

6 to show up when I got the garnishment papers and

7 then I, you know, was shocked because I wasn't

8 expecting it.

5 Q. You did know you owed Rapid Cash money;
10 right?
11 A, Yes.
12 Q. You don't dispute they gave you a loan?
13 A. No.
14 Q. and you don't dispute that you didn't pay
15 them back?
16 A. No,

17 Q. At least not till the garnishment where
18 money was taken; right?
19 A. Yes.
20 Q. And possibly some of those payments that
21 I've referenced that you don't recall. You owed
22 them -- you owed them something?
23 A Oh, yes. That's why I was waiting for
24 that gentleman to fax me the papers.
25 Q. Do you recall anyone from Rapid Cash
e T ——— e
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been a request to certify under 23 (b)(2) in this case, and I
want to highlight just briefly -- we have made the argument in
the brief that that is appropriate mainly for equitable relief
and not for claims of damages and that if you look at the
complaint, you've got seven causes of action, abuse of -
process, negligent hiring, negligence, civil conspiracy,
violation of 604A, NRS 598, and all of those are predominantly
damages claims. I imagine, and we're researching this now,
when we are put in a position where we need to answer or file
a responsive pleading that there'd certainly be challenges
also on the basis of subject matter jurisdiction here;
because, although there has been some allegations that were
freely made in the complaint that the amount in controversy is
in excess of $10,000 worth of damages, I think just looking at
the remainder of the complaint you can clearly see that
somebody has a $300 loan that has been made in this case and
that the judgment that was entered in the Justice Court was
for $300 plus attorney feegs of 150, and maybe service of
process of $50 or $60 or something like that.

THE COURT: The intexest isn't included in the
judgment?

MR. DZARNOSKI: Most of these judgments don'’t have
anywhere near a judgment that, it is my understanding, over --
about $500 is the amount of the judgments that we have at

issue, I believe,

27
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Telephone: (702) 386-1070 x 106

Facsimile: (702) 388-1642
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J. Randall Jones, Esq. (1927)

Jennifer C. Dorsey, Esq. (6456)

Eric M. Pepperman, Esq, (11679)

KEMP, JONES & COULTHARD, LLP
3800 Howard Hughes Pkwy, 17" Floor
Las Vegas, Nevada 89169

Telephone: (702) 385-6000

Facsimile: (702) 385-6001
iri@kempiones.comn

Attorneys for Plaintiffs/Putative Class Counsel
DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY,NEVADA

Casandra Harrison; Eugene Varcados;

Concepcion Quintino; and Mary Dungan, Case No.: A-10-624982-B
individually and on behalf of all persons Dept. No.: XI
similarly situated,

Plaintiffs,

OPPOSITION TO MOTION TO

V. DISMISS FOR LACK OF SUBJECT
MATTER JURISDICTION AND FOR
Principal Investments, Inc. d/b/a Rapid Cash; FAILURE TO STATE A CLAIM UPON
Granite Financial Services, Inc. d/b/a Rapid WHICH RELIEF MAY BE GRANTED
Cash; FMMR Investments, Inc., d/b/a Rapid
Cash; Prime Group, Inc., d/b/a Rapid Cash; | Date of Hearing; January 25, 2010
Advance Group, Inc., d/b/a Rapid Cash;
Maurice Carroll, individually and d/b/a On Time of Hearing: 9:00 a.m.
Scenc Mediations; W.A.M. Rentals, LLC
and d/b/a On Scene Mediations; Vilisia
Coleman, and DOES T through X,
inclusive,

Defendants.
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I
INTRODUCTION

This class action sceks to redress the fraud perpetrated on the courts and perhaps
thousands of defendants in the Clark County, Nevada, judicial system through “sewer service,”
the despicable practice by which a process server attests to having served a summons and
complaint upon a defendant when, in fact, the defendant was never served and is unaware that his
legal rights are being adjudicated. Payday lender Rapid Cash, with sewer-service affidavits
provided by its unlicensed process server On Scene Mediations, obtained potentially thousands
of default judgments against allegedly defaulting borrowers, eviscerating their due process rights
while destroying their credit. While Class Plaintiffs seek monetary damages for Defendants’
egregious conduct against them, their claims for equitable relief are the thrust of this class action
that seeks, inter alia, to set aside these illegally obtained judgments.

The Court’s exercise of jurisdiction over this entire matter is wholly consistent with
Nevada’s Constitution and case law. The Rapid Cash Defendants contend that this Court lacks
jurisdiction because the various fraudulent default judgments entered against the Class Plaintiffs
do not individually meet the district court’s $10,000 jurisdictional limit. But Rapid Cash ignores
Class Plaintiffs’ equitable claims, which by themselves confer original jurisdiction upon the
district court over the entire case, as well as the fact that éggregation of small claims is the
hallmark of consumer class actions. Rapid Cash also asks this Couft to determine that Plaintiffs’
individual tort claims absolutely cannot meel the jurisdictional minimum. But the facts of this
case not only demonstrate the possibility that Plaintiffs’ damages can exceed $10,000, it is likely
that they will. Finally, Rapid Cash moves for dismissal of the NRS 604A claim as a matter of
law, using a highly contorted interpretation of that law that is just plain unsupportable. Because
this Court has original jurisdiction over this action on multiple grounds, and Defendants cannot

satisfy their burden under NRCP 12(b)(5), Defendants’ motion must be denied.
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11.
ARGUMENT

Class Plaintiffs” Complaint secks two separate and distinct forms of relief. First, and
foremost, Plaintiffs ask this Court to exercise its equitable power to set aside all of the default
judgments entered against them that were procured by the fraudulent “sewer service” affidavits,
Secondarily, Class Plaintiffs seek monetary damages that both compensate them for Defendants’
tortious conduct and punish the Defendants for their fraudulent, oppressive, and malicious
actions. Both of these forms of relief independently confer proper jurisdiction over this entire
class action upon this Court.

A. This Court has Jurisdiction over this Entire Case Because it has Original
Jurisdiction Over Class Plaintiffs’ Independent Action in Equity for Fraud Upon
the Court.

Nevada law holds, “if a court of equity obtain[s] jurisdiction of a controversy on any
ground and for any purpose, it will retain jurisdiction for the purpose of administering complete
relief.” Parascandolo v. Christensen, 65 Nev. 578, 583, 199 P.2d 629, 631 (1948), quoting
Seaborn v. District Court, 55 Nev. 206, 222, 29 P.2d 500, 505 (1934). This Court has original
jurisdiclion over this equitable action to set aside Rapid Cash’s default judgments. Therefore,
under clear Nevada law, it has supplemental jurisdiction over all claims in this class action,
preventing dismissal under NRCP 12(b)(1).

1. Plaintiffs Have Pled Equitable Claims over which this Court has Original

Jurisdiction.

Two of the primary goals of this class action are to set aside Rapid Cash’s legion of
default judgments procured through Defendants’ fraud upon the court and judicially compel
Rapid Cash to disgorge the substantial sums that it has collected from the Class Members under

the purported force and effect of those illegally obtained judgments.' Thus, the Class’s equitable

' See Complaint at 9§ 2 (“The Class seeks declaratory relief pursuant to NRS 30.010 et seq. for a
declaration of the rights, status, or other legal relations of the parties. They also seek injunctive
relief pursuant to Article 6, Section 6 of the Nevada Constitution, NRS 33.010 et seq., and NRCP
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action to set aside Rapid Cash’s default judgments and obtain the equitable remedy of
disgorgement lies at the heart of this case.
a Nevada's District Courts have original jurisdiction over equitable claims.

Nevada’s district courts have original jurisdiction over actions in equity to set aside
default judgments. Nevada’s Constitution gives its district courts original jurisdiction in all cases
excluded by law from the original jurisdiction of the justice courts. Nev. Const. Art. 6 § 6(1).
NRS 4.370 carves out the matters in which the justice court has original jurisdiction. Nowhere in
that statute’s exhaustive list of justice court matters are actions to set aside judgments for fraud
upon the Court. In fact, NRS 4.370 does not include any equitable actions, tacitly leaving them
to the district courts. Edwards v. Emperor’s Garden Restaurant, 122 Nev. 317, 130 P.3d 1280,
1284 (2006) (“the District Court possesses original jurisdiction . . . over claims for injunctive
relief”) and id. at 1285 n. 14 (citing Jasper County Lumber Co. v. Biscamp, 77 S'W.2d 571, 572
(Tex. Civ. App. 1934) (noting that a district court’s jurisdiction over suits for injunctive relief
“does not necessarily depend upon the amount in controversy™)).

b. The Nevada Supreme Court has acknowledged the District Courts’
Jurisdiction over independent actions in equity o set aside judgments.

This Court’s original jurisdiction over independent actions in equity to set aside
improperly procured judgments like the ones that Rapid Cash obtained against the Class
members is also demonstrated by the Nevada Supreme Court’s deciéions in Nevada Indus. Dev.
v. Benedetti, 103 Nev. 360, 741 P.2d 802 (1987), and Savage v. Salzmann, 88 Nev. 193,495 P.2d
367 (1972). In Benedetti, the Court held that Nevada has two methods for seeking to set aside a
judgment: NRCP 60(b) and an independent action in equity to set aside the judgment. Benedetti,
741 P.2d at 805 (“A court, in an independent action, may modify a final judgment in a former

proceeding on the ground of mistake as well as fraud”). Nowhere in the Benedetti decision does

65 against Rapid Cash with respect to enforcement of the void default judgments obtained, as
well as equitable remedies.”).
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the Court question or deny the district court’s Jurisdiction over that independent action in equity
to set aside the judgment and for the equitable remedy of restitution.

The same holds true for Savage. Salzmann obtained a default judgment in a separate
action against Savage in violation of the parties’ agreement. Jd. at 194. Savage filed an
independent action to set aside the judgment for fraud, but the district court dismissed Savage’s
action on the basis that Savage failed to act within the six month time limit of NRCP 60(b). /d.
at 195. In reversing the district court’s decision, the Nevada Supreme Court recognized that
NRCP 60(b) does not limit the district court’s power to entertain an independent action to set
aside a judgment for fraud upon the court. /d. The Court held that the purpose of the rule is to
allow parties to set aside judgments obtained by extrinsic fraud. “Extrinsic fraud has been held
to exist when, . . the other party to the suit [] prevents the losing party either from knowing
about his rights or defenses, or from having a fair opportunity of presenting them upon trial.”
1d., quoting Murphy v. Murphy, 65 Nev. 264, 271, 193 P.2d 850, 854 (1948) (emphasis added).
The Court concluded that Savage had alleged facts which, if proved, would support a finding of
extrinsic fraud. /d. 195-96. And not once did the Court question the district court’s power to
hear the plaintiff’s independent action in equity to set aside the judgment. Indeed, the amount in
controversy, or any dollar amount for that matter, is never mentioned throughout the entire
opinion.

From a jurisdictional standpoint, the instant case is materiall'y similar to Savage and
Benedetti. Class Plaintiffs allege that Defendants attested to having served them with process,
but in fact never really even attempted to serve them. These allegations, when proven, will
demonstrate Defendants prevented Plaintiffs from knowing about their rights or defenses, or
from having a fair opportunity to prevent them upon frial. As our High Court has already
considered this type of independent action in equity to set aside default judgments for fraud and
has never dismissed one for want of original jurisdiction, it is clear that Nevada’s district courts

have junisdiction over independent actions in equity to sct aside default judgments.
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c. Plaintiffs clearly seek equitable relief, as disgorgement and restitution are
equitable — not legal — remedies.

Rapid Cash acknowledges that the Class seeks “all equitable relief that arises from or is
implied by the facts, whether or not specifically requested, including but not limited to
disgorgement or restitution of or imposition of a constructive trust on all funds collected under
void default judgments against the Class.” Motion at 12:25-27. Rapid Cash nevertheless argues
— without citing any authority — that this is really just a request for monetary relief and
jurisdiction cannot be created “merely because one calls the monetary relief prayed for in the
Complaint ‘restitution’ rather than ‘damages.”” Id. at 13:18-24. The notion that equitable
remedies of disgorgement or restitution are the same thing as “damages” or other remedies at
law was specifically rejected by the Ninth Circuit in SEC v. Rind, 991 F.2d, 1486 (9" Cir., 1993).
Rind argued that when the SEC sued for disgorgement it was looking for money damages, but
the Court disagreed, explaining that the crux of this equitable remedy is deterrence, not
compensation:

The fact that disgorgement involves money does not change the
nature of the remedy. The Commission seeks disgorgement in

order to deprive the wrongdoer of his or her unlawful profits and
thereby eliminate the incentive for violating the securities laws.

1d. at 1490.

Thus, contrary to Rapid Cash’s bald assertion, disgorgement- is not a legal remedy at all,
but a form of injunctive and equitable relief. /d. at 1493, citing SEC v. Clark, 915 F.2d 439, 453
(9™ Cir. 1990) (disgorgement of profits is a way to obtain injunctive relief), Chauffeurs,
Teamsters and Helpers Local No. 391 v. Terry, 494 U.S. 558, 570, 108 L.Ed. 2d 519, 110 S. Ct.
1339 (1990), and SEC v. Commonwealth Chem. Sec., Inc., 574 F.2d 90, 95-96 (2™ Cir, 1978)
(the fact that disgorgement involves money does nothing to change its nature as an equitable

remedy).” This district court clearly has jurisdiction over this equitable action. However, should

* See also Golden v. Kelsy-Hayes Co., 73 F.3d 648, 661 (6" Cir. 1996); Broussard v. Foti, 2001
U.S. Dist. LEXIS 8564, 2001 WL 699525 (E.D. La. June 18, 2001} (finding that action by
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this Court believe that the Class has not sufficiently pled this equitable claim or requested this
equitable relief, the Class alternatively moves this Court for leave to amend its complaint to cure
that deficiency. See NRCP 15(a) (“lcave shall be freely given when justice so requires™).

2 This Court’s Original Jurisdiction over Plaintiffs’ Independent Action in

Equity gives it Jurisdiction over All of the Plaintiffs’ Claims.

Because this Court has original jurisdiction over Plaintiffs’ equitable claim to set aside
the judgments, it has jurisdiction over all of Plaintiffs’ claims in this case. Parascandolo v.
Christensen, 65 Nev. 578, 583, 199 P.2d 629, 631 (1948) ( “[1]f a court of equity obtain[s]
jurisdiction of a controversy on any ground and for any purpose, it will retain jurisdiction for the
purpose of administering complete relief.”) (quoting Seaborn v. District Court, 55 Nev. 206, 222,
29 P.2d 500, 505 (1934)). The Nevada Supreme Court recently applied this rule in Edwards v.
Emperor’s Garden Restaurant, 122 Nev. 317, 130 P.3d 1280 (2006), with a discussion that
squarely defeats Rapid Cash’s instant motion. Edwards sued a Chinese restaurant under the
federal Telephone Consumer Protection Act (TCPA) asserting claims for injunctive relief and
seeking $3,000 in compensatory damages for the alleged TCPA violations. Emperor’s Garden
successfully moved to dismiss the complaint for lack of subject matter jurisdiction, contending
that (1) plaintiff’s purported damages did not meet the $7,500 jurisdictional minimum?, and (2)
injunctive relief was unavailable because the reslaurant had discontinued the allegedly violative
conduct. 7d.

The Nevada Supreme Court reversed the dismissal on appeal. The Court found that the
district court had original jurisdiction over the equitable claim for injunctive relief, even though
it eventually agreed with the district court thatl an injunction was ultimately unavailable. /d. at
324-25. The Court found that Edwards properly alleged an equitable claim for injunctive relief

and in doing so invoked the district court’s original jurisdiction because NRS 4.370, the statute

prisoner class seeking restitution of a surcharge they were required to pay was primarily equitable
and certifying the class under Rule 23(b)(2)).

3NRS 4.370 has since been amended and the current jurisdictional threshold is $10,000.
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delineating matters within the justice court’s original jurisdiction, did not include equitable
remedies. Id. at 325. The Court concluded:

Thus, as Edwards’ request for monetary damages and his request

for injunctive relief arose out of the same two [ ] events, the

district court properly acquired jurisdiction over the entirety

of Edwards’ complaint, regardless of whether the monetary

threshold was met.
1d. (emphasis added).

Like Edwards, the Class has alleged a mixed bag of claims seeking both monetary and
equitable relief, Whatever their nature, all of these claims arise “out of the same” sewer-service
events, and thus, this court “properly acquired jurisdiction over the entirety of” the Class’s
complaint, “regardless of whether the monetary threshold was met.” Id. Accordingly, Nevada
law requires this Court to deny Defendants’ motion to dismiss Plaintiffs’ claims for lack of
subject matter jurisdiction.

B. Class Plaintiffs’ Individual Monetary Damages Sufficiently Satisfy the Minimum

Jurisdictional Amount.

Dismissal is unavailable for the independent reason that Plaintiffs® damages
claims potentially exceed the $10,000 jurisdictional minimum. “In order to dismiss a case based
on lack of subject matter jurisdiction, it must appear to a legal certainty that the claim is worth
less than the jurisdictional amount.” Morrison v. Beach City, LLC, 116 Nev. 34, 38,991 P.2d
982, 984 (2000) (emphasis added). And as the Nevada Supreme Court has warned, dismissal
must be denied unless the district court is confident that the individual claim cannot reach the
jurisdictional threshold:

A court should be cautious about dismissing a complaint for [ailing
to meet the jurisdictional requirement[.] Under the “legal certainty”
test, it should be emphasized, the plaintiff must establish merely
that it does not appear to a legal certainty that the claim is below
the jurisdictional minimum. Thus, under this standard, courts
must be very confident that a party cannot recover the

jurisdictional amount before dismissing the case for want of
jurisdiction.
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Id. (citing 15 Moore’s § 102.106(1)) (emphasis added). Thus, even if this Court did not have
original jurisdiction over this entire case, Class Plaintiffs would only be required to demonstrate
the possibility that their individual damages could reach $10,000 — including punitive damages,
see Gibson v. Chrysler Corp., 261 F.3d 927, 946 (2001) — in order to avoid dismissal.

1. Class Plaintiffs’ Individual Claims for Abuse of Process Alone Demonstrate

that Each Plaintiff’s Damages Are Not Below 310,000 to a Legal Certainty.

Defendants contend that it is legally certain that Plaintiffs’ individual claims cannot meet
the jurisdictional limit because none of the fraudulent defaults entered against them exceed
$10,000. But Defendants fail to consider all of the avenues by which compensatory damages are
available to each Plaintiff. For example, the compensatory damages recoverable for Plaintiffs’
abuse of process claim “include compensation for fears, anxiety, and emotional distress.” Bull
v. McCuskey, 96 Nev. 706, 710, 615 P.2d 957, 960 (1980), abrogated in part on other grounds by
Ace Truck v. Kahn, 103 Nev. 503, 746 P.2d 132 (1987) (emphasis added).

Attorney Bull instituted a medical malpractice action against Dr. McCuskey on behalf
Catherine Doucette, an 86-year-old-woman injured in a car accident and cared for by Dr.
McCuskey. Id. at 708. Before filing suit, Bull did not examine or even obtain Ms. Doucette’s
medical records. /d. He did not confer with a doctor, submit his claim to a Joint Screening
Panel, which was required by the Washoe County Bar Association, or even retain an expert. Jd.
Instead, he sought to resolve the case for $750. /d. When Dr. McCﬁskey refused, the matter
proceeded (o trial where Bull verbally abused McCuskey while he was questioning him, calling
him an idiot. /d. The jury returned a verdict in McCuskey’s favor. 7d.

Thereafter, McCuskey filed a Complaint against Bull for abuse of process in the district
court. Id. at 709. The jury returned a verdict in Dr. McCuskey’s favor, awarding him $35,000 in
compensatory damages and $50,000 in punitive damages. /d. at 710. Bull appealed the jury’s
award, claiming that the evidence did not establish the elements of the tort of abuse of process
and did not support the jury’s award of damages. /d. The Nevada Supreme Court upheld both.

Id. When addressing the damages, the Nevada Supreme Court held that “compensatory damages
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recoverable in an action for abuse of process are the same as in an action for malicious
prosecution (citation omitted), and include compensation for fears, anxiety, [and] mental and
emotional distress.” Id. (citing Spellens v. Spellens, 49 Cal.2d 210, 317 P.2d 613 (1957)).
Additionally, the Court relied on Miller v. Schnitzer, 78 Nev. 301, 371 P.2d 824 (1962), a
malicious prosecution case in which the Court held:

[The plaintiff may recover general money damages to

compensate for injury to reputation. . ., humiliation

embarrassment, mental suffering, and inconvenience, provided

they are shown to have resuited as the proximate consequence of

the defendant’s act. These elements of damage are wholly

subjective. The monetary extent of damage cannot be calculated

by reference to an objective standard. The extent of such

damage, by its very nature, falls peculiarly within the province

of the trier of fact.
1d. (emphasis added). Thus, the potential compensatory damages for an abuse of process claim
are not limited to any actual out-of-pocket amounts, but can include various other factors such as
humiliation and inconvenience, and must be determined by the trier of fact.

1t is hardly a legal certainty that the trier of fact will conclude that Class Plaintiffs’ abuse
of process claims cannot satisfy the jurisdictional minimum. The Court’s inquiry is not restricted
to the actual value of the judgments, but it must include and consider all of the Plaintiffs’
individual hardships before deciding, to a legal certainty, that Class Plaintiffs cannot meet the
jurisdictional minimum.
Class Plaintiffs have suffered more than minimal damages as a result of Defendants’

tortious conduct. Even looking at the deposition testimony of some of the Class Representatives,
cited in Rapid Cash’s Motion, the Court can tell that these plaintiffs have suffered humiliation

and inconvenience as a result of Defendants’ fraudulent judgments and improper garnishments.

Mary Dungan testified about the “havoc” caused in her life:

Q. Other than the money that was gamished out of your wages, have you lost any
money because of anything Rapid Cash has done?

A. As far as money lost, I would say probably no, but it caused some havoc with my
finances.

Q. How so?
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A. They took so much out of each paycheck that there was not enough for bills,
made it difficult to pay my bills.

Similarly, Cassandra Harrison’s bank account was “screwed up” resulting in her inability

to pay bills:
Q. Have you lost any money because of the Rapid Cash lawsuit other than the money
that has been gamished from your wages?
A. It screwed up my bank account if that’s what you’re talking about.
Q. How did it screw up your bank account?

A Well, because of the way it happened, sone things that I had automatically
deducted, that didn’t happen or part of it happened. . . My rent didn’t happen.
My car insurance didn’t happen. Believe it or not, I pay Palms Mortuary. That
didn’t happen either, and the gym didn’t happen.

Q. Did you have a few bad check charges coming out of the bank or anything
because of

A. Yes, several.

Q. Less than five?

A, No, I had more than five. . .

Regardless of the validity of the debts owed, Plaintiffs were denied the opportunity to
repay their obligations. Instead, Defendants [raudulently swore thal Plaintiffs were served with
process and procured default judgments without ever notifying Plaintiffs of the claims against
them. As aresult, Plaintilfs were embarrassed, suffered anxiety, and had their wages improperly
garmished. Regardless of whether the jury will return damages in excess of $10,000 for this
abuse of process, it is possible that they might. It is simply nol possible to determine to a legal
certainty that Plaintiffs’ individual compensatory damages will not reach the jurisdictional
requirement.

2, This Court Must Also Consider the Potential Punitive Damages Attributed to

Each Individual Plaintiff Before Determining Plaintiffs Cannot Meet the
Jurisdictional Minimum to a Legal Certainty.

Rapid Cash’s argument also ignores the potential that it could get tagged with substantial

punitive damages by each Class Member. NRS 42,005 provides that “[a] plaintiff, in addition to

compensatory damages, may recover damages for the sake of example and by way of punishing
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the defendant.” These damages may not exceed $300,000 if the amount of compensatory
damages awarded is less than $100,000, or three times the amount of compensatory damages if
the award is more. NRS 42.005(1)(a) & (b). If punitive damages are claimed, “the trier of fact
shall make a finding of whether such damages will be assessed.” NRS 42.005(3) (emphasis
added). Because these damages do not compensate for harm, plaintiffs cannot precisely calculate
the amount of any potential award. Gibson, 261 F.3d at 946. But the amount may be influenced
by the presence of a large class of plaintiffs, each of whom was wronged by the defendant in
some way. Id.

Given Defendants’ reprehensible conduct of obtaining — and oftentimes collecting —
judgments against the Plaintiffs through sewer service, the potential for punitive damages is very
real and must be taken into account. Even considering a potentially large class and the statutory
limits, these damages are not inconsequential. Because any punitive damages would be
considered in addition to Plaintiffs’ potential compensatory damages, it is far from a legal
certainty that Plaintiffs’ individual damages will not reach $10,000. Accordingly, this Court has

proper jurisdiction and Defendants’ motion to dismiss for lack of subject matter jurisdiction must

be denied.
C. Public Policy Requires the District Courts to Be Given Jurisdiction over Consumer
Class Actions.

Rapid Cash’s argument that this Court lacks jurisdiction ovér this consumer-class action
because the class members’ claims are worlh less than $10,000 each is also antithelical (o the
purpose of the class action vehicle. As Newberg on Class Actions explains, “aggregation of
claims of members lo meet the federal jurisdictional amount may be permitied in certain class
actions certified under Rule 23(b)(1) or (2), but rarely in Rule 23(b)(3) actions.” Newberg on
Class Actions at § 4:1, citing Gallagher v. Continental Ins. Co., 502 F.2d 827 (10" Cir. 1974)
(Plaintiffs’ individual claims for rent in a housing class action were allowed to be aggregated,
since the complaint sought enforcement of a single right in which plaintiffs had a common and

undivided interest). And Nevada courts have allowed claims to be aggregated to confer
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jurisdiction upon the district court. See, e.g., £ Ranco, Inc. v. New York Meat & Provision Co.,
88 Nev. 111,493 P.2d 1318 (1972) (supplier sold meat in 26 separate transactions where the
price of the goods were less than the jurisdictional threshold; court found the plaintiff had a right
to aggregate separate claims to meet district court requirement and was not required to bring
separate actions in justice court); Hartford Mining Co. v. Home Lumber & Coal Co., 61 Nev, 17,
107 P.2d 132 (1941) (complaint alleged two causes of action each for less than the jurisdictional
minimum for the district court but in aggregate met the minimum; the Nevada Supreme Court
held that the district court properly had jurisdiction because, in aggregate, the amounts sued for
were greater than the jurisdictional minimum).
Aggregation of claims is the hallmark of the class action as most class actions consist of

claims too small to pursue on an individual basis. See e.g. Phillips Petroleum Co. v. Shutts, 472
U.S. 797, 809, 105 S. Ct. 2965, 86 L.Ed. 2d 628 (1985) (“Class actions also may permit the
plaintiffs to pool claims which would be uneconomical to litigate individually. For example,
this lawsuit involves claims averaging about $100 per plaintiff; most of the plaintiffs would have
no realistic day in court if a class action were not available.”) (emphasis added). Indeed,
satisfaction of the requirement that a class action is superior to other litigation oflen includes a
demonstration that the members of the class have claims with small value or are unaware of the
violation of their rights and that a failure of justice will occur without the class action. Hayes v.
Logan Furniture Mart, Inc., 503 F.2d 1161 (7" Cir. 1974). As the United States Supreme Court
explained in the seminal case ol Amchem Products, Inc. v. Windsor, 521 U.S. 591 (1997):

The policy at the very core of the class action mechanism is to

overcome the problem that small recoveries do not provide the

incentive for any individual to bring a solo action prosecuting his

or her own rights. A class action solves this problem by

aggregating the relatively paltry potential recoveries into

something worth someone’s (usually an attorney’s) labor.
521 U.S. at 617 (quoting Mace v. Van Ru Credit Corp., 109 F.3d 388, 344 (7" Cir. 1997))

(emphasis added). Moreover, “[a] proper class action prevents identical issues from being

‘lingated over and over thus avoiding duplicative proceedings and inconsistent results.”” Shuette
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v. Beazer Homes Holding Corp., 121 Nev, 837, 852, 124 P.3d 530, 540-541 (2005), quoting
Ingram v. Coca-Cola Co.,200 F.R.D. 685 (N.D. Ga. 2001). And it is within a court’s discretion
to proceed as a single action instead of many individual actions in order to address a single
fundamental wrong.” Deal v. 999 Lake Shore Association, 94 Nev. 301, 306, 579 P.2d 775,
778-779 (1978). As the alternative to finding that this Court has jurisdiction would be to send
this case to the justice court to handle this complex litigation, which the justice court would be
unfamiliar with and far less equipped to handle than this Court, permitting the class members’
claims to be aggregated to satisfy jurisdictional concerns is entirely consistent with the nature,
goals, and purpose of class actions.
D. Plaintiffs Have Sufficiently Stated a Claim for Violation of NRS Chapter 604A.

Finally, Rapid Cash argues — without citation to authority — that the Class’s claim for
violation of NRS Chapter 604A fails to state a claim upon which relief may be granted. Rapid
Cash correctly notes that Plaintiffs allege a violation of NRS 604A.415(1) which provides that a
payday loan licensee “may collect the debt owed to the licensee only in a professional, fair and
lawtul manner,” It then claims that the remainder of subsection (1) makes the federal Fair Debt
Collections Practices Act (FDCPA) applicable to licensees in collecting a debt even when it is
not otherwise applicable. Rapid Cash then leaps to the conclusion that it is “clear” that NRS
604A.415(1) and the FDCPA are intended to cover and address “non-judicial” collection
procedures, Motion at 14:16-17, and because Rapid Cash is alleged fo have obtained default
judgements using false affidavits of service (which are judicial procedures), NRS 604A.415(1)
has not been violated.

The premises underlying this argument are just plain wrong, and without them, Rapid
Cash’s argument fails. First, there is nothing whatsoever in NRS 604A.415(1) distinguishing
between judicial and non-judicial collection activities. Second, the FDCPA does cover and

address judicial collection activities.* Therefore, there can be no imagined inference that the

4 The Act applies to lawyers engaged in litigation, Heintz v. Jenkins, 514 U.S. 291, 115 S.Ct.
1489, 131 L.Ed.2d 395 (1995); see also Todd v. Weltmnan, Weinberg & Reis, Co., L.P.A., 434
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second sentence in NRS 604A.415(1) dealing with the FDCPA mcans that the first sentence was
not meant to cover judicial collection activities, Third, NRS 604A.930, which provides the right
to bring a civil action for certain violations of NRS Chapter 604A, including NRS 604A.415,
makes no distinction whatsoever between judicial and non-judicial acts.

Rapid Cash is asking the Court to read something into NRS Chapter 604A that is simply
not there. For the purpose of considering a Rule 12(b)(5) motion, a court must “regard all factual
allegations in the complaint as true and draw all inferences in favor of the non-moving party.”
Stockmeier v. Nevada Dep’t of Corrections Psych. Review Panel, 124 Nev. 30, 183 P.3d 133,
135 (2008). “Such a motion should not be granted unless it appears to a certainty that plaintiff is
entitled to no relief under any set of fact which could be proved in support of the claim.”
Nevapa CiviL PRACTICE MANUAL § 12.07. Rapid Cash has not met its burden, and its motion
to dismiss this claim must be denied.

I11.
CONCLUSION

Nevada law clearly gives this Court jurisdiction over this independent action in equity,
and that original jurisdiction also gives this Court the full authority over Plaintiffs* damages
claims. Were that not sufficient, Plaintiffs’ claims for compensatory and punitive damages will

likely exceed the $10,000 jurisdictional threshold, and the strong public policies behind class

F.3d 432 (6™ Cir., 2006), cert den., 549 U.S. 836 (2006) (the FDCPA was violated by an affidavit
filed by a collection lawyer in court falsely swearing that the consumer’s bank account contained
no exempt funds); Kimber v. Financial Corp., 668 F. Supp. 1480 (M.D.Ala, 1987) (it is unfair
under the FDCPA to file a time-barred suit collection suit); Druther v. Hamilton, 75
Fed.R.Serv.3d 316, 2009 U.S.Dist. LEXIS 112187 (D.Wa. 2009) (Defendants® motion to dismiss
denied where Plaintiff alleged Defendants violated FDCPA in failing to serve Plainti(f with legal
notice of the garnishment proceeding and failing to make a reasonable attempt to locate and serve
Plaintiff); Sayyed v. Wolpoff & Abramson, 485 F.3d 226 (4" Cir., 2007) (litigation activities
involving interrogatories and motion for summary judgment in debt collection action may violate
FDCPA).

Page 15 of 17

000463

000463

000463



791000

v 0 NS AN

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
2
23
24
25
26
27
28

actions neccssitate that this case be maintained in this Court. As this Court has multiple bases
for exercising jurisdiction over this case, its dismissal for lack of subject jurisdiction would be
clear error. And as Rapid Cash’s motion to dismiss Plaintiffs’ Chapter 604A claim is based on
faulty legal premises, that, too, must be denied. Accordingly, and for all the foregoing reasons,
Rapid Cash’s motion to dismiss must be denied in its entirety.
DATED this 6" day of January, 2011.

Respectfully Submitted by:

LEGAL AID CENTER OF

SOUTHERN NEVADA, INC.

By:/s/ Jennifer Dorsey
Dan L. Wulz, Esq. (5557)
Venicia Considine, Esq. (11544)
800 South Eighth Street '
Las Vegas, Nevada 89101

J. Randall Jones, Esq. (1927)

Jennifer C. Dorsey, Esq. (6456)
KEMP, JONES & COULTHARD, LLP
3800 Howard Hughes Pkwy, 17" Floor
Las Vegas, Nevada 89169

Class Counsel
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William M. Noall, Esq.

Mark S. Dzarnoski, Esq.

Jeffrey Hulet, Esq.

Gordon & Silver, Ltd.

3960 Howard Hughes Parkway 9" Floor
Las Vegas, NV 89169

Dan L. Wulz, Esq.

Venicia Considine, Esq.

Legal Aid Center of Southern Nevada, Inc.
800 South Eighth Street

Las Vegas, Nevada 89101

Maurice Carroll
6376 Brinley Deep Avenue
Las Vegas, Nevada 89139

Daniel F. Polsenberg, Esq.

Lewis & Roca, LLP

3993 Howard Hughes Parkway #600
Las Vegas, Nevada 89169

Craig Mueller, Esq.

Mueller, Hinds & Associates
600 South Eighth Street

Las Vegas, Nevada 89101

/s/ Angela Embrey

An employee of Kemp, Jones & Coulthard
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“readily ascerlainable by objective criteria”™ simply because the defendant could more readily
ascertain whether or not & member of the class aefuadly had his or her rights violated, L.e., was
strip-searched without reasonable suspicion; rather if put the onus on the defendant 10 provide
individealized grounds for a reasonable belief that a member of the putative class should be
excluded:

* There is no prejudice to defendants. They may move to exclude
any class member who was not subjected to a strip search in
violation of the standards reéqoired by the Fourth Amendimenl ag
outlined by the Couxt [before] . .. .. Defendants retain the burden
of proving “reasonable suspicion” as io.any potential class
member whom defenidants may move fo exclude from the class
prior (o frial on the damages issue.

Smith, 117 FR.D. at 378-79 (emphasis added); aceord, General Motors Corp. v, Bryant, 374

Ark. 38, 285 S.W.2d 634 {Ark. 2008) (rejecting defendant’s argument that the class was oo
broad because it mcluded unharmed individuals, reasoning, “such issues cannot defeat class
cerfification where there are common questions concerning the defendant’s alleged wrong-doing
that must be resolved for all clags members.™).

This Court should employ the Smith cowst’s approach and pul the burden on the
defendants to identify the Rapid Cash customers swho were actually served with process in
accordance with the law before haviog default judgnaents entered against them. The putative
class consists of those individuals who were vietims of sewer service by On Scene Mediations,
whose owner, Mawice Carroll, has now been convicted bevond a reasonable dowbt of perjury
imvolving a failoye to gerve process fn /7 0wt of 17 instances. Dewetive Chio faterviewed Oy
Scene Mediations employees, who admitted that setvice of process was ol made sehien
affidavits of service were filed. Aw initial and limited veview of Rapid Cash’s justice cowrt
filiugs contains evidence of “superman syndrome™ - a miracuious record of successful service
of process by On Scene Mediations in Rapid Caxh cases, consistent with those known in
Richland Holdings cases. For example, Rapid Cash filed affidavits of sexvice of proceas
clatming that Y. Guticrrez” (an Or Scene Mediations employee) recetved and soccessiudly

served process on 17 persons on June 17. 2008, a highly dubtous and suspicious achizvement.
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Hernandez Affidavii, Exhibit 2 at § 9. And Vilisia Coleman’s criminal defense attorney told
District Court Judge Cadish that Maurice Caivoll had procedures in place to commit criminal
wrongdoing long before Coleman was hired. Under these unigue circumstances, one could
masonahlv infer that an Affidavit of Service from On Scene Mediations is prime facie dubious;
and, it should not rest on the plaintiff-victims to prove that they were not served; rather the
defendants should have to validate the class members’ affidavits to exclude them from the Class,
Rapid Cash custoners meeting this definiiion are members of the certified class nnless Rapid
Cagsh and its co-defendants can provide other, individualized proof that a particular putative
class member was, in fact, properly served,

2 The \omm;my of Certain Class Members iy Irvelevast fo the Clasy

Certification Ingaivy; af most, the Class Definition Could Be Navrawed fo
Exchude Non-Injured Borrowers af ¢ Later Tire.

Rapid Cash’'s nent that the class definition is overly broad boeause it includes non-
injured borrowers is premature because, at this stage, the Cowrt need only identify one class
menuber who has sustained injury and has standing to permit this case to proceed as a class
action. [ndeed, the inclusion in the class o potentially nou-injuved parties warranis at most a
uarrowing of the class definition after discovery, not denial of class certification. The Seventh

Cirenit Court of Appeals addressed this very fssue a last year in Kohenov, Pacific Investment

Management Co. LLG, 571 F.3d 672 (2009).  The defendant In this securities suit opposed

class cnrtificaiion in part based upon the srgument thal soys of the class members sustained no
njury. The couwrt rejected this arguent as prenature and rrelevant 1o e class certification
inguiny:

PIMCO argues thal before certitying a class the distriet judge was
required to determine which class members had suffered damages
But potting the cart befors the horse in 2 way woeld vitiate the
econamies of class action procedure; in effe st the trial would
precede the certification. 1t is true that injury 18 & prevequisite o
standing. Hhut ag long as one member of @ centified class hag a
piausibiv clalm to have sutfered damages, the requiremsent of
stancing is satisfied. . . PIMCO tried 10 show inthe district court
thai two of (he named plaintiifs conld pot have been injored . .
We need not decide whisther it sueceeded in doing so, because
even if it did, that left one named plamtifl with standing, and one
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is all that is pecessary. . . . A class will often include persons
who kave not been injured by the defendant’s conduct . , .
Sucel a possibility ar indeed mewminhiv does not preclude
ciass certification,’’
The potential that the class definition sweeps in non-injured members does not defeat
class certification in this case, As their affidavits establish, the four named Plaintiffs/proposed
class representatives all sustained actual injury as a vesult of Rapid Cash’s policies and praclices

because cach was sued by Rapid Cash and not served with process, vet Rapid Cash filed an

affidavit of service of process, signed by a representative of Oa Scene Medialions, falsely

swearing that they were served. Given the evidence before the Court (see algo the Declaration
of Detective Chio, aitached as Exhibif | 1o Plaintiffs’ Reply to Opposition to Motion For Rule
23 No Contaet Order Or, Alternatively, For Preliminary Injunction, incorporated herein by
veference), it is implausible that the named plaintiffs are the only victims of this criminally
fraudutent conduct. Thus, the class includes persons who have, and who have pot, been injured
by the defendanis” conduct, and this “possibility or indeed inevitability does not preclude class
cerlification.™ Kohen, 371 ¥.3d a1 677.

3. Alternatively, the Cowrt May Narrow the Class Definition to Include Only
Those Who Were Not Served,

Although the faw clearly does not require it as an alternative, this Court yoay narrow the
class definition to include only those Rapid Cash borrowers who were not served with process.

See Kohen at 677 {(noting that the Court has the option of nantowing the class definition). This

approach swould be supported by Nevada jurisprudence. In Meyver v, Eighth fudicial District Ct.,

P10 Nev, 1357, 885 P.2d 622, 626 (19945, on a Writ 1o the Supreme Court of Nevada, the Court

held that the District Conrt acted avbitrarily and capriciousty in refusing to cortify a class. )
involved the alleged policy and practice of o covporate landloxd (Bigelow) of illegally locking
tenants out of thelr apartments by placing # pin v ihe lock (“pianing™) af many Hgelow

properties (typically weekly rentals, e.g., Budget Suites). This Uegal praciice was emplayed on

" Roben, §71 F3d at 676-77 {emphasis added), attached heveto as Exhibit § for the Comt’s

rcf‘emnce..

VJ
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allegedly thousands of tenants, and the plaintiffs sought to certify the class of:

All tenants who live, will live or have lived at those
apariment complexes know as South Cove
Apartments or Blue Harbor Club Apartments gince
September 1, 1990, and who have been or will be
evicted or excluded from their rented
apartments priov to being served an eviction
notice as reguirved by law,

plaintifls were pinned n Bifferent apartment complexes run by different emplovees on different
dutes and for different reasons. While the Meyer cowrt’s discussion focuses almost esclusively
on commonality, iportantly, the Court did not voice any problem with the scope of the class
definition, which defined the class according to the miembers” status as victims of the illegal
offices in Clark County, MNevada, against whom Rapid Cash obtained defanlt judgments in the
Justice Courts of Clark County, Nevada, for which the-only evidence that the defendant yeceived
service of process of Rapid Cash’s lawsnit was an affidavit signed by @ representative of On
Scene Mediations, aud who were not served with process as required by law.

D. The Plaintiffs Satisfy Rule 23, and Class Certification Should Be Granted,

Rapid Cash next ofters this Court its apalysis of the Rule 23 factors and argues that the
putative class does uot satisty ihe reguirements for class cevtification, Rapid Cash’s arguments
are centered mostly on ity assertion that the class definition s Aawed becanse W includes persons
sho were served, FEven iF this is true, class certification remains wholly appropriate for the
probable ondreds if ot thousands of remaining victins of Defendants’ sewar service.

i The Numeroslly Proayg is Sadisfied Becanse Joinder of these Fingreinlly
Disedvariaged Boreowers’ Claims Agoainst vhis Payday Lender is
Inspracticable.

Rapii Cash challenges the putative class’s satisfaction of the numerosite requirement

with three avgurnents: (1) The number of class members is wholly speculative; (2) The
participation of just four cluss representatives makes it unlikely that the Couart will be faced with

a multitade of fawsuits, and (3) defense counsel spoke with Detective Chio, who “has spoken
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with nuraerous Rapid Cash customers as part of his Investigation who have ackpowledged o
him (hat they were, in fact, served with proeess. . . .7 Opposition at 13:18-19. Noue of these
arguments defeats numerosity.

i The Number of Class Members is Not Prohibitively Speculative.

Rapid Cash’s mere suggestion that the number of class members is “speculative” is
absurd becanse the allegations in the complaint™ and mounting evidence suggests that the
pumber of class members is in the hundreds i not thousands:

° Rapid Cash has obtained defaul judgments against nearly 17,000 customers in
the last five years and knows how niany of those defauli judgments werg based on affidavits of
service filed by On Scene Mediations, yet it curiously has wot sbared that number veith this
Court;

. Detective Chio interviewed On Scene Mediations employees, who copped {o 8
company-wide practice of filing affidavits falsely swearing to service when, in fact, service was
not made;

@ Last week, Defendant Maurice Carroll was convivted on 34 out o 34 coants of
perjory in falsely completing affidavits of service;

o The initial, brief veview of Justice Court files reveals that On Scene Mediations
employee Y. Gutierrez” claims to have veceived SUITINOUSES 4 complaints and successfully
served seventeen (17) persons on a single day, June 17, 2008, Al of those Affidavits of Service
show Maurice Carroll ag the notaiy; and

¢ Defendant Vilisia Colemean’s criminal defense sttorney told District Court Jadge
Cadish. that Maurice Cagrell had procedures i place {o commit eriminal sevongdoing long before
Coleya was hived.

The fact that the Plaintiffs currently only have the wames of a handful of these class
wembers is velevaut, We know they exist. We know they number in the hundreds, if not

thousands, and discovery will give us a true and accurate tally, Courts have cartified borrower

2 See Mever, 130 Nev, at 136364 (during class certification analysis, district court must accepi
the allegations in the complaint ax tae).
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class actions with far more play in the numbers. For example, in Markocki v. Old Republic

Nat'i Title Ins. Co., 254 F.R.D. 242, 247 (£.1D. Pa. 2008), “potentially thousands of borrowers

received an improper premium rate,” and the plaintiff was unaware of the true number, That,
however, did not bar certification as the Court found that “even if only a small percentage” of

the borrowers were injured, “the claims are still sasily too numerous for joinder.” Markocki,

254 F.RD. at 248; see also Pierce v, NovaStar Mortg., Ine., 238 BR.D. 624, 630 (W.D. Wash,,
2006) (finding the numerosity prong satisfied with 60 mortgagors). Given this overwhelming
evidence that we have now - even belore discovery - the fikelihood that the class is suflicienily
pumerows is far from speculative.

b. The Prospective Class Fasily Satisfies the Numerosity Considerations of
Shueite
N iy .

Althoogh the Nevada Supreme Cowt’s comments in Shuette v. Beazer Homes Holding
Corp,, 121 Nev. 837, 124 P.3d 330 (Nev,, 20035) emphasize impracticality of joindery - not class
size ~ as the new touchstone Tor numerosity, this is no barrier (o certification of this class. The
Shuetie court did not say that a 200-member class 13 no fonger suffielently nomerous; i said that
certification of a Chapter 40 construction defect action on behalf of 200 immediate neighbors
who live inthe samne subdivision construcied by a single developer may not be necessary.
Shuette, 124 P.5d at 338, Shugtie also stands Tor the proposition that disteiet couorts should look
to various factors to determine if jeinder 13 impracticable including: (1) “geographic dispersion
of class members,™ (25 “financial resources of class members,” () “the abilily of ¢laimants 1o

institute individual suiis.” () “requests Tor prospective injunctive relief which would involes

futire class mambers,” and (3} “hudicial cconomy avisivg from he avoidance of a multiplicity of

actions.” Id, Each of these factors weighs heavily in favor of certitving this class.

We can praswne that the class members ave geographically digpersed. Rapid Cashi s in
possession of all of its borrowers” demographic information but has offered this Coust nothing
i believe that the elass members are not geographically dishursed acroas the entive Las Vegas

Valley. Thus, unfike the Shusite plaintiffs, the Bomowers do not reside in a single

neighborhood. And as Rapid Cash’s yellow-pages advertisement boasts 14 locations, it s more
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than likely that s borrowers ave spread across the Southern Nevada map.
It is also undisputable that the class members have limited financial resources because

they were Rapid Cash costomers out of financial desperation, needing “payday™ or extrernely

short-duration foans at Wiple-digit interest rates, who were unable to pay those loans back.

Persons with significant financial resources do not resort to loan sharks like Rapid Cash. The
Borrowers® financial situation, and the fact that 5o few of Rapid Cash’s customers have put up
any defense 1o Rapid Caslis nearly 17.000 justice cowt default judgments, leave little doubt that
these class members fack the ability to jnstitute individual suits. Indeed, for any defendant who
was indeed actually served with process, it is most tikely their economic statas and lack of
access to the court system - not their disinterest - that has kept thean from filing counterclaims
{or vesponduig nany way) to Rapid Cash’s justice court actions. To oven suggest that the
proper way {o handie their claims is in individual suits, when they have failed to protect their
own tights in response 1o Rapid Cash’s individoal actions, is laughable. These considerations,
particularly when overlaved by the fact that judicial economy will be fostered by combining all
¢ The Class is Sufficientty Numerowus.

Defense counsel has represented fo this Cowt that be spoke with Detective Chio, who
“has spoken with ruanerons Rapid Cash customers as part of his investigation who have
acknowledged to hum that they wore, In fact, served with process.™ Opposition at 13:18-19
{emphasis supphied). To calt thiz representation, “nusleading” wouald be exceadingly diplomatic.
When Class Counsel spoke with Detective Chio, the Retective said he bad spoken 1o just seven
Rapid Cash defendants sllegedly served by On Scene Mediations, four of whom acknowiedged
being served, and three of whom said they fndeed bad not been served, Affidavii of Venicia
Considine, Fsq., Exhibit 1 at § 13, While no one would argue this is a statistically valid sanple,
3 out of 7 (43%) is not oal of ing with what one miight expect given what litle we do know for
certain at this stage of the litigation.

2o The Sémilarities in the Class Cldms Satisfy the Covmmonntity Requdrenment,

Rapid Cash next revisits its avgument that the elass definition potentially includes
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persons who were actually served and thus, not Injx‘n‘ed, in an effort to defeat commonality. Bat,
as addressed above, this potential does not defeat class.certification. See Kohen, 571 F.3d at
677 (“Such a possibility or indeed inevitability does not preclude class certification.™). Instead,
“commonality 1s mel in circumstances calling into question a general corporate policy,” Mever,
885 P.2d at 626, and the Mevey case offers the clearest illustration of why commonality exists in
this case. As this Court might well imagine, at the ¢lags certification hearing in district court,
defendant Bigelow denied Jocking out anyone tlegally and argued that even if illegal lockouts
occurred, then every incident was different and there could be no common question of law-or
fact: some tenants might have been locked out for a minute, some an hour, some for days;
tenants might have been locked out for various and sundry reasons under myriad citcumstances;
the tenants would be Impossible to identity and if they could be identified, they would be
impossible 10 locate; several different legal theories of hability were atleged, each with different
clements, and on, and on, and on. District Court Judge Paviikowski found merit in Bigelow’s
avguaents and denied class certification based upon a lack of commuonality. The Nevade Trial
Lawyers filed a Writ to the Nevada Supreme Court, which found the denial of class certification
to be arbitrary and capriciouns, ordered the class be certified, and, on this point of commonality,
held:

With respect to questions of fact, the NTLA argues that when a

coneral corporate policy is the focus of the litigation, class status

for those adversely affected by the policy is appropriate,

With respect 1o guestions of faw. ... Both the tenants and NTLA

argue that questions of whether pinning viokted landlogd-tenant

lase, constituted frespass, civil congpirvacy, ete., ave held in

common by all potential class members,

We conclude that the Tenants and the NTLA are comvedd.
Mever 883 P2d st 626-27.

The same prineiples and factors support commonality in this case. With respect io

questions of fact, the Class Representatives have alleged general corporaie policies s the focus

of the htigation including ihe On Scene Mediations poliey and practice of providing falsified

affidavits of service 1o its emplovers and/or principals, avd a Rapid Cash policy and praciice of
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using an unlicensed provess server, and either condoning sewer service or willfally and
reckiessly disregarding highly sugpicious claims of superhaman segvice-of-process feats. With
respect 1o questions of {aw, another coxnmon question of mixed fact and law is whether Rapid
Cash may be held accountable for the acts of its employee or agency, On Scene Mediations.”?
Rapid Cash fails to demonstrate how these claims lack the common nucleus of facts or fegal

theory required to satisfy this prong of the class ecrtification analysis. See e.g. In Re Synihroid

Marketing Litig., 188 F.R.D. 287, 291 (NI, 1L, 1999) (noting that where “alfegations involve

standlardized conduet by the defendants toward the potential class members.” courts “have
readily found a-common nucleus of operative facts™). Accordingly, this Court should find the
commonality prong satisfied.

i 4

3 The Class Representatives’ Cladne are Not Merely Typical of the Tlass's
Claimsy All of the Claims 4re Materially Identical,

Rapid Cash’s typicality argument snffers Trom the savoe defect as its commonality
argument, Again focusing on the definition of the Class, Rapid Cash avgues thal the pamed
Class Representatives” claims are pot fypical because while they allege they were not served
with process, the definition of the putative Class necessarily includes persons who were sevved,
This concern was addressed above, In dny event, typicality “concentrates on the defendanty’

actions, pot on the plaintffs’ condoct.” Shuette, 124 P.3d at 538, If “each class wember’s

' The Complaint al paragraph no. 69 provides a laundry list of conunon qaestions: “¥he
common questions of faw or fact feclade, butare not limited to, e following: (&) whether Rapidt Cash
obtained void defadt judgments based o false allidavits ol servics in cases 100 mumerows (o join
together; (b) whether Rapid Cash is responsible for the acts of iis employee and/or agent O Scene
Mediations; () whether, s hirlng and supervising its employer and/or agent {n Scene Mediations o
Halfill tis JORCP d(ay responsibility to serve process, Rapid Cash engaged o a fraad opon he Couri; {d)
whether, in hiving and supervising s employee and/or ageat On Scene Mediations to fuifill it JCRCP
Aa) responsibifity 1o serve process, Rapid Cash engaged in abose of process: (e) whether, in biriag and
suparvising it employee and/or agent On Scene Maediations 1o fulfill ity JCRUP 4{a) responsipility
serve process, Rapid Cash wasmegligent; {fy whether, in biring and supervising iis smployse andfor agent
On Soene Medianons to Tullil #s JCROP 4(a) responsibifity 1o serve process, Rapid Cash engaged in 8
civil souspiracy; (@) whether in hiring and supervising s employes and/or ageut, On Scene Mediations,
to follill its JCRCP 4(a) responsibility 1o serve process, Rapid Cash violated NRS 664A.413 in failing to
cobtect a debi in 8 i and lawful masser;” () whether, a1 seme point dirhng its emplovinent of On
Scene Mediations, Rapid Cash became avwarg of o was willfully blind to and secklessly disregarded the
fact that Rapid Cash way fiting false returns of service in its lawvsnits agaivst the Class such that it might
be responsible for punitive damages; and (§) whether the Class has a remedy for Defendants” actions as
deseribed and, if so, the natwe of that remedy,
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Judgment.” S35 F2d at 1105, Rapid Casivs relinnce on K

claim avises feom (he same cowrse of events and each class member makes similar legal
arguments to prove the defendant’s liability,” the typicality prong is satisfied, Id. st 5338-39.
Rach of the class members’ claims arises from the same cowrse of events and each class member
is challenging Rapid Cash’s actions under identical legal theories. As a result, the typicality
proug is thoroughly satisfied.

4. The Class Representotives and Experienced Cluss Connsel Can Adeguately
Profect the Interests of the Class.

The erux of Rapid Cash’s challenge 1o the adeqguacy prong of this class cextification
analysis is two-fold: first Rapid Cash reiterates Its concern over the scope of the class, which has
been throughly dispelled supra,™ and second, Rapid Cash argues thal some members of the
putative Class who were indeed not served might recerve greater compensation were they to
pursue individual arbitrations. While Rapid Cash’s purporied concern for the compensation of
putative Class members is laodable, it does not defeat class certification.

Rapid Cash asserts that Plaintiffs, by attempting o certify 4 class, are abrogating a
individaal absent class member’s right to arbitrate and possibly obfain an award of $3,100.00."
This argument ignores that simple reality that if certificd under NRCP 23(b)(3), cach class

member will be given an opportunity, afier notice purspant to NREP 23(cX2), to opt out of this

¥ Relyingon 1o re Nissan Motor Conp, Antitrust Litig, 552 F.2d 1088 (5% Cir. 1977 and

Kresefloy v, Panasonic Comimngd Svs. o, 169 FRID. S4 (DNJL 1696), Rapid (,&sh asserts that the class
definition is overbroad. Rapid Cash's reliance on Nissan is von'm{f;'teis' mispluced i the confext of g
argument, as that wase concarned a lower court’s order that nve FROP 23{0H(2) notices be provided {o
abse cnfess class plainifls « one that did not infors the absentee ;;fup {iffs of & proposaed partal settlement
of their elaims and anothser, B be sent three weeks later to those persons wha had not opied out of the
chass, forming the sbsentoe plaintiffs of the proposed pm‘i‘iai setilemenis. Id at 109203 ‘Lm,all; the
cowet found that tws notices, the Jatier contalning Tacts that wore material 1o detsrmining whether to
resnain 1 the class, were Inadeguate and absentee elass members coald not make an “infonmed,
m\cthh\nt desiston of whether to opt out or veinain & member of te class and be bouod by the {inal
7 15 sinilarly oisplaced because
Kgyﬁ“ﬂ\y, an smployment diserimisation aciion i which proposed class eonsisted of plaintilfs who

worked in differem geographic aveas, differant jobs with different vesponsibidlities, different managers,
and different grounds for termination, js distinguishable on s facts,

¥ Bugene Varcados™s contract contains a clause whish provides, in pertinent part, *. . . if you
peevail i an individual arbitration against ug in which you are seeking monetary relief from us, we agree
that the arbitrator shall award as the minimum amount of your damages an amount that is $100 greater
than the jurisdintional limi of the small claims court in the county in which you reside™
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titigation and pursue his or her claims individually, in arbitralion or otherwise. Thus, should any
class member see the arbitration opportunity as the brass ring Rapid Cash touts it to be, he or she
can-certainly pursue it. Considering that nol one of Rapd Cash’s customers in Nevada has ever
pursued arbitration (a fact that Rapid Cash’s representative acknowledged at fast week’s hearing
on the Motion to Compel Arbiiration), it appeass that Rapid Cash’s customers do not consider
that process as attractive as Rapid Cash belicves it should be. This argument also assumes
without analysis that every member of the putative Class herein will receive less than $5,100.00
as thel: vemedy through the class action vehicle.

Adequacy of class representatives requives the court fo find ihat the representative partics
will fairty and adequately represent the inteeests of the elags. WRCP 23(a)4). 1f the class
representatives have the same interest in the.outcome of the litigation and the same injury as the

abgent class members, the adeguacy requivrement is satisfied. Dancer v, Golden Coin, Lad., 176

P34 271 (Nev. 2008), “Precise alignment of the reprosentative’s inderest in the case with those
of putative class members s not reguived; whal matters is sufficient coextensiveness of inlerest's
and the representaiive’s ‘abilitfy] to pursue the clags claims vigorously and represent the

interests of the absentee class members.”” Santoro v, Aarson Agency. Inc.. 252 F.R.ID. 6735, 683

{13, Nev. 2008) (ciiing Walters v. Reng, 143 F.3d 1032, 1046 (9™ Cir. 1998). The named Class

Representatives, all victims of the same allewued wrongful practices, clearly meet {hese
£ » b S § s )
gegnivemenis.

it Thre Class s Presaii of Moneiery Relief and Injunciive Relief Does Noy Defent

%4

e Prapeiety of NROP 23(b} 2} (estificatios.

Rapid Cash contends that Rule 23(bX% 25 certification is unavailable becanse the Plaintfix
seek some monetary reliel v addition o infunciive or declaratory retief’® But elass agtion
jurispradence does not stpport Defendant’s asgument. The pussuil of substantial and
meanivghal declaratory and ixjpunctive relied on the basis of a classwide practice may be certified

under NRCP 23(b)(2) ween though damages are sought. See £, Williamg v, Lape, 129 F.RY.

' Rapid Cash actually leads into (his avgusent by religrating its argwoent that the scope of the
clags definition defeats this proag, 100, For the reasons previously addressed, this argument falls shovt.
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636, 639 (N.D, 111 1990). As the Ninth Circuit has specifically made clear, “Class actions
certified under Rule 23(h)(2) arve not limnited to actions requesting only wjunctive or declaratory

relief, but may inclade cases that also seek monctary damages.™ Linney v, Cellular Alaska

Pshp., 151 £.3d 1234, 1240 (9" Cir. 1998) (quoting Probe.v. State Teachers” Retivement Sys..

780 F.2d 776, 780 (9th Cir. 1986)).

Moreover, it is difficult to imagine a case more suited to classwide relief than one in
which an injunction is needed to set aside void defanlt judgments. Sums sought to be returied
via this class action in terms of unlawful garnishments or attachments under void judgments are
properly viewed as disgorgement or restitution or subject to a constructive trnst, all of which
remedies are properly considered equitable and appropriate in a Rule 23(b)(2) class. See ¢

Siolz v. United Bhd of Carpenters and Joiners of Amer., Local Union No. 971, 620 F.Supp. 396

{D.Nev. 1985) (certifying a (b)(2) class where plaintiffs sought a declaration that a union ducs
inerease was invalid, an injunction against Tuture collection of the dues, and a refund of past

dues); Ballad v, Eauifax Check Servs.. Ine., 186 F.R.ID. 589 (1.D.Cal. 1999) {eertifying a

(b)(2} class on the issues of Hability, declaratory velief, stattory damages, injunetive relief and
restitution). And as the Class has asked for cextification of any monetary damages claims under
Rale 23(b)(3), too, any concern about giving notice and allowing optouts is non-existent.

6, Certification wader Rule 33(0)(3) is also Approprinte.

Kapid Cash next argues’” without analysis that litigation of class claims for
compensatory and paitive darnages would not result in the accelerated and officient disposition

of the case, and multple javies woeld be needed © try the compensatory and punitive damages

Bacon ~ aracial, eaployment discrimination cage atleging both disparate tnpact and dispavais
treatment theonies, which present a distine specialized legal framework for analysis nothing like
the inslant case - 15 too Fawtually distinet to have any relevance in this case. Indeed, the instant

class elaimas Tor compensatory and pusitive damages are cobestve aud capable of gencmbized

P Rapid Cash leadds into this argument, 130, by arguing that (e scope of the cluss definition
defeats (0)(3) certification, aud it again fails for the veasons previously addressed.
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and not individual proof. Thus, Bacon and ity reasoning bave no application heve.

Rapid Cash then contends that a class action is not superior to other available methods
for fairly and efficiently adjudicating this controversy becapse each putative Class member can
pursue a remedy in each member's Justice Court action. This is ludicrous. As fully explained
supta, we have empirical evidence that the puiative class members do not have the financial
ability or likelihood to parsue these affirmative claims in Jastice Court: they did not even defend
themselves against Rapid Cash’s justice cowt actions,'” And, indeed, thesé putative class
members are the ones in the most dive financial straits - willing to borrow money on onerous
terms with the highest of interest rates. They clearly cannot afford attomeys, and, if employed,
they likely do not have the flexibility {o take off work to prepare pleadings and sit in justice
court. I these claims are not brought as a class action, they will not be brooght at all.

Lastly, this Court is not presented with the Sophie’s Chojce of having to certify eithera
(bX2) elass or a (b)(3) only; courts can — and do — certify hybrid class actions, Le., botl (b)(2

and (D)(3) class actions. For example, in Ballard v, Equitay Check Servs., Ine., 186 F.R.D. 589

(E.D.Cal, 1999), the Court certified a class under (b)(2) on the issues of liability, declaratory
relief, statutory damages, injunctive relief and resiirution, and certified a class under (b)3) on
the-issue of actual damages. Ballard was a case againsi a collection agency on behalf of 1.4
million persons seeking a refund of $20 per check service.charge claimed {0 be illegally imposed
on writers of checks returned for insafficient funds, Although szq_uém.iai cerification was not
E. This Class Certifieation Reguest §y Not Premature,

Finally, Rapid Cash suggests that the Court defor maling a decision as to class
ceriification pending dscovery. But no discovery 18 necessary hecause there is adeguate
evidence i the record to grant certification now. As Judge Rewd explained when denying a

1z case, “[tthe Court need vesort 0 an

B Assuming, of course, that any of these nearly 17,000 customers were ssrved with process and
had proper notice that their rights wers being adjudicated. Even based on Detective Chio™s randont
sampling, we would assumie that 57% of these cusiomers did receive service, ut they did not hire
attorneys or appear themselves to protect themselves from having a judgment entersd against them.
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evidentiary hearing or allow discovery in the certification stage of a elass action only where the
record itself is insufficient to make the determination.” 620 F. Supp at 398. He cited to the

Ninth Cireuit case of Blackie v. Barrack, which elaborated:

An exiensive evidentiary bhowing of the sort requested by
defendants is not required, So long as [the judge] has safficient
material before him to determine the nature of the allegations, and
rule on compliance with [Rule 23]’ requivements, and he bases his
ruling ou thai material, his approach cannot be faulted because
olaintiffs’ proof may fail at trial.

524 F2d 891, 901 (9th Cir. 1975). Judge Reed also noted that “cerlification of the class is not

an immulable deciston.” Stolz, 620 F.8upp at 402. Thus, “[i]f it later appears that plaintiff fails

to meet any of the vequirements of Rale 23, the certification may be withdrawn.” Id.; see.also

Bartek v, State, Dept. of Natural Resourees, Piv. of Forestry, 31 P.3d 100, 103 (Alaska 2001)

(“The defendants suggest that the judge abused his diseretion becanse he certified the class
svithoal holding an evidentiary hearting. Although it is within a judge’s-diseretion 1o hold an
evidentiary hearing, there is no such requivement. Here, the motion judge reviewed the
pleadings, affidavits, beiefs, and the earlier memorandum on sammary judgment in tight of the
requirernents of IR Jule 23, There is no indication that a reasoned decision on the motion for

class certification required anything more.™); Ellis v, Costco Wholesale Gorp. 240 FRD, 627

633 (N.D.Cal. 2007) ("faln evidentiary hearing on class certification is not required, but the
coust shonld assess all relevant evidencs to determine whether each of the Rule 23 regoivements
have bear miet™).

The evideace presently before this Cowrt supporis olass cartification now. Rapid Cash
] A it }

obtaingd defidlt fudgments 1y Clark County™s jostice court against nearly 17,000 customers over

the Tast five years alone, Rapid Cash utilized now~convicted-sewer-server Manrice Carroll and
his company 10 cffectnase {or not) service of process on Rapid Cash customers. 43% of the
Rapid-Cash-defanli-judgment subjects whose servics of process was sworn 10 by an On Scene
Mediations representative, who were interviewed by Deteciive Chio, stated that they never
received service of the lawsuit against them. And tae daily volume of affidavits of service on

Rapid Cash s demonstrates erther flat-oot fes or superhaman feats ol process service
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This Cowrt can and shoudd certify the clags at this time, as this Court retaing the power o
decertify this class in the fiture should new, surprise evidence surfuce that makes it apparent
that class certification is no longer appropriate.
HL
CONCLUSION

This Class action is necessary as potentially hundreds if not thousauds of borrowers have
been, and are being, harmed by void defaudl judgmenis entered against them by Rapid Cash
based on false returns of service of process filed by Rapid Cash. Class certification i necessary
to profect the rights of these putative class members and the integrity of the justice systen.

DATED this 18% day of October, 2010.

Respectfully Submitied by:

LEGAL AID CENTER OF
SOUTHERN NEVADA, INC,

By:__ /& Dan . Wulz
Dan L. Wolz, Esq. (33§7)
Venicia Considing, Esq, (11544)
800 Sonih Eighth Street
[.as Vepas, Nevada 89101

J. Raudall Jones, Esq. {1927)

Jennifer C. Dorsey, Esg, (6456)

KEMP, JONES & COULTHARD, LLP
Aftorneys for Plaintiffs/Putative Class Counsel
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

| HEREBY CERTIFY that on the 18" day of Ottober, 2010, T placed a true and correct

copy of the attached REPLY [N SUPPORT OF MOTION TO CERTIFY CLASS via

facsimile and in the United States Mail, postage fully pre-paid thereon addressed as follows:

By .5, Mail and FPacsimile to:

William M. Noall, Esq.
GORDON SILVER ~

3960 1. Huoghes Phwy., 9% Floor
Las Yegas, NV §9169

Fax: (702) 369-2666

By 11.5. Mail to:

Mavnrice Carroll
6376 Buney Deep Ave.
Las Vegas, NV 89139

Mauriee Carrold
3811 Red Dawn Si.
Novth Las Vegas, NV 89031

Vilisia Coleman
4255 N. Wellis Blvd., Apt. 1014
Las Vegas, NV 89118

/sf_Roste Najera _
An enployee of Clark County Legal Services Program, log.
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AFFT

Dan .. Wulz, Esq. (8557)

Venicia Considing, Fsq. (11544)

LEGAL AID CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA, INC.
800 South Eighth Stiet

Las Vegas, Nevada 89101

Telephone: (702) 386-1070 x 106

Facsimile: (702) 388-1642

dwulzi@lacsn.org

J. Randall Jones, Esq. (1927)

Jennifer C. Dorsey, Lsq. (6456)

KEMP, JONES & COULTHARD, LLP
3800 Howard Hughes Pkwy, 17" Floor
[as Vegas, Nevada 89169

Telephone: (702) 383-6000

Facsimite: (702) 385-6001
irid@kempiones. com

Attorneys for Plaintiffs and Putative Class Counset

DISTRICT COURTY
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

Casandra Harison; Eugene Varcados;,
Concepeion Quintino; and Mary Dungan, Case No.: A~10-624982-13
individually and on behalf of all persons Dept. No.: X

stmilarly situated,

Plaintiils,

V.

Principal Innvestments, Ine. dfb/a Rapid Cash;
Civanite Financial Services, Inc. d/bfa Rapid
Cash; FMMR Investments, Inc., d/b/a Rapid
Cash; Prime Group, Inc., d/b/a Rapid Cash;
Advance Group, Ine., d/b/a Rapid Cash;
Maurice Carroll, individuaily and dfb/a On
Seene Mediations; W AN, Rentals, LLC and
divfa On Seene Mediations; Vilisia

Coleman; and DOES T thvongh X, inchusive,

Defendarts.

AFFIDAVIT OF YENICIA CONSIDINE IN SUPPORT OF
MOTION TOCERTIFY CLASS

[, VENICEA CONSIDINE, BSQ., being duly sworn, deposes and states as follows:
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I am an attorney licensed to practice law in the State of Nevada and am employed
as such by the Legal Aid Center of Southern Nevada, representing Casandra
Harrison, Fugene Varcados, Conception Quiniino, Mary Dungan and all persons
stmilarly situated.

Tam competent to testity to the maifers asserted herein, of which I have personal
knowledge, except to those matter stated npon information and beliel. Asto
matters stated upon information and bdelict, I belicve them to be true.

T irstmet Detective Chio ot September 13, 2010 when he came to the Legal Aid
Center of Southern Nevada.

Det. Chio s a detective with the Metropolitan Police Department who was the
lead investigator in the Maurice Carroll/On Scene Mediations criminal case.
Since that time 1 have communicaied with Det. Chio & few times through phone
calls and emails.

I provided Det. Chio with contact information on four Rapid Cash customers who
were not served a summons and complaint when sued by Rapid Cash,

I received the Defendants Opposition io Motion i Certify Class with an attached
affidavit.

On October 14, 2010, I called Del. Chio and asked about his investigation in
connection with Rapid Cash. -

Dei. Chio stated 1o me that ke obtained approximately 50 to 35 Rapid Cash
affidavits of service from the Justice Cowrt.

Det, Chie stated 1o me that he requested, via a grand jury subpoeny, customer
vecords from Rapid Cash which he stated he hag not received ag of this date.

Det. Chio stated o me that he attempizd lo contact the Rapid Cash costomers
from the affidavits he received from the Justice Court.

Det. Chio told me he was successtul i finding only seven. (7) people.
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13, Of those seven Rapid Cash customers Det. Chio stated he was saceessful in
contacting, Det. Chio stated that four said they were served the summons and
complaint and three said they were never served.

14, To the best of my knowledge and recollections, the siatements, dates, and amounts

contained in paragraphs 1 through 12 above are true and aceurate

FURTHER YOUR AFFIANT SAYETH NAUGHT.

&% .-“"N\\
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\Lf €,~f~{ }\m ‘\W.é“’g ‘«5, e,

~

. s © NN v,
3 A 2 \ o
Y, tsnde S L o § \\ § 333 NS .
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Notary Public
\'}‘s Nobiy PR - Ststs of Nn‘,\&o:a
‘6 \\&\ Gty of Clark
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ay t\;;mhz( DI Tepies 3
3.t IUN\ % PR ¥

000316

000316

000316



L1€000

EXHIBIT “2”

000317

000317

000317



8L€000

A

LN )

“n

6

AFE

Dan L. Wulz, Esq. (5557)

Venicia Considine, Esq. (11544)

LEGAL AID CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA, INC,
800 South Eighth Street

Las Vegas, Nevada 89101

Telephone: (702} 386-1070 x 106

Facsimile: (702) 388-1642

dwulz@Blacsn.org

J. Randall Jones, Esq. (1927)

Jennifer C. Dorsey, £sq. (6456)

KEMP, JONES & COULTHARD, LLY

3800 Foward Hughes Py, 17" Floor

Las Vegas, Nevada 89169

Telephone: (702) 385-6000

Facsimile: (702) 385-6001

inskempioges.com

Attorneys for Plaintiffs and Putative Class Counsel

DISTRICTY COURT

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

Casandva Harrison: Bugene Varcados;
Concepeion Quintine; and Mary Dungan, Case No.: A~10-624982-B
individually and on behall of all pevsons Dept. No.o X!

similarty sitvated,

Plaintifly,

v, AFFIBAYVIT OF VIOLEYA L.
Principal Investments, tue, d/bfa Rapid Cashs MERNANDEZ

Granite Financial Services, e, dfbia Rapid
Cash; FMMR Invesiments, Ine., &/ Rapid
Cashs Prime Group, Ine., d/b/a Rapid Cash;
Advance Groap, Toc,, débfa Rapid Cash;
Mawiee Carroll, udividuatly and ¢/b/a On
Seene Mediations: W.A M. Rentals, LLC and
dibia On Seene Mediations; Vilisia

Colewary, and DOES T through X, jnctusive,

Diefendants.
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AFFIDAVIT OF VIOLETA L. HERNANDEZ

STATE QF NEVADA )
¥s%.
COUNTY OF CLARK )

VIOLETA L. HERNANDIEZ, first being doly sworn deposes and says:
{. Fam a Paralegal corrently employed at Legal Atd Cemer of Southern Nevada.
2. I personally reviewed the following Rapid Cash default case files at Justice Court:

08C018084
08C018098
08C018328
08018326
08CO01808¢
08C018321
08C0O18827

3. My review of the above seven cases showed that V. Colensan both received and served

the Sommoens and Complaint of each of the above cases on June 13, 2008.
4. All of the Affidavits of Service Tor the above cases Hsted Maurtce Carrofl as the nofary,
3. Dpersonally reviewed the following Rapid Cash defaudt case files at Jostice Cowrt:

080018711
08CO18703
08C018812
O8C018809
08C018708
08CO18645
D8COT8798
DECOI863Y
QCOLI8713

6. My review of the above nine case files showed that Y. Gutierrez both received and served
the Summons and Complaiat of each of the above cases on June 13, 2008,

8]
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7. All of the Affidavits of Service for the above cases listed Maurice Carroll as the

notary.

8. lalso personally reviewed the following additional Rapid Cash defauli case files at

Justice Cowrt

08018662
08C018662
08C018424
08CO 18468
D8CO18676
08C018838
08C018098

(8C018681
08C018852
08C018696
08C0O18323
08C018463
08C018633
08C018828

02€000

08C 018436
08C018649

08C018857

9. My review of the seventeen case files listed above showed that in cach of the above cases,

the Sunuons and Conaplaint was both received and served on June 17, 2008, by Y. Gutierrez.
10, All of the Affidavits of Service for the above cases listed Maurice Carroll as the notary.
FURTHER YOUR AFFIANT SAYETH NALIGHT.

VIOLETA LHERNANDEZ P
N

SUBSCRIBED and SWORN 1o before

me this £ day of (ke y L2010,

............... - NSO
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o &

Notary Public in and for said County an

N i
SR A NIRRT SRR RN
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CASANDRA HARRISON, et al.

Plaintiffs

vs.

PRINCIPAL INVESTMENTS, INC
et al.

v

Defendants

APPEARANCES:

FOR THE PLAINTIFFS:
FOR THE DEFENDANTS:

COURT RECORDER:

JILL HAWKINS
District Court

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

* * * % *

BEFORE THE HONORABLE ELIZABETH GONZALEZ, DISTRICT COURT JUDGE

HEARING ON MOTION FOR CLASS CERTIFICATION

THURSDAY, OCTOBER 21, 2010

Proceedings recorded by audio-visual recording, transcript
produced by transcription service.

000322

. Electronically Filed
10/27/2010 02:52:17 PM

Q@&ibﬁm

CLERK OF THE COURT

CASE NO. A-624982
DEPT. NO. XTI

Transcript of
Proceedings

DAN TI. WULZ, ESQ.
JENNIFER DORSEY, ESQ.

MARK S. DZARNOSKI, ESQ.
DANIEL F. POLSENBERG, ESQ.
TRANSCRIPTION BY:

FLORENCE HOYT
Las Vegas, Nevada 89146
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LAS VEGAS,

THE

000323

NEVADA, THURSDAY, OCTOBER 21, 2010, 9:08 A.M.
(Court wag called to order)

COURT: Good morning. I'd like to do the motion

for class certification first. Is that okay?

MR.

DZARNOSKI: Geod morning, Your Honor. Mark

Dzarnoski on behalf of Rapid Cash defendants.

MR.

Honor.

THE

MR.

THE

POLSENBERG: And Dan Polsenberg, as well, Your

COURT: Good morning, Mr. Polsenberqg.
POLSENBERG: Good morning, Your Honor.

COURT: Does anybody not know that I was Mr.

Polsenberyg's best man? It's been forever, though, but --

MS.
THE
MR.
THE
have a better
MR.
THE

MS.

DORSEY: You performed my wedding ceremony.
COURT: Okay. I forgot that one, too.
POLSENBERG: Which one's better?

COURT: <You don't ever win anyway. You might
chance today.

POLSENBERG: That is true. That is true.
COURT: All right. Ms. Poppick.

DORSEY: Good morning, Your Honor.

COURT: Ms. Dorsey. Sorry.

DORSEY: Thank you.

before I start this morning, Your Honor, I also

want to introduce also with me is my co-counsel Dan Wulz from

Legal Aid Center, and we have two main plaintiffs and

-
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potential class representatives here with us today. We have
Casandra Harrison and Mary Dungan with us over here in the
front row.

THE COURT: Good morning.

MS. DORSEY: Your Honor, I'm confident that you've
read all of this, and so I'm going to just hit some of the
highlights for you, starting with --

THE COURT: Can you hit the highlight between the
difference in the contractual language between Ms. Quintino's
contract and the other named plaintiffs.

MS. DORSEY: And are we -- I suppose we can start
with the pre-dispute resolution language is where they kind of
highlight it, Your Honor. And I think either way it's not
going to matter. And the reason is because for the same
reason that they've waived the arbitration clause by their
conduct in this case, they clearly waived any possibility for
pre-dispute resolution by their conduct in this case. We
don't have any evidence that they attempted in any way to
accommodate any of the plaintiffs, any of the class members by
engaging in this pre-dispute resolution procedure with anyone
whatsoever. So when you look at it, both of these provisions
essentially require -- it's a mutual provision, and it says
that essentially, if this happens, before we institute
litigation against you we're going to do this pre-dispute

resolution, we're going to notify you, we're going to do all
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of these things. They didn't do any of that, Your Homor. As
you know, instead they went and filed almost 17,000 lawsuits
over the course of five years in our Justice Court. So,
either way, it's not going to matter, because the language was
mutual enough that it required Rapid Cash to undertake the
same type of pre-dispute resolution procedure, and they didn't
do it for any of -- excuse me, any of these class members.

And by ignoring those provisions that applied to them, as
well, they’ve indicated a clear intent that those provisions
never be applicable for anyone that's a party to these
contracts. So for the same reasons that you held last week
that they had waived the arbitration clause, they've also
waived the pre-dispute resolution clause.

And if you'd like, I'll move on to the class action
ban, if you'd like to hear about that a little bit. Class
action ban is sort of along the same lines as the arbitration
clause. There's about four reasons why this one is
unenforceable. The first one is that the class action ban is
actually part of thé arbitration clause that you held
unenforceable last week for waiver and public policy reasons.
It's also unconscionable for a number of reasons.

First of all, this provision, as we explained with
the arbitration clause, lacked a meaningful opportunity to
agree to negotiated terms. Now, we all acknowledged last week

that this is a better arbitration clause than we've seen in
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many consumer contracts, but that's still not good enough;

because even though this provision allowed these customers to

later, after they had signed, after they had gone home, within

30 days to go back and send a certified letter and ask that

they not be held to the arbitration clause, they still -- this

was still a contract of adhesion at that point, because truly
they didn’'t have any ability to negotiate the terms of this
contract. IT was presented to them on a take-it-or-leave-it
basis, and in fact, as we knew -- as we heard last week, we
didn't hear of -- Rapid Cash had no evidence that anyone had
attempted to, after leaving the Rapid Cash store, send one of
these letters to exempt themselves from arbitration and this
class action ban. So realistically it -- there was no
negotiation going on here, and certainly none of these
consumers felt like they had the ability to change these

terms.

Secondly, this provision is extremely one sided. It

eliminates class actions, but the only people who are going to

file a class action are going to be Rapid Cash's customers.
It's very unlikely that any of the conduct that would be

covered by this contract and by this -- by this class action

ban would give rise to a class action where Rapid Cash was the

plaintiff in a class action. So this provision is never going

to prevent, really, Rapid Cash from attempting to bring a

class action.
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Another reason why this is pexr se unconscionable is
that this provision acts as an exculpatory clause, because its
net effect is that if these Rapid Cash customers can't bring
these claims based on a class action vehicle, the vast
majority of them are simply not going to bring an action at
all,

We talked about how these are in many cases
financially desperate people. These are currently customers
of Legal Aid, so they qualify for legal aid, so we know that
financially that's where they fall. So essentially what this
does is it prevents relief for small claims or for people who
lack the means to bring them individually. And that is
exactly the type of class that we have here, Your Honor.

So, because of the nature of the plaintiffs that we
have here and their financial situation and their unlikelihood
of seeking counsel to bring individual actions to set aside
these default judgments that were obtained against them,
essentially Rapid Cash will be off the hook if we can't bring
these claims as a class action where we and Legal Aid
represent them all together.

And as our briefs pointed out, Your Honor, numerous
courts have held that class action bans in consumer contracts
are unenforceable for unconscionability when they prevent
relief for small claims or fraud or where without the class

action the majority of these consumers wouldn't even know that
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they have claims. And that's exactly the kind of case that
we're talking about here.

The final reason why this is unconscionable, and
this bleeds over into the public policy argument, as well, is
the scale on which Rapid Cash was f£iling these lawsuits,
again, more than 16,000 in just five years. And by doing this
on such a grand scale they had to expect that the only real
vehicle for relief for these consumers that they were suing
would have been a class action. And for those same reasons
enforcement of this class action ban would violate public
policy.

I think the Discover Card case points this out very

well. This is the one we cited in our reply brief. This is

Discover Bank versus Superior Court. It was a c¢redit card

case where there were millions, where here we have thousands,
if not tens of thousands, of consumers. But essentially what
the court said was, "This provision viclates fundamental
notions of fairness. It's not only substantively
unconscionable; it violates public policy by granting
Discover," here Rapid Cash, "a get out of jail free card while
compromising important consumer rights.”

And that's exactly what happened here, Your Honor.
As you know, the allegations in our complaint are that they
got default judgments against these consumers with sua

service, and so these persons were not even aware that they
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were having their rights adjudicated. And it would violate
public policy if we were not able to bring these on a
manageable basis as a class action.

I know you've read the briefs, so if you --

THE COURT: Because you're primarily arguing a
public policy issue, you're not going to address, at least not
to a very significant degree, the difference between Ms.
Quintino's contractual provisions and the other class reps'?

MS. DORSEY: Because we don't --

THE COURT: Because she doesn't have a class action
waiver provision in her agreement.

MS. DORSEY: Right. And so the only provisions that
would really matter to her would be the pre-dispute
resolution.

THE COURT: Pre-dispute resolution portion.

MS. DORSEY: And for the same reasons those are
mutual enough they waived those by their filing of all of
these lawsuits. So simply they can't preclude this class
acrion or those consumers that were subject to that contract
from participating in this class action based on that
provision.

If you'd like, I can hit the highlights of why the
class should be certified, the Rule 23(a) and (b)
requirements. Unless you want me to go ahead and let --

THE COURT: Let me ask a liability question, then,
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that relates to part of the decisions -- or the analysis as to
whether it's appropriate for a class. Each of the particular
potential class members may or may not have been served under
the definition that you've provided in your class -- motion to
certify the class. How do you anticipate the Court making
decisions on the appropriateness of a class to only include
those who were not actually served?

MS. DORSEY: There's a couple answers to that. The
first one is that at this point, at the class certification
point it's okay to certify a class that may include non-
injured members. And that's what the Myer court recognized,
that's what the Smith case recognized that we cited in our
briefs. BAnd that’s because after discovery this Court can
certainly narrow the class definition based on the information
that's provided.

The second answer to that, Your Honor, though, is
that the parties that -- well, the second answer is that this
Court can currently narrow the scope of the class to include
only those who were actually -- who were not served. And we
believe that there will gtill be plenty of c¢lass members there
to satisfy numerosity. And if this Court does that, then what
would have to happen is that the burden of demonstrating who
was truly served is going to have to be put back on the
defendant, who is the party in the best position to be able to

provide us with that evidence. Again, the Smith case is sort
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of the paradigm for that, where they shifted the burden onto
the defendants to show -- it's that strip search case where
they had reasonable suspicion and so the defendants then had
to provide evidence that there was reasonable suspicion, just
like here Rapid Cash would have to tell us and provide us with
actual evidence that in fact these parties had been served.

THE COURT: The only way we can get that is from Mr.
Carroll, their agent.

MS. DORSEY: Their agent. I would -- well, I don't
know that. I don't know what their files look like at this
point, Your Honor, so I don't know how much information --

THE COURT: Okay.

MS. DORSEY: -- they maintained. But because this
Court can put the burden on the defendants to do that, to
provide us the information -- and essentially it would be the
defendants' responsibility to whittle down the list of these
17,000 people by showing which ones were in fact served. We
would be able to narrow the class definition that way.

THE COURT: Okay. Thank you.

MS. DORSEY: Thank you.

THE COURT: Mr. Dzarnoski.

MR. DZARNOSKI: Again good morning, Your Honor.

THE COURT: ’'Morning.

MR. DZARNOSKI: Let me start where you started,

which dealt with the difference in the contracts between Ms.
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Quintino and the other three parties. Counsel has represented
that regarding the pre-dispute resolution provisions that
Rapid Cash has not followed the pre-dispute resolution
provisions, meaning that we had to give a prior notice of the
claim within I think it was 15 days of filing a lawsuit.
Unlike the request for going to mediation or unlike the
submission to arbitration, that's not the case with respect to
this submission of this prior notice of claim.

I would point out that the statute itself, NRS 604A,
has a requirement that all short-term loan lenders, including
Rapid Cash, before they can file a lawsuit, after the default
occurs they have to send out a notice, there's another
requirement within 15 days that they send out a notice, and
then there's a requirement within -- after 30 days and before
filing a lawsuit that a notice is sent out to them. Rapid
Cash fully and completely has followed that procedure and is
in full compliance with NRS 604A with respect to the prior
notification before going intoc couxt. All of those
notifications under NRS 604A would fully satisfy the
requirement in the contract for a notice to go prior to a
claim being filed and having the opportunity for the parties
to sit down and resolve this prior to a lawsuit.

So as to the pre-dispute resolution, with respect to
the newer contract where three out of four of the plaintiffs

are under that newer contract, there is a provision that Rapid
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Cash has not waived, has fully complied with prior to bringing
their lawsuit. So we have a separate situation than we do
with respect to whether or not they have filed arbitration
claimg. BSo as a predicate to bringing this lawsuit it's still
our position that these plaintiffs needed to file a notice of
claim with Rapid Cash. They have not done so by their own
admission, and therefore actually this case ought to be
dismissed, which we'll get to in the motions to dismiss later.
But for purposes of certification of a class now, I think that
is an important consideration for you to make. And you have
brought up the difference in those two contracts.

THE COURT: But don't you think the kind of claim
that's being made in this case is one that the public and all
the rest of us have an interest in being appropriately
resolved? I mean --

MR. DZARNOSKI: The public -- T suppose in a way
yes. But you've got to understand that there are parallel
proceedings on how this is done.

THE COURT: Well, you've seen some of the comments
that have been in the newspaper about the court's process
server and things like that. Public confidence has been
eroded by what has occurred in this case, wouldn't you say
that, Mr. Dzarnoski? Or it appears to be from reading the
newspaper.

MR. DZARNOSKI: I think I'd agree with that, Your

12
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Honor. But I think that there's also the public confidence is
being restored by the fact that the rerson who perpetrated the
problem has been criminally charged. That's what our system
does to vindicate.

THE COURT: Been convicted.

MR. DZARNOSKI: He's been convicted. Been
criminally charged, he's been convicted. He hasn't been
sentenced yet. Presumably he's going to be sentenced to some
form of imprisonment. And that -- his sentence ig something
that that judge will consider the public policy issues as to
how to restore the confidence of the judicial system.

Further, there is an ongoing investigation that is
still -- that is still participating, and information is being
turned over to find out the extensiveness of whether or not
this same issue exists with Rapid Cash. So there is a forum,
and it's a darn good forum, to restore public confidence, that
being put somebody in jail when they violate the law. I mean,
that's one,

The second thing is that in setting aside a fraud
upon the court, which this is, or setting aside --

THE COURT: Or alleged to be.

MR. DZARNOSKI: Alleged to be. And if there is a
fraud upon the court, to lift a void judgment there's only two
procedures that are set forth to vindicate the public policy

and to vindicate the court system. That is you file a motion,
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according to 60(b), in the case that the void service was made
or the lack of service was made, or you file this independent

action in equity. It doesn't mean you need a class action to

do this,

Now, I find it very interesting, the point that is
continually raised to you in pleadings and in the arguments
twice, that this is a situation where these individuals have
no remedy and they wouldn't pursue anything other than through
a class action. We've recently begun to explore the
legislative history of NRS 604, and in fact the legislators,
including Ms. Barbara Buckley as the chairwoman of the
committee and the minutes of the meeting of the Assembly
Committee on Commerce and Labor from the 73rd session on April
6 of 2005, there was an issue that was brought up as to the
scope of the statute and how do you make sure that
individuals® rights can be vindicated. And there was a
provision that was put in that statute specifically to address
that issue. And that is that you give a -- there's a $1,000
statutory damages provision that wag put into the statute.

This is what Ms. Buckley said. "One of our other
suggestions in the language is to have a remedy for an
aggrieved consumer besides filing a complaint with financial
institutions. When consumers have private remedies they are
often able to have more options. 1In Sections 54 and 55 we

create statutory damages of $1,000 for each violation. This

14
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is similar to what we have in NRS 118A for violations of the
Landlord-Tenant Act."

In other words, the Nevada Legislature has already
considered the issue that you're talking about with regard to
public confidence and whether or not there is a remedy for
people to validly pursue. When this statute was enacted the
legislature, including Ms. Buckley, said that a thousand-
dollar statutory damages provision in here would open the
doors for individuals to have remedies in this kind of a case.

Now, I submit to you that my client, Rapid Cash, has
gone one better -- actually ten better, ten times better than
the Nevada Legislature. As you know, there's a provision, and
we talked about it last time, where any individual who files a
claim in arbitration against my client and prevails is awarded
a minimum amount of damageg of $10,100, $100 more than the
jurisdictional limit of the Justice Court. That's what the
statute -- that's what the arbitration provision says.

So what we have is a situation where the legislature
by public policy has already said there's a reasonable remedy
available because we're giving a thousand dollars statutory
damages, and yet we have a client, a customer in a consumer-
friendly arbitration provision, who is allowing for up to
$10,100 in damages, 10 times the amount that the legislature
decided was appropriate in order to give these people a

remedy.
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You correctly -- or then you asked about, and 1I'd
like to move to this, the liability. Aand you appropriately
have indicated that the definition of this class that has been
proposed may or may not -- or includes individuals who may or
may or may not have been served by Mr. Carroll or anybody else
in On Scene Mediations. In order to certify a class, I mearn,

you're supposed to do a rigorous analysis, first of all, and

the plaintiffs have the burden of demonstrating to you -- they
have the burden of proof -- I don't have any burden of proof
here, nor does Rapid Cash -- that they have met every

requirement of the class action certification. Rehashing
allegations of a complaint aren't enough to satisfy that, and
you're required ultimate to make findings.

What you've got to find is you've got to find a’
class that was defined in such a way that all class members
suffer some legally cognizable injury. The Myer case that was
brought up, that's -- the holding as Counsel said is not that.
The Myer case found that everybody had injuries. They were
different injuries, but the class at least was defined by
pecple who had injury. What we have is a group of -- we have
a definition of a class that doesn't include a definition of
an injury at all. It's just that if Mr. Carroll had an
affidavit of service, you're part of the class. That's no
injury.

Second, you must have an ascertainable and

16
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identifiable class, and it must be ascertainable and

identifiable by objective criteria. Now, in their reply brief

and in their argument today Counsel and plaintiffs have

indicated that there are some exceptions, and they cite to you

four cases supposedly to uphold the fact that there are
exceptions to these requirements for class certification.
None of those cases create exceptions to the clags
certification rules that I've just talked about. In fact,
they are fully supportive of the position that I've advanced
in my own briefing.

| For instance, in Cohen, which is the most recent
case and it's one of the few appellate cases that they cited,
the others were simply District Court cases that hadn't gone
up on appeal -- not to say that a District Court judge's
decision shouldn't be considered, but when you've got
something coming from Arkansas from a District Court, that
certainly doesn't provide precedential value to this Court.
Cohen --

THE COURT: Although those judges may be very fine

judges, is what you're trying to say, right?

MR. DZARNOSKI: They may be very, very fine judges.

THE COURT: You're digging out of the hole?

MR. DZARNOSKI: I think I've put my foot in my mouth

a few times in your courtroom, but ~-

THE COURT: It's okay. You've been in here a lot,
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MR. DZARNOSKI: Page -- well, I guess it wouldn't be
page 5. 1It's page 5 in my Westlaw printout. But the Cohen
court, United States Court of Appeals for the Second Circuit,
recognizes specifically in the following language the rules
that I've just outlined. And they cited a series of cases,
and they say, "Those cases focus on the class definition. If
the definition is so broad that it sweeps within it persons
who could not have been injured by the defendant's conduct, it
is too broad. A related point is that a c¢lass should not be
certified if it is apparent that it contains a great many
persons who have suffered no injuries at the hands of the
defendant." And then they go on and they cite multiple cases
from many jurisdictions.

I would submit to you, Your Honor, that that's
exactly the case as the class has been submitted to you for
definition. And the Cohen case does not create an exception.
What it did is it found that the -- that this was satisfied in
the Cohen case. It wasn't a gituation where, oh, they
couldn't find an objectively identifiable class. They could
find an objectively identifiable class and the people were
injured.

Second, they brought up a significant amount of

briefing in the Smith case and represented to you in the Smith

case that that somehow i1s an aberration from the rules. And
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in fact that is not the case. In the Smith case what the
court ended up doing was it had a situation where the
defendants in that case asserted that they did not have
records that would provide objective evidence in order to
decide who the class was. And the court expressly found that
the -- there was evidence, from documents it could be
determined, an objectively identifiable class.

We don't have that situation here. The only thing
we have is we have affidavits of service by Maurice Carroll
and/or individuals under his employment. That does in no way
give any evidence as to who was not served. To the contrary,
it gives us evidence as to who supposedly was served. The
only possible evidence that Rapid Cash could have in its files
would be if someone at some time between 2004 and 2010 called
and complained that they have a garnishment that is now in
place and that therefore -- and that they knew nothing about
the case because they weren't served. .That's the only
possible evidence that there might exist in Rapid Cash's
files.

Now, if that were -- if that i3 the case and there
are some, I suppose it would be possible for you to say, well,
there's an objectively identifiable class of Rapid Cash
customers with default judgments where evidence of service is
an affidavit of Maurice Carroll and people who complained to

Rapid Cash that they were not served. That is potentially
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objectively verifiable.

The problem with that is that there is probably such
an insignificant number of those people over the course of
five years that it wouldn't satisfy the numerosity requirement
and that this is something that ought to be probed through
discovery of a class, rather than you making a decision now.
And second of all, if anybody ever called Rapid Cash over the
course of the last six years and complained about a default
judgment being entered into them, I can almost guarantee you
and with 99 percent certainty that has already been satisfied,
Rapid Cash and that customer came to some kind of a conclusion
in a settlement of that claim in order to resolve it.

So there'd be a serious problem with you trying to
identify the class in that fashion. But that's the only
fashion by which you could end up having an objectively
verifiable class in thisg case.

And the Smith case specifically recognized that --
again, that the documents were there, but further it has
nothing to do with the shifting of a burden of proof. I want
to remind the Court that this case is about fraud upon the
court. The plaintiffs have a burden of proof, in fact, under
Nevada law the most recent case -- I don't recall the name,
but it had to do with Lawrence Davidson --

THE COURT: I know which case you're talking about.

MR. DZARNOSKI: -~ the Lawrence Davidson case, the
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Nevada Supreme Court made it clear that in a fraud upon the
court case that the burden of proof is upon the plaintiffs to
show by clear and convincing evidence that the fraud occurred.
In other words, these plaintiffs are going to have to come
forward -- either in representative capacity or not, they're
going to have to come forward and prove by clear and
convincing evidence that they were not served. They can't
just stand up there and say, I wasn't served. Everybody in
the world who had a default judgment against them would stand
up and say they weren't served. Are we going to have a
situation come into this court or any other court where
somebody in 2004 had a default judgment entered against them,
a garnishment occurred, they did nothing about it, they
allowed the garnishment to continue, they had their loan
satisfied, and they have been silent for six years, and now
this Court is going to consider that their word alone is
enough to say that they weren't served when by all objective
criteria it would appear that they either were served or they
certainly knew about the action at the time of the
garnishment? And I'd further point out that Nevada is one of
the minority jurisdictions in this country that ends up saying
that a void judgment or a fraud upon the court is not
something -- it doesn't have a statute of limitations, but it
does have an inquiry of due diligence. We're in a minority,

but that's what the Nevada Supreme Court has said, that
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anybody who has been sitting on their rights and can't prove
that they had reasonable diligence in challenging a fraud upon
the court, then they're out of luck. So that's the situation
we have in the state of Nevada.

What the plaintiffs are suggesting to you is
remarkable. They're suggesting to you that they have a burden
of clear and convincing evidence in this case, and yet they
want to try and shift the burden of proof to Rapid Cash at
this stage of the proceedings and say everybody who has a
default judgment against them that was served by Maurice
Carroll should be presumed somehow to have proved to you by
clear and convincing evidence that a fraud on the court was
perpetrated. That simply doesn't make any sense, and that's

not what Smith does, nor does any other case obviously in the

country, or it probably would have been cited by the
plaintiffs in their reply brief.

The GMAC case, which is the third of the four cases
that were cited, there is a specific finding made in that case
that the product defect was pregent at the time of the
manufacture on all set of vehicles that were defined in the
class. The court was vefy careful in pointing out that in
this class definition it was not too broad because it included
within it people who'd purchased the cars for which the injury
or the defect was there. And they specifically recognized

that there was a need to ascertain the identity of class
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members, and this language is critical, "without an
investigation of the court into the merits of each
individual's claim.

So in this case we're sitting on a situation where
the class as proposed to you would require you to do an
investigation of the merits of each individual's claim. If
you were to try and narrow it only to people who were not
served, there's no objective evidence from which we can find
out who those people are. So again you would be put in a
position -- or we'd be put in a position where we don't know
the members of the class until they have made proof to this
Court of their individual claim. 8o you can't narrow it that
small, because it's just simply not identifiable.

And the Bigelow case that was also cited, it didn't
deal with class definition at all. It dealt with commonality
issues.

For the most part I would like to rely upon the
briefing as to the issues of numerosity, typicality, and --
numerosity, typicality --

THE COURT: No adequate --

MR. DZARNOSKI: -- and commonality. I think those

are briefed sufficiently. And the defect obviously is as long

-- I can only -- I can only oppose on the basis of the class
that they have in the complaint.

THE COURT: That they've alleged.
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MR. DZARNOSKI: Right.

THE COURT: Right.

MR. DZARNOSKI: And their briefing and their request
for certification, all their arguments say that we have
commonality, typicality, and numerosity because our class is
people who have not been served, just like the plaintiffs.
Well, that's not at all the class that they've proposed. So,
I mean, based on the class they have prxoposed, then clearly
they don't meet those.

However, on the fourth I would like to add something
that was not put in our opposition, and that is the inquiry as
to the adequacy of representation of the class. I do not for
a moment state that either Mr. Jones or the legal clinic does
not have the expertise to adequately represent a class in a
class action case. They clearly do. But the inquiry goes
beyond that. And the inguiry has to go beyond that to the
point where you have to analyze whether or not the counsel is
representing the individuals who are members of the class for

interests of thoge class members and the best interests of the

class or whether they pursuing -- possibly pursuing some other
agenda or some other political -- political agenda.
It is no surprise -- I'm sure it's no surprise to

you, and I don't think it's a surprise to anybody in this
courtroom that Ms. Buckley has a history over the course of

many, many years of I'm going to use the word "targeting,"
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other people may use a different word, the payday loan
industry, and many would argue that she has tried to legislate
that industry out of existence.

THE COURT: It's at least heavily regulated at this
point.

MR. DZARNOSKI: It is at least heavily regulated,
and it's -- and some of the stuff that you read in the
legislative history when people say it is inevitable that this
industry is going to be legislated out of existence because we
can regulate it effectively. That's what we see.

I would suggest to you that in light of a number of
things we have reason to question at least at this point
whether or not there is an agenda to put Rapid Cash out of
business, as opposed to representing individuals who have
meritorious claims based upon non service. One of the indices
of that is clearly this class definition. They have asked you
in their pleadings and papers to certify what is clearly an
uncertifiable class because it involves thousands, potentially
thousands, maybe all, maybe -- we don't know how many people
who do not have a legally cognizable injury. But not only
have they asked you to certify that, in their initial
pleadings they ask you to issue an order preventing Rapid Cash
from collecting upon what are at the current time legally
enforceable judgments for which there has been no challenge by

any individual defendant in those cases as to the legitimacy
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of those claims. I mean, if that doesn't strangle hold --

THE COURT: Mr. Carroll's conviction calls into
significant question the validity of some of those judgments,
without knowing which ones.

MR. DZARNQSKI: Some.

THE COURT: But how do you know which ones?

MR. DZARNOSKI: Exactly. How do you know which
ones? So the answer is that you put a company out of business
while you try to find out whether there's 20 or whether
there's 16,0007 That can't be the answer. I have a legal
judgment. Until clear and convincing evidence is presented,
that is a legally enforceable judgment. They haven't
presented any evidence to you to indicate how many of those
judgments should be -- are circumspect. I mean, how -- what
the damage --

THE COURT: I understand your concern. I share that
concern, Mr, Dzarnoski. It requires certain tailoring, I
expect, if we're going to go down this road.

MR. DZARNOSKI: May I have a moment to confer?

THE COURT: You can.

(Pause in the proceedings)

MR. DZARNOSKI: Sometimes it's good to bring help.

THE COURT: BAnd he's really good if you're going to
Carson City for any reason.

MR. DZARNOSKI: I would point out that there has
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“
been a request to certify under 23(b) (2) in this case, and I
want to highlight just briefly -- we have made the argument in

the brief that that is appropriate mainly for equitable relief
and not for claims of damages and that if you lock at the
complaint, you've got seven causes of action, abuse of
process, negligent hiring, negligence, civil conspiracy,
violation of 604A, NRS 598, and all of those are predominantly
damages claims. I imagine, and we're researching this now,
when we are put in a position where we need to answer or file
a responsive pleading that there'd certainly be challenges
also on the basgis of subject matter jurisdiction here;
because, although there has been some allegations that were
freely made in the complaint that the amount in controversy is
in excess of $10,000 worth of damages, I think just looking at
the remainder of the complaint you can clearly see that
somebody has a $300 loan that has been made in this case and
that the judgment that was entered in the Justice Court was
for $300 plus attorney fees of 150, and maybe service of
process of $50 or $60 or something like that.

THE COURT: The interest isn't included in the
judgment?

MR. DZARNOSKI: Most of these judgments don’'t have
anywhere near a judgment that, it is my understanding, over --
about $500 is the amount of the judgments that we have at

issue, I believe.
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THE COURT: Okay.

MR. DZARNOSKI: We're not in a position where we're
talking about judgments of thousands and thousands of dollars.
We're talking about a very small judgment. So there is a
significant challenge that is going to be made about this
Court’'s jurisdiction on these individual claims, because they
do not satisfy the jurisdictional limits.

And finally I would like to make a comment that, you
know, this case has been portrayed in a fashion that, as you
have said, has raised some concerns in the community. And,
unfortunately, my client, that is a victim as much as anybody
else, has been painted as a loan-sharking payday lender who
doesn't care about process of service and that type of thing.
Now, what we really have in this situation is we have a
process server who is a retired policeman, we have a process
server who not only was a retired policeman, but he was an
employee and supervised by a licensed member of the Nevada
Bar, that this -- that the Nevada Attorney General's Office in
2006 was advised by Rapid Cash that Rapid Cash was using the
services of Mr. Carroll for process serving, and that they
were wondering about whether or not he needed a license. The
Nevada Attorney General's Office, representing the Private
Investigator Licensing Board, ended up giving him a pass and a
green light indicating that because of his relationship with

the licensed member of the Nevada Bar that he did not need a
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license and that there were no problems or issues for five
years that had come up of any significance to alert anybody,
including the court system, that there was a problem here.

Meanwhile, my clients over the course of years paid
five hundred, six hundred or $700,000 for the provision of a
service that was supposedly done for them. And the fact of
the matter is that -- apparently and based on a conviction,
that Mr. Carroll defrauded my client out of money, he obtained
money under false pretenses. I would point out that the
company, Richland Holdings, was viewed as a victim in the
criminal prosecution of Mr. Carroll, and in fact one of the
charges upon which he was convicted was that he obtained money
under false pretenses from them because they paid him to
conduct a service. My client is in that same position, and in
fact my client is one better, because they did do all these
things. And, you know, perhaps there's going to be an ingquiry
down the line as to why in 2006 the Nevada Attorney General's
Office did not tell my client that he needed licensing, if he
-- if he did, which hasn't been proven, by the way. Nor was
Mr. Carroll charged with a c¢riminal charge of process serving
without a license. He was charged with 17 discrete acts, and
that's it.

Thank you, Your Honor. If there's any further
guestions you have, I'll answer them. If not, I'll sit down.

THE COURT: Nope. Thank you.
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Given the unusual conduct which defendant and its
agent is alleged to have committed, the provision requiring
pre-dispute resolution has been waived and are inconsistent
with public policy.

At this time the Court is going to grant the motion
to certify the class in part. I am granting the motion to
certify as to the injunctive and equitable issues raised in
the sixth and seventh causes of action as to all customers of
Rapid Cash offices in Clark County, Nevada, against whom Rapid
Cash obtained default judgments in the Justice Courts of Clark
County, Nevada, and for which the only evidence of service was
an affidavit signed by a representative of On Scene Mediations
and who claim not to have in fact been served.

Because of the difficulty in establishing which of
those customers will claim not to have been served, I am going
to order that the notice of class action be provided to the
following group: all customers of Rapid Cash offices in Clark
County, Nevada, against whom Rapid Cash obtained default
judgments in the Justice Courts of Clark County, Nevada, and
for which the only evidence of service was an affidavit signed
by a representative of On Scene Mediations. This essentially
makes it an opt-in class, because the individual must notify
us that they claim they had not in fact been served to
appropriately be a member of my class. But because it is

impossible given the admitted fraudulent execution of certain
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proofs of service by defendants' agent in at least some

instances, the Court will allow this broader notice to be sent

to all.

Mr. Polsenberg.

MR. POLSENBERG: Your Honor, I don't think we have
the chance to brief this, but I don't think there is under
23(c) any such thing as an opt-in class. I think under

Scheutte versus Beazer that would be a joinder action. 1In

fact, we briefed that in Scheutte versus Beazer and one other

case that was up there at the same time, and because I was
trying to convince Judge Earl to have an opt-in class and he
pointed out to me that there was no such thing.

THE COURT: TI know. Judge Earl and I have had that
discussion historically, as well. Do you have another
suggestion, Mr. Polsenberg, as to how to make a determination,
since I want the class to include those individuals who claim
not to have in fact been served, since I -- so I don't have to
make the factual determination on a case-by-case basis as to
which individual is a member of the class?

MR. POLSENBERG: I think there's probably some way
to do that under a joinder action, but I don't -- and it -- we
may be -- you have to let me give it a little thought, but we
may be able to do something similar to what you're saying,
very similar to what you're saying, just maybe under another

rule.
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THE COURT: Well, at this point this is my ruling.
I'm not saying I won't clarify it or modify it for purposes of
modifying the notice. I do have to approve the notice before
it goesg out to the class members, and that may be an
appropriate time, Mr. Polsenberg, for you to raise the issue.
I certainly understand that a joinder action may alsc be an
appropriate mechanism, and I am waiting to find out how the
Supreme Court is going to rule on some of those joinder action
issues, as well.

MS. DORSEY: Your Honor, will the defendant be
required to provide us with the list of addresses so that we
can send the notices to this scope of individuals?

THE COURT: Yes. How long is it going to take you

MR. POLSENBERG: I think that notice would probably
come from the Court, Your Honor.

THE COURT: No. The Court doesn't send the notice.
Plaintiffs' counsel sends the notice.

How long is it going to take to get together the
list of those individuals to whom you have -- from whom you
have default judgments where On Scene Mediations waé the
process server?

MR. DZARNOSKI: Your Honor, you haven't limited this
by any time. Are you going back to -- I mean, then we've got

statute of limitationg issues, as well, later. But are you
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going back to 20047?

THE COURT: Yes, at this point.

MR. DZARNOSKI: 2004 to the present? I would have
to check with my c¢lient. I don't know that my client
maintains records going back to 2004, I don't know --

THE COURT: Well, how long did On Scene Mediations
do their service?

MR. DZARNOSKI: I believe since -~-

THE COURT: I thought you said it was 2006 was how
long they'd been doing it.

MR. DZARNOSKI: No, Your Honor. I believe that
they've been serving since 2004. The inquiry to the Nevada
Attorney General's Office where the Attorney General's Office
passed -- or indicated that he could sexve process was 2006.

THE COURT: OQOkay. So then at this --

MR. DZARNOSKI: I believe we're going back to 2004.

THE COURT: 2004.

MR. DZARNOSKI: And I don't kXnow without talking to
my client -- I don't think my client representative who is in
the legal office in Wichita would know right now what the
status of the records are and whether that's even -- whether
that's doable and how far back and how they --

THE COURT: Was Mr. Hillin the attorney in all of
these cases?

MR. DZARNOSKI: No, Your Honor.
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THE COURT: Okay. Who were the attorneys?

MR. DZARNOSKI: Lizzie Hatcher, who was the licensed
attorney for whom Maurice Carroll was employed, was an
attorney in many of the cases. 8ean Hillin was an attorney in
many of the cases. And I'm not certain --

THE COURT: And don't you think -- and I know this

only from the Hillin versus Richland case. It seems like the

attorneys, at least Mr. Hillin, didn't keep a record of all
the judgments he had obtained.

MR. DZARNOSKI: Your Honoxr, I believe that's
accurate.

THE COURT: So how do you suggest a good way to get
the record of the default judgments that your client obtained
against Rapid Cash customers in Clark County for which On
Scene Mediations was the representative who sexved?

MR. DZARNOSKI: I don't have an answer for you
today.

THE CQURT: Okay. How long will it take you to
figure out an answex?

MR. DZARNOSKI: Can I have a week?

THE COURT: Week sounds good.

MS. DORSEY: And, Your Honor, we'd also request -- T
don't know how you want us to handle the notice issue, if you
want us to brief this later. We would want to do publication,

too, just because these are kind of transient class members,
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and we would want to do some type of a published notice, as
well.

THE COURT: I don't have a problem with a published
notice, as well. But we do need to mail to the last-known
address that Rapid Cash had.

MS. DORSEY: Absolutely. Completely agree.

THE COURT: Okay. So do you want a week to have a
discussion with me about -- how about we go a little longer
than that? You have a week to get it together, and then you
come back -- come back on November 2. Gives you 10 days.
Does that work?

MS. DORSEY: Just for sort of a status?

THE COURT: For status on the class notice. And I'm
interested in any suggestions that any of you have, because
you've all done class actions much more than I have. And I am
happy to listen to any input you have as to the
appropriateness or the best way to phrase and deliver the
notices to get to the potential class members.

The other way to ao it is to go through all the
records in Justice Court, Mr. Dzarnoski. BAnd I know that
Judge Saragosa and Judge Sullivan and Judge Sciscento would
love to have you come spend weeks in their Clerk's Office to
try and figure that out.

MR. DZARNOSKI: I would send a paralegal.

THE COURT: But, I mean, I don't know an easy way.
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After the experience I had with the Hillin Richland dispute, I

don't think the attorneys are the place to go.

MR. DZARNOSKI: I think I agree with you, at least
based on the knowledge I have right now.

THE COURT: But I'm open to suggestions.

All right. You want to go to your other motion?

MR. WULZ: Yes.

MS. DORSEY: Yes. Actuélly, Mr. Wulz will be
arguing that.

THE COURT: Mr. Wulz.

MS. DORSEY: Thank you, Your Honor.

MR. WULZ: After all that, Your Honor, I will be
very brief., I wmight just -- I suppose I should begin by
asking the defendant with the relief as narrowed in our reply,
do you oppose any of that?

THE COURT: And you're referring to page 3 of your
reply brief, Items 1 through 57

MR. WULZ: Yes.

THE COURT: Just so I'm clear.

MR. DZARNOSKI: Yes. Because we don't have the
class, that same class. They’re asking for a broader relief
than is now what you have ordered for the class. I don't see
how any of that can be done until we end up going through the
process of the opt in.

THE COURT: But don't you agree it would probably be
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not really a good idea for you to be collecting on judgments
that are arguably void?

MR. DZARNOSKI: I'm soxry, Your Honor? Would you
say again?

THE COURT: Don't you agree it's not such a good
idea for you to be out there collecting on judgments that are
arguably void? Some of these other things I certainly agree
with you. But --

MR. DZARNOSKI: Your Honor, if somebody says that
there is a judgment that has not been -- that they have not
been served on, absolutely that my client has no intention and
no desire to collect on people who have void judgments.

On the other hand, my client would like to stay in
business. And to say that you're going to impose any kind of
relief that -- regarding the collection of actions for people
who are not part of this class punishes my client severely.
And I don't see how the modifications that Counsel has made

are effective unless it -- I'll agree to that if it's limited

- to the class as you've defined it,

THE COURT: That was all I was going to suggest.
And I was going to give you one additional thing you could do.
You could agree with any one of those people to set aside the
default judgment.

MR. DZARNOCSKI: Youry Honor, my client has done that

in the past, will do that in the future. Further, my client
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hasn't even applied for default judgments for hundreds of
cases for which service has been made.

THE COURT: Well, you know they weren't going to
sign them once they figured out there was an issue in Justice
Court.

MR. DZARNOSKI: Excuse me?

THE COURT: They weren't going to sign them in
Justice Court once they figured out there was an issue without
an evidentiary hearing.

MR. DZARNOSKI: Well, my client has the process
service affidavits on file. My client hasn't attempted to do
anything to obtain judgments. I was retained prior to this
litigation, as I've told you, to try and assess this problem.

THE COURT: I know.

MR. DZARNOSKI: My client has legitimate --

THE COURT: &And you called the court to try and find
out how to help us; right?

MR. DZARNOSKI: On behalf of my client.

THE COURT: Even if you didn't talk to me, we all
talked to see who we could send you to, and decided there
wasn't much we could do for you.

MR. DZARNOSKI: Correct. My client has a history in
this case in evidence of bending over backwards in order to
try and make sure that they are not collecting from people who

have void judgments.

38

000359

000359

000359



09€000

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

MR. POLSENBERG: Right.

THE COURT: So, as I have described the class, Mr.
Dzarnoski, is your client agreeable to that limited group not
to execute on any of the default judgments at this point until
we have a further hearing to establish -- well, if it's a TRO,
which is how I'ﬁ considering issuing it, having another
hearing in two or three weeks?

MR. DZARNOSKI: Can we -- can we put off the answer
to that question at least until November 2nd? One problem I
have in saying yes right now is i1f you grant this relief now,
I still don't know who it applies to. I mean, so your relief
-- and you don't know who it applies to. So your relief
doesn't do any good, because none of us know who the order
applies to until somebody opts in, except for the four
plaintiffs.

THE COURT: Well, anybody who claims they weren't
served,

MR. DZARNOSKI: I'm sorry?

THE COURT: Anybody who claims they weren't served.

MR. DZARNOSKI: Claims in what way?

MR. WULZ: 2And they were served by On Scene.

MR. DZARNOSKI: Yes. But sends a notice, what, in
response to the notice sent by the Court, sends a lettex to
Rapid Cash, picks up a telephone and says, I wasn't served?

THE COURT: Doesn’'t matter what way they do it.
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They just claim they weren't served.

MR. DZARNOSKI: May we take this up next week, Your
Honor, on November 2nd?

THE COURT: I would prefer to take it up next week
if you tell me you're not going to have any execution efforts
during the week while we try and figure out a better way to
frame this interim relief.

MR. DZARNOSKI: Does that mean -- and I'm trying to
-- I don't want something to happen that you end up thinking
was incorrect here. Does that mean that if there is a present
garnishment -- and there may be hundreds of cases that my
client currently has garnishments pending and that people --
garnishments are occurring. Are you asking them to
withdraw --

THE COURT: It means you should tell the constable
not to execute on any writs of garnishments until after we
have a chance to talk about this further.

MR. POLSENBERG: Your Honor, we'll agree not to

execute on anybody who has c¢laimed to us not to have been

served.
THE COURT: That's not what I'm looking for.
MR. DZARNOSKI: May I ask -- talk to my class
representative ~- my client representative?

THE COURT: Yes. And talk to your appellate lawyer.

(Pause in the proceedings)
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MR. DZARNOSKI: Your Honor, at the present time and
making it as broad as you have, I don't think that we're in a
position to say that we can do that.

THE COURT: Okay, Mr. Wulz. Keep going. It's your
motion, Mr. Wulz.

MR. WULZ: Okay. Your Honor, Rapid Cash has default
judgments against the putative -- against the certified class
members, and in the absence of a Rule 23 limited contact
order, Rapid Cash can do anything it wants. It can undermine
the class, it can limit their remedies, it can moot their
claims. We're asking for a limited contact order which will
prevent that from happening.

The Court has the power and the duty to prevent harm
before it happens and to police class member contacts. And at
this point we're at the same point as the Court was in the
Kleiner case, where the Court had ordered that a notice be
given and the bank out and got 175 employees to start calling
class members to get them to opt out of the class. In the
absence of a Rule 23 limited contact order, that could happen
here.

And so we request that the Court prevent that type
of harm from happening, as well as settling their claims
without the approval of the Court, ex parte, without our being
a party to those settlement discussions should they decide to

have any.
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THE COURT: Okay. Mr. Dzarnoski.

MR. DZARNOSKI: Very briefly, Your Honor, as to the
class as you have defined it, temporarily or otherwise, we
don't have any objection to that xelief, although we don't
believe there's heen any proof that has been submitted to the
Court, which is required under this, that any abuse contacts
have been made. So, I mean, absent proof that my client has
had abusive contacts, I don't think the relief is necessarily
appropriate. But I don‘t see that there's any harm in
agreeing to it as to the clasgs members that you have
indicated. There is nothing in the relief that was modified
reflect that was requested dealing with suspending any
collection matters. And I think it would be overreaching if
one were to impose a no contact order on a group of people who
aren't even in the class.

THE COURT: Okay. The Court is going to grant the
motion as injunctive relief to the extent that Rapid Cash will
be precluded from collecting on any Clark County Justice Court
judgment against any customer of Rapid Cash offices in Clark
County, Nevada, against whom Rapid Cash obtained default
judgments in the Justice Courts of Clark County, Nevada, and
for which the only evidence of service was an affidavit signed
by a representative of On Scene Mediations.

However, Rapid Cash may, to the sole extent of

seeking to set aside a judgment, file orders or other efforts
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in each of those Justice Court actions or agree with a
putétive class member to set aside a judgment.

MR. DZARNOSKI: Just for clarification, the relief
as requested in the reply brief does not deal with collection.
Are you granting this as injunctive relief --

THE COURT: The relief --

MR. DZARNOSKI: -- without collections?

THE COURT: The only portion of the relief I am
granting is the alternative relief for an injunction, and the
only portion of the requested relief that I am granting is the
portion that was defined as subpart (5), which specifically
related to collection efforts.

MR. DZARNOSKI: Only part you're granting is
subpart (5). And it's not limited to the class?

THE COURT: I read you what it was limited to.

MR. DZARNOSKI: Just trying to clarify to make --

MR. POLSENBERG: Is that a TRO, Judge-?

THE COURT: 1It's a TRO, which means you get -- it's
14 days unless you guys stipulate to extend it, and I will
have a hearing November 4.

MR. DZARNOSKI: What about a bond, Your Honor?

THE COURT: What do you want the bond to be?

MR. DZARNOSKI: &g I've indicated, if -- to
November 2nd?

THE COURT: 1 have it November 4th, because that's
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two weeks. I can do it on November 2nd if you all only want
to come once that week.

MR. POLSENBERG: 2nd would be better, Your Honor.
I'm somewhere else on the 4th.

THE COURT: Okay. So how much of a bond are you
agking for?

MR. DZARNOSKI: We need to consult one more time,
Your Honor, with -~

MR. POLSENBERG: Your Honor, we'll waive a bond.

THE COURT: Okay. Bond will be $50.

MS. DORSEY: Thank you.

THE COURT: And if any of you want to call live
witnesses, I will not have time to hear them on November 2nd.
If you have a conference call with me if you decide you want
to call live witnesses at your preliminary injunction hearing,
we will have a further discussion about scheduling. But I
encourage you to do what research you can between now and then
as to the class notice, the availability of the names and
addresses, and also how many defaults have been set aside by
the time you come back.

MR. POLSENBERG: Thank you, Your Honor.

MS. DORSEY: Thank you, Your Honor.

MR. DZARNOSKI: Thank you, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Have a nice day.

THE PROCEEDINGS CONCLUDED AT 10:10 A.M.
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CERTIFICATION

I CERTIFY THAT THE FOREGOING IS A CORRECT TRANSCRIPT FROM THE
AUDIO-VISUAL RECORDING OF THE PROCEEDINGS IN THE ABOVE-
ENTITLED MATTER.

AFFIRMATION

I AFFIRM THAT THIS TRANSCRIPT DOES NOT CONTAIN THE SOCIAL

SECURITY OR TAX IDENTIFICATION NUMBER OF ANY PERSON OR ENTITY.

FLORENCE HOYT
Las Vegasg, Nevada 89146

iz! Tm 3qu24/ . 10/24/10
el £ &5

FLORENCE HOYT, TRMNSCRIBER DATE
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Gordon Silver
Attormeys At Law
Ninth Floos
3960 Howard Hughes Pkwy
Las Vegas. Nevada 89169
(702) 796-5555

AFFT

GORDON SILVER

WILLIAM M. NOALL

Nevada Bar No. 3549

Email: wnoall@gordonsilver.com

MARK S. DZARNOSKI

Nevada Bar No. 3398

Email: mdzamoski@gordonsilver.com
3960 Howard Hughes Pkwy., 9th Floor

Las Vegas, Nevada 89169

Tel: (702) 796-5555

Fax: (702) 369-2666

Attomeys for Defendants

Principal Investments, Inc., d/b/a Rapid
Cash, Granite Financial Services, Inc., d/b/a
Rapid Cash, FMMR Investments, Inc., d/b/a
Rapid Cash, Prime Group, Inc., d/b/a Rapid
Cash and Advance Group, Inc., d/b/a Rapid
Cash

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

CASANDRA HARRISON; EUGENE
VARCADOS; CONCEPCION QUINTINO; and
MARY DUNGAN, individually and on behalf of
all persons similarly situated,

Plaintiffs,
vS.

PRINCIPAL INVESTMENTS, INC. d/b/a
RAPID CASH; GRANITE FINANCIAL
SERVICES, INC. d/b/a RAPID CASH; FMMR
INVESTMENTS, INC. d/b/a RAPID CASH;
PRIME GROUP, INC. d/b/a RAPID CASH;
ADVANCE GROUP, INC. d/b/a RAPID CASH;
MAURICE CARROLL, individually and d/b/a
ON SCENE MEDIATIONS; VILISIA
COLEMAN, and DOES I through X, inclusive,

Defendants.

COMES NOW Defendants Principal Investments, Inc., d/b/a Rapid Cash, Granite
Financial Services, Inc., d/b/a Rapid Cash, FMMR Investments, Inc., d/b/a Rapid Cash, Prime
Group, Inc., d/b/a Rapid Cash and Advance Group, Inc., d/b/a Rapid Cash (the “Rapid Cash
Defendaﬁts"), by and through their counsel Gordon Silver, and file this Rapid Cash Defendants'

lof2
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000368

Electronically Filed
11/01/2010 04:12:55 PM

A $ e

CLERK OF THE COURT

CASE NO. A-10-624982-B
DEPT. NO. XI

RAPID CASH DEFENDANTS'
SUBMISSION OF AFFIDAVITS IN
OPPOSITION TO MOTION FOR
PRELIMINARY INJUNCTION

Hearing Date: November 2,2010
Hearing Time: 9:00 a.m.
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Gordan Silver

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

Allorneys At Law

Ninth Floor

3360 Howard Hughes Pkwy
Las Vegas, Nevada 89168

(702) 796-5555

Submission Of Affidavits In Opposition To Motion For Preliminary Injunction.

Attached hereto as Exhibit A is the Affidavit of Jorge Gonzalez. Attached hereto as

Exhibit B is the Affidavit of Randolph Charles Rhode, Jr. Defendants further intend on relying

upon the pleadings and other papers on file herein, including but not limited to the Declaration of

Warrant/Summons of Det. N Chio attached as Exhibit 1 to the Plaintiffs' Reply To

Opposition To Motion For Rule 23 No Contact Order Or, Alternatively, For A Preliminary

[njunction.

DATED this _/  day of November, 2010.

102593-001/1059608
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ORDON SILV
WILLIAM M ALL
Nevada Bar No. 3549
MARK S. DZARNOSKI
Nevada Bar No. 3398
JEFFREY HULET
Nevada Bar No. 10621
3960 Howard Hughes Pkwy., 9th Floor
Las Vegas, Nevada 89169
Tel: (702) 796-5555
Attorneys for Rapid Cash Defendants
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Gordon Silver
Aftomneys A1l aw
Ninth Floor
39RD Boward Hughes Pkwy
s Vegus, Nevada 83169
(702) /9R-5555

AFFT

GORDON SIL.VER

WILLIAM M. NOALL

Nevada Bar No. 3549

Email: wnoall@gordonsilver.com

MARK S. DZARNOSKI

Nevada Bar No. 3398

Email: mdzamoski@gordonsilver.com
3960 Howard Hughes Pkwy., 9th Floor

Las Vegas, Nevada 89169

Tel: (702) 796-5555

Fax: (702) 369-2666

Attorneys for Defendants

Principal Investments, Inc., d/b/a Rapid
Cash, Granile Financial Services, Inc., d/b/a
Rapid Cash, FMMR Investments, Inc., d/b/a
Rapid Cash, Prime Group, Inc., d/b/a Rapid
Cash and Advance Group, Inc., d/b/a Rapid
Cash

DISTRICT COURT

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

CASANDRA HARRISON; EUGENE
VARCADOS; CONCEPCION QUINTINO; and
MARY DUNGAN, individually and on behalf of
all persons similarly situated,

Plaintiffs,
VS.

PRINCIPAL INVESTMENTS, INC. d/b/a
RAPID CASH: GRANITE FINANCIAL
SERVICES, INC. d/b/a RAPID CASH; FMMR
INVESTMENTS, INC. d/b/a RAPID CASH;
PRIME GROUP, INC. d/v/a RAPID CASH;
ADVANCE GROUP, INC. d/b/a RAPID CASH;
MAURICE CARROLL, individually and d/b/a
ON SCENE MEDIATIONS; VILISIA
COLEMAN, and DOES I through X, inclusive,

Defendants.

1, Jorge Gonzalez, being first duly sworn according to law and under penalty of perjury

pursuant Lo the laws of the State of Nevada and the laws of the United States do hereby depose

and say:

CASE NO. A-10-624982-B
DEPT. NO. X1

AFFIDAVIT OF JORGE GONZALEZ

1 of 6
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Gordon Silver
Ausornoys Al {.aw
Ninin Floor
I980 Howard Hughes Pwy
Las Vegas, Nevads 89159
(/02) 196-5555

1. | am over 18 years of age and [ am competent to testify regarding the matters in :
this Affidavit.
2. I am the Vice President of Call Center Operations of the above captioned

defendants d/b/a “Rapid Cash”. My job responsibilities include, among other things, managing
the collection of defaulted loans in Nevada. As such, 1 am familiar with the general policies and
procedures used by Rapid Cash in connection with loans that have fallen into default.

3. I am authorized to make this Affidavit on behalf of the defendants and the facts
set forth herein are based upon my personal knowledge including my review of the business
records of Rapid Cash maintained and created in the regular course of business.

4, Following a default by a Rapid Cash customer, Rapid Cash has adopted
standardized practices which have been designed to meet and/or exceed the requirements of NRS

G604A.475. Such standardizc practices are as set forth below.

5. One business day following the default, Rapid Cash sends out a form letter to the |

customer advising him/her of the default, the toll free number to resolve and work out the loan
and the opportunity to remain a customer in good slanding. A true and correct copy of the one
day letter is attached hereto as Exhibit 1. |

6. Ten days following a default of a Rapid Cash customer, Rapid Cash seunds out a
form letter to the customer advising him/her of the default, the toll free number to resolve and
work out the loan, the amount past due and the Nevada statutory payment plan. A true and
correct copy of this ten day letter is attached hereto as Exhibit 2.

7. fn the past, thirty days following a default of a Rapid Cash customer, Rapid Cash

sends out a form letter to the customer advising him/her of amount of the outstanding loans, and

that adverse action may be taken against the customer for failure 1o pay.

20f6
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] 8. In conformity with NRS 604A.475(1), before Rapid Cash allempts to collect the

J

outstanding balance on a loan in default by commencing any civil action or process of alternative -

3 dispule resolution or repossessing a vehicle, Rapid Cash offers the customer an opporiunity to
! cnter into a repayment plan. See Exhibit 2, supra. |
Z 9. In conformity with 604A 475(2), Rapid Cash delivers to the customer, not later :
4 than 15 days afier the date of default, written notice of the opportunity to enter into a repayment
g | plan. See Exhibit 2, supra.

9 10. In conformity with NRS 604A.475(4)(e)., if a repayment plan is entered into, :
10 during the term of the repayment plan, Rapid Cash does not attempt 1o collect the outstanding l

balance by commencing any civil action or process of alternative dispute resolution or by i

12

repossessing @ vehicle, unless the customer defaults on the repayment plan.
13 .
" 1. If the customer defaults on the repayment plan, Rapid Cash may, but does not
15 necessarily attempt to collect the outstanding balance by commencing a civil action in Clark

16 || County Justice Court as permitted by NRS 604A.475(7).

17 12 In the event a defaulting Rapid Cash customer chooses not (o enter into a |
18 repayment plan authorized by NRS 604A.475, Rapid Cash may, but does not necessarily attempt :
19 to collect the outstanding balance by commencing a civil actioﬁ in Clark County Justice Court. |
j? 13, Defore Rapid Cash chooses to initiate a civil action in Clark County Justice Court .
;2 10 collect upon a customer who has defaulted under a repayment plan or a customer who i

53 | defaulted and has chosen not to enter into a repayment plan, Rapid Cash conducts an
24 || investigation/analysis of the likelihood of Rapid Cash being able to collect upon a judgment

25 |l entered in its favor against the defaulting customer. As a general rule, such investigation

2 . ~ . , . . :
26 includes performing a "skip trace" to determine whether the defaulting customer can be located |
27 !
and served with process and whether the defaulting customer is employed so that wage -
28
Aﬁ:v’::ynsislhl’i;« 3 Of 6

Ninnh Flooe 00 /ioree M davil.doc
3050 Haward Higras Pivy 102593-00fjoree _hitavil.do

Las Venas, Neviaa 83169
1702) 796-5555
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| | garnishment can be used as a tool for collection upon a judgment. Unless Rapid Cash's

2 || investigation/analysis concludes that the defaulting customer has a known address at which
3 I Tocation the defaulting customer can be served and that the defaulting customer is employed and ’

! wages can be garnished, typically, no civil action will be commenced against the defaulting i

Z customer. As a matter of corporate policy, Rapid Cash has chosen nol to intentionally obtain

7 uncollectible judgments against defaulting customers.

R 4. In the event Rapid Cash has concluded that the defaulting customer's whereabouts

9 || are known sa as to effect service and that the judgment is potentially collectible because of !
10 gainful employment or other reasons, Rapid Cash retains an independent, outside attorney to file é
1 a civil action in Clark County Justice Court. '
12 15. 'rom in or about 2004 through approximately April of 2010, upon receipt of a file
:, stamped copy of the Complaint and a duly executed Summons, the Complaint, Summons and |
15 skip tracing results have been provided to On Scene Mediations for service of process. Because

16 || the location of the residence and/or work address of a defaulting customer has already been

17 || determined through skip tracing and because this information was supplied to On Scene ,

18 Mediations, Rapid Cash expected that On Scene Mcdiations would have a very high rate of :
19 successful scrvice and that scrvice would be able to be effectuated without delay. |
j(l) 16. In a number of instances, service could not be obtained on the customer and the l
2 j
29 lawsuit would have to be dismissed and abandoned. }
23 17. in the event we did not hear from a customer (o satisfy the judgment within 60 |

24 | days of it being entered, we would prepare the documents necessary to obtain a wage

25 || gamishment. Then, the garnishment papers would be provided lo our attorney for review.

26 . -
comment, signaiure and filing.
27
28
Gorgon St
Allt?;v:vr; /\,l‘lf.‘;tu ] 4 of6
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Gordon Silver
Attorneys Al Law
Nonth Floor
960 Howardl Hughes Prwy
Las Vizgas, Nevada 89169
(702 798-5555

16.  Although the exacr number of times is presently unknown to me, on information

and belief, on some limited number of occasions, either following receipt of a Notice of Entry of

Judgment or following a wage garnishiment, a defaulting Rapid Cash customer has claimed that .

he/she was never served process.
17. In circumstances as outlined in paragraph 16 hereof, as a matter of policy and

rather than incurring legal fees to contest the service issue, Rapid Cash is willing to stiptilate to

setting aside a default judgment and either negotialing a settlement with the defaulting customer °

or commencing a new case. Because the obligation of the defaulting customer has never, to my
knowledge, been contested, most cases falling into this category result in some form of
settlement with the defaulting customer.

18. Most Rapid Cash default judgments fall within a dollar range of $700 to $900.

5of6
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1 || Typically, the amount of the judgment is the original contracted principal and interest set forth in |

2 || the loan agreement, plus attorneys fees and costs. As a matter of policy, Rapid Cash does not

3 seek damages which include accumulating interest after the date ot default i
* |
5 WHEREFOR AFFIANT SAYETH FURTHER NAUGHT ,
6 Executed this day of November, 2010 at L.as Vegas, Clark County, Ne 7 t
8 =

Wc‘}@alez ‘Z
9 il P

10 | COUNTY OT ?ﬂ%;zg({g['! }
} ss.

1l | STATEOF lﬂ,/)jl/ﬁ }

- _ This instrument was acknowledged before me on /57 day of {2[{[ . 2010 by Jorge
{3 || Gonzalez :

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me :
15 || this day of November, 2010. |

S\ Lumby X Yrsds b

17 || NOTARY PUBLIC ¥ and for said
County and State

PAMELA K. MAGDALENG
NOTARY PUBLIC

HRLRIR STATE GF KANSAS
My Appt. Exp. ZZ:&?U!Z ‘!

Gordon Sitver
Altorneys Ay Low 6 Of 6
gy g i Faoe 102593-001/jorge_ aNidavir.doc
JUL0 Howord Nughes Phwy A
Las Veqas. Nevado 83159
(712 796-5555
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3611 N. Ridge Rd. Wichita, KS 67205

(Date),

RE:  Account #: (ReturnRefno)
Amount Past Due: $(ReturnBalance}

Dear (CustomerName):

Piease consider this notification that the above referenced payment has been returned unpaid to {CompanyName) as
{ReturnReason). Your immediate attention is required to rectify this situation and remain a valued Customer. Please
contact our Customer Relations Department at 1-800-856-2911 for assistance with your past due account.

At (CompanyNama), we understand lemporary financial situations occur, Our desire is 1o be available to help you
through these times. However, you must remain a Cuslomer in good standing for us to do so.

For your convenience, the amount past due can be cleared up by calling 1-800-856-2911 and paying with your debit or
credit card over the phone or by visiting the stare to pay in cash, debit or credit card. Once your loan is paid in full, you will
be eligible to take out another loan. You may also detach the lower portion of this letter and return with payment,
preferably by credit/debit card, cashiers check or money order. (If you can not afford to pay the full balance, you can bring
your account back in goad standing by going to the store and paying ${AdR)-and signing a new contract.)

Any of these solulions will allow you to remain a Customer in good standing with {CompanyName) and negate the
necessity of furlher collection or possible legal aclions.

Unless you notify this office within 30 days afler receiving this notice {hat you dispule the validity of this debt or any portion
thereof, this office will assume thal the debl is valid. If you nofify this affice in writing within 30 days from receiving this
notice that you dispute the validity of this debt ar any pertion thereaof, this office will obtain verification of the debt or obtain
a copy of a judgment and mail you a capy of such judgment or verification. If you request of this office in writing within 30
days after receiving this nofice this office will provide you with the name and address of the original creditor, if different
from the current creditor.

Thank you in advance for your prompt attention to this matter.
Sincerely,

Cuslomer Relations

{CompanyName)

(800) 856-2911

This is an alternpt to collect a debt and any information obtained will be used for that purpose. If you have satisfied the
balance due on the account or have made acceptable payment arrangements, please disregard this letter.

PO Box 101355
Birmingham, AL 35210
{ )MasterCard  ( )Visa Amount Paid §

Account #; {ReturnRefno) Card Number Exp Date __¢
Total Due: ${(ReturnBalance) :

Name on Card

{CustomerName) Customer Relalions
(CustomerAddr) (CompanyNams)
(CustomerCSZ) 3611 North Ridge Road

Wichita, KS 67205

000378

Comment [j1]: Insen Correct
Company Name Logo. The Field to
look for is <<CompanyName>>, 3

Company Names: Speady Cash, AAA

Tille Loans and Rapid Cash

EComment [32]: Date of Letter

)

Comment [j3): Insert this senlanceJ

if <<ATR>> is greater |han $0.01,

000378
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3611 N. Ridge Rd. Wichita, KS 67205

{Date}

RE: Account #: (ReturnRefno)
Amount Past Due: $(ReturnBalance)

Dear (CustomerName):

Piease consider this nolification that the above referenced payment has not been made. Your Signature Loan account is
now past due and in collections. Your immediate attention is required to reclify this siluation and remain a valued
Customer. Please contact our Customer Relations Department at 1-800-856-2911 for assistance with your past due
account.

At (CompanyName), we understand temporary financiat situations occur. Our desire is to be available to help you
through these times. However, you must remain a Customer in good standing for us to do so.

For your convenience, the amount past due can be cleared up by calling 1-800-856-2911 and paying with your debit or
credit card over the phone or by visiling the store to pay in cash, debit or credit card. Once your loan is paid in full, you will
be efigible to take out another foan. You may also detach the lower portion of this letter and retum with payment,
preferably by crediVdebit card, cashiers check or money order. {If you can not afford 1o pay the full balance, you can bring
your account back in good standing ’by going to the slore and paying $(ATR)-aad_signing a new contract.),

Any of these solutions will allow you to remain a Customer in good standing with (CompanyName) and negate the
necessity of further colleclion or possible legal actions.

Unless you notify this office within 30 days after receiving this notice that you dispute the validity of this debt or any portion
thereof, this office will assume thal the debt is valid. If you natify this office in writing within 30 days from receiving this
notice that you dispute the validity of this debt ar any portion thereof, this office will obtaln verification of the debt or obtain
a copy of a judgment and mail you a copy of such judgment or verification. If you request of this office in writing within 30
days after receiving lhis notice this office will provide you with the name and address of the original creditor, if different
from the current creditor.

Thank you in advance for your prompt altention !0 this maller.
Sincerely,

Customer Relations

(CompanyName)

(800) 856-2911

This is an attempt to collect a debt and any information obtained will be used for that purpose. If you have salisfied the
balance due on the account or have made acceptable payment arrangements, please disregard this letter.

PO Box 101355
Birmingham, AL 35210
{ ) MasterCard () Visa Amount Paid §

Account #: (ReturnRefno) Card Number Exp Date____#
Total Due: S(ReturnBalance)

Name on Card

(CustomerName) Cuslomer Relatlons
(CustomerAddr) (CompanyName)
{CustomerCSZz) 3611 North Ridge Road

Wichita, KS 67205

000379

- | Comment [§1]: Insert Comrect

Company Name Logo, The Field to
look for i3 <<CompanyName>>, 3

Company Narnes: Speedy Cash, ARA

Tille Loans and Rapid Cash

{

Comment [j2): Data of Leller

}

Comment [§3}: Insert this senlence J

if <<ATR>> is greater than 30.01.
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3611 N. Ridge Rd. Wichita, K8 67205

(Date)

RE: Returned Check # (ReturnCheckNo)
Account #: (ReturnRefno)
Amount Past Due: §{ReturnBalance)

Dear {CustomerName):

This Is your second and final notification that the above referenced check has been returned unpaid to {CompanyName)
as (ReturnReason). Your immediate attenlion is required to rectify this situation and prevent (CompanyNam?J from
reviewing your file for possible litigation or assignment to a 3 party cailection agency. Please be advised that 3™ party
collection agencies may report lo credit bureaus and any late payments, missed payments, or olther defaults on your
account may be reflected in your credit report.

You can still take care of the amount past due by calling 1-800-856-2911 and paying with your debit or credit card over
the phone or by visiting the store to pay in cash, debit or credit card. Once yaur laan is paid in full, you will be eligible to
take oul another loan. You may also detach the lower portion of this letter and return with payment, preferably by
credit’debit card, cashiers check or money order. {If you can not afford to pay the full balance, you can bring your account

000381

Comment [{1]; Insert Correct
Company Name Logo. The Field to
loak ter is <<CompanyName>>. 3
Company Names: Speedy Cash, AAA
Titte Loans and Rapid Cash

@mment [§2]): Date of Letter ]

back in good standing by going lo the store and paying $(ATR) and leaving a new post daled check to your next pay
date.) ..-- -1 Comment [§3]: Inser this sentence
il <<ATR>> is grealer than $0.01.

You aiso have an opporiunity to enter into a writlen payment plan no later than {ReturnDate + 30}. You must go o one of .

our stores, pay at least 20% of you total balance and sign a payment plan agreement. We will arrange payments with you
to cover the remaining balance after you make your initial payment of 20% over a period of time ending no later than 80
days after the date of defaull. Your total balance due is $(ReturnBalance), which includes a return check charge of
S{ReturnSurcharge).

Depending upon your financial situation, our trained account specialists may be able 1o work out a reasonable payment
arrangement that will allow you to get the accounl back in good standing wilhout paying the balance in full, To find out
about this option, you will need to call 1-800-856-2911.

If you dispute that you owe us money, we will try to informally resolve the dispute. If you or we are not able to resolve the
dispute, then you and we agree to resolve the dispute through arbitration. Please consult your original contract to learn
how to lake advantage of arbilration.

Sincerely,
Customer Relations
{CompanyName)
(800) 856-2911

This is an attempt 1o collect a debt and any information obtained will be used for that purpose. If you have satisfied the
balance due on the account or have made acceptable payment arrangements, please disregard this letter.

PO Box 101355
Birmingham, AL 35210

{ )MaslerCard () Visa Amount Paid § .
Account #: (ReturnRefno) Card Number Exp Date___#
Total Due: $(ReturnBalance)

Name on Card
{CustomerName) Customer Relations
{CustomerAddr) {CompanyName)
(CustomerCSZ) 3611 North Ridge Road

Wichila, KS 67205

<<RelurnDate>> field and ADD 30
Days.

Comment [§4]: Look at ]
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3611 N. Ridge Rd. Wichita, KS 67205

. Comment [§1]: Insent Comect
{Date) Campany Name Logo. The Fieid to
: ' leok for is <<CompanyName>>, 3
Company Names: Speedy Cash, AAA
RE: Account #: (ReturnRefno) Title Loans and Rapid Cash
Amount Past Due: $(ReturnBalance) (_comment [12]: Date of Letter J

Dear (CustomerName):

This is your second notification that the above referenced payment on your Signature Loan has not been made. Your
immediate attention is required to rectify this situation and prevent (CompanyName) from reviewing your file for possible
litigation or assignment to a 3™ party collection agency. Please be advised that v party collection agencies may report to
credit bureaus and any late payments, missed payments, or other defaults on your account may be reflected in your credit
repor.

You can still take care of the amount past due by calling 1-800-856-2911 and paying with your debil or credit card over
the phone or by visiting the store to pay in cash, debit or credit card. Once your lozan is paid in full, you will be eligible to
take out another loan. You may also delach the lower portion of this letter and retum with payment, preferably by
credit/debit card, cashiers check or money order. {If you can not afford to pay ihe fuli balance, you can bring your account

back in good sianding by going to the store and paying ${ATR) and signing a new conlracl.} e [Comment[jB]: Insert this sentence
’\F il <<ATR>> is greater than $0.01.

You also have an opportunity to enter into a wrilten payment plan no later than (ReturnDate + 30). You must go Io one of . { comment [541: Look at

our stores, pay at least 20% of you total balance and sign a payment plan agreement. We will arrange paymenis with you <<ReturnDate>> fleld and ADD 30

to cover the remaining balance after you make your initlal payment of 20% over a period of time ending no lates than 90 Days.

days after the date of default. Your total balance due is $(ReturnBalance), which includes a return check charge of

$(ReturnSurcharge).

Depending upon your financial situation, our trained account specialists may be able to wark out a reasonable payment
arrangement that will allow you to get the account back in good standing without paying the balance in full. To find out
about this option, you will need ta call 1-800-856-2911.

If you dispute that you owe us money, we will try to informally resolve the dispute. If you or we are not able to resolve the
dispute, then you and we agree to resolve the dispute through arbitration. Please consult your original contract to leam
how to take advantage of arbitration.

Sincerely,
Customer Relations
(CompanyName)
(800) 856-2911

This is an altempt to collect a debt and any information obtained will be used for that purpose. If you have satisfled the
balance due on the account or have made acceptable payment arrangements, please disregard this lelter.

PO Box 101355
Birmingham, AL 35210
{ )MasterCard ( }Visa Amount Paig §

Account #: {ReturnRefno) Card Numbar Exp Date___/
Total Due: ${ReturnBalance)

Name on Card

(CustomerNams) Customer Relations
(CustomerAddr) (CompanyName)
(CustomerCSz) 3611 North Ridge Road

Wichita, KS 67205
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GORDON SILVER

WILLIAM M. NOALL

Nevada Bar No. 3549

Email: wnoall@gordonsilver.com

MARK S. DZARNOSKI

Nevada Bar No. 3398

Email: mdzarnoski@gordonsilver.com
3960 Howard Hughes Pkwy., 9th Floor

Las Vegas, Nevada 89169

Tel: (702) 796-5555

Fax: (702) 369-2666

Attorneys for Defendants

Principal Investments, Inc., d/b/a Rapid
Cash, Granite Financial Services, Inc., d/b/a
Rapid Cash, FMMR Investments, Inc., d/b/a
Rapid Cash, Prime Group, Inc., d/b/a Rapid
Cash and Advance Group, Inc., d/b/a Rapid
Cash

DISTRICT COURT

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

CASANDRA HARRISON; EUGENE
VARCADOS; CONCEPCION QUINTING; and
MARY DUNGAN, individually and on behalf of
all persons similarly situated,

Plaintiffs,
vs.

PRINCIPAL INVESTMENTS, INC. d/b/a
RAPID CASH; GRANITE FINANCIAL
SERVICES, INC. d/b/a RAPID CASH; FMMR
INVESTMENTS, INC. d/b/a RAPID CASH;
PRIME GROUP, INC. d/b/a RAPID CASH;
ADVANCE GROUP, INC. d/b/a RAPID CASH;
MAURICE CARROLL, individually and d/b/a
ON SCENE MEDIATIONS; VILISIA
COLEMAN, and DOES I through X, inclusive,

Defendants.

CASE NO. A-10-624982-B
DEPT. NO. XI

AFFIDAVIT OF RANDOLPH CHARLES
RHODE, JR.

I, Randolph Charles Rhode, Ir., being duly sworn, depose and states as follows:

1. I am over 18 years of age and [ am competent to testify regarding the matters in

this Affidavit.

10of5
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1 2. I am the Customer Relations Manager for Nevada operations of the above
2 || captioned defendants d/b/a “Rapid Cash”. My job responsibilities include, among other things,
3 | overseeing and managing personnel, communicating with customers and overseeing collections

4 || matters. As such, I am familiar with the policies and procedures used by Rapid Cash in

(9,

attempting to collect upon loans that are in default.

3. I am authorized to make this Affidavit on behalf of the defendants and the facts

[@5

7 |I set forth herein are based upon my personal knowledge including my review of the business

8 || records maintained and created in the regular course of business on the relevant loans.

9 4. Mary Dungan (“Dungan”) sought a $600.00 loan in February 2009. On February
10 || 25, 2009, she entered into the “Deferred Deposit Agreement & Disclosure Statement”
11 || (“Agreement”).

12 5. On or about March 13, 2009 Rapid Cash attempted to deposit a post dated
13 || instrument executed by Dungan that was initially presented to Rapid Cash on February 25, 2010

14 || in reference to her deferred deposit agreement.

15 6. On or about March 19, 2009, Rapid Cash leamed that the check tendered by
16 || Dungan was not honored by her bank. After default, arrangements were made with Dungan for
17 || her to pay off the loan. Dungan failed to keep these arrangments.

18 7. Ultimately, Rapid Cash filed a lawsuit in Justice Court to collect upon this debt. |
19 || The affidavit of service indicates that Dungan was served on July 31, 2009.

20 8. On or about the evening of August 12, 2009 or the morning of August 13, 2009, a
21 || woman claiming to be Dungan telephoned Rapid Cash offices and left 2 message on voicemail.
22 || That same date, customer service representative Ryam Tolentino returned Dungan's call.
23 || Tolentino spoke with a woman who indicated that Dungan was not available. The August 12 or
24 || 13 telephone call was the first telcphone call received from Dungan since May 7, 2009.

25 9. Dungan again contacted our call center in Kansas on September 16, 2009. She
26 | was directed to call the Nevada Customer Relations Legal Department. On that same date,
27 | Dungan contacted the specified office in Nevada. Records indicate that Dungan spoke with

28 || Tolentino and expressed the desire to make arrangements to pay her debt. Pursuant to Rapid

Gordon Silver
Altomeys At Law 2 of 5
Ninth Floor K . 1
3960 Howard Hughes Pwy 102593-001/rhode_alfidavitdoc
Las Vegas, Nevada 89169
(702) 7965555
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Cash's standard policies and procedures, Dungan would have been made aware of her balance
and the status of her account at this time including the pendency of the legal action that had been
filed. Based upon Rapid Cash records, it appears that, near the end of the conversation, Dungan
stated that she was at work and in the middle of a fire drill and would contact us back and hung
up on our office. At no time during this conversation do Rapid Cash's records reflect that
Dungan stated that she had not been served process or didn't know about the lawsuit.

10.  Rapid Cash records indicate that Rapid Cash was advised on or about December
9, 2009 that a judgment had beén obtained against Dungan.

11.  Further, Rapid Cash records indicate that a gamishment first occurred on or about
January 25, 2010.

12. Rapid Cash next heard from Dungan on or about February 16, 2010 when she
called to complain about the garnishment. Dungan also called Rapid Cash offices on March 10,
2010 and March 26, 2010. During one or more of these calls Dungan, for the first time, asserted
that she had not been served with process.

13. I personally spoke to Dungan on March 10, 2010 and March 26, 2010. I reviewed
the file entries on Dungan's account and determined that her claim of non-service was
questionable because (1) her August 13, 2009 call was the first call to our offices in over 120
days and it occurred within two weeks of the date she was purportedly served with our lawsuit
and (2) pursuant to our standard policies and procedures, she would have been advised of the
pendency of our lawsuit during her September 16, 2009 telephone conversation with Tolentino.
Nevertheless, [ referred her to our collection attorney Sean Hillin. 1 do not know whether
Dungan ever contacted Hillin.

14, Casandra Harrison (“Harrison”) sought a $582.00 loan in March 2009. On March
5, 2009, she entered into the “Deferred Deposit Agreement & Disclosure Statement™

15. On or about April 6, 2009 Rapid Cash attempted to deposit a post dated
instrument that was initially presented to Rapid Cash on March 19, 2010 in reference to her
deferred deposit agreement.

16, On or about April 9, 2009, Rapid Cash learned that the check tendered by

30of5
102593-001/rhede_affidavit.doc

000386

000386

000386



Case No. 59837

In the Supreme Court of FPebada

PRINCIPAL INVESTMENTS, INC. d/b/a RAPID
CAsH; GRANITE FINANCIAL SERVICES,
INC. d/b/a RAPID CASH; FMMR

INVESTMENTS, INC. d/b/a RAPID CASH; Electronically Filed
PRIME GROUP, INC. d/b/a RAPID CASH; and Jan 04 2013 04:10 p.m.
ADVANCE GROUP, INC. d/b/a RAPID CASH, Tracie K. Lindeman

Appellants, Clerk of Supreme Court

VS.
CASSANDRA HARRISON; EUGENE
VARCADOS CONCEPION QUINTINO; and
MARY DUNGAN, individually and on
behalf of all persons similarly situated,

Respondents.

APPEAL

from the Eighth Judicial District Court, Clark County
The Honorable ELIZABETH GONZzALEZ, District Judge
District Court Case No. A624982

APPELLANTS’ APPENDIX
VOLUME 2
PAGES 231-465

DANIEL F. POLSENBERG (SBN 2376) MARK DZARNOSKI

JOEL D. HENRIOD (SBN 8492) Nevada Bar No. 3398

LEWISAND ROCALLP GORDON SILVER
3993 Howard Hughes Parkway, Suite 600 3960 Howard Hughes Parkway
Las Vegas, Nevada 89169 Ninth Floor
(702) 474-2616 Las Vegas, Nevada 89169
DPolsenberg@LRLaw.com (702) 796-5555
JHenriod@LRLaw.com MDzarnoski@GordonSilver.com

MARTIN C. BRYCE, JR., Pro Hac Vice
BALLARD SPAHR LLP
1735 Market Street, Fifty-First Floor
Philadelphia, PA 19103
(215) 665-8500
Bryce@ballardspahr.com

Attorneys for Appellants

Docket 59837 Document 2013-00427



Tab
01
02
03

04
05
06

07
08

09

10

11
12
13

14

15

16

17

LEWIS

AND

ROCA

—LLP——
LAWYERS

TABLE OF CONTENTS TO APPENDIX

Document
Class Action Complaint
Plaintiffs’ Motion to Certify Class

Plaintiffs’ Motion for Rule 23 No Contact Order or,
Alternatively, for a Preliminary Injunction

Motion to Compel Arbitration and Stay All Proceedings;
Application for Order Shortening Time

Opposition to Motion to Compel Arbitration and Stay All
Proceedings

Reply to Opposition to Motion to Compel Arbitration
and Stay of Proceedings

Opposition to Motion to Certify Class

Opposition to Plaintiffs” Motion for Rule 23 No Contact
Order or, Alternatively, for a Preliminary Injunction

Transcript of Hearing on Motions

Plaintiffs’ Reply to Opposition to Plaintiffs’ Motion for
Rule 23 No Contact Order or, Alternatively, for a
Preliminary Injunction

Reply in Support of Motion to Certify Class
Transcript of Hearing on Motion for Class Certification

Rapid Cash Defendants’ Submission of Affidavits in
opposition to Motion for Preliminary Injunction

Transcript of Status Check Re: Class Notice Preliminary
Injunction

Motion to Dismiss for Lack of Subject Matter
Jurisdiction and for Failure to State a Claim Upon Which
Relief May be Granted

Opposition to Motion to Dismiss for Lack of Subject
Matter Jurisdiction and for Failure to State a Claim Upon
Which Relief May be Granted

Plaintiffs” Motion to Clarify Class Notice Process

Date
09/09/10
09/09/10
09/09/10

09/30/10

10/07/10

10/08/10

10/08/10
10/08/10

10/12/10

10/15/10

10/18/10
10/21/10
11/01/10

11/02/10

12/16/10

01/06/11

01/11/11

Vol.

|

Pages
01-28
29-78
79-98

99-118
119-161
162-194

195-219
220-230

231-264

265-285

286-320
321-366
367-388

389-404

405-447

448-465

466-522



18

19
20

21
22
23
24

25
26

27

28

29
30

31

32
33
34

35
36

37

LEWIS

AND

ROCA

—LLP——
LAWYERS

Reply to Opposition to Motion to Dismiss for Lack of
Subject Matter Jurisdiction and for Failure to State a
Claim Upon Which Relief May be Granted

Opposition to Motion to Certify Class notice

Reply in Support of Motion to Clarify Class Notice
Process

Transcript of Hearing on Motion to Certify Class
First Amended Class Action Complaint
Transcript of Hearing Re: Language for Class Notice

Motion to Compel Arbitration of First Amended
Complaint and Stay All proceedings

Transcript of Status Check

Order Granting Class Certification and Appointing Class
Counsel

Motion to Reconsider Class Certification or, in the
Alternative, Motion to Decertify Class

Opposition to Motion to Compel Arbitration and Stay All
Proceedings

Plaintiffs’ Motion to Approve Notice

Reply to Opposition to Motion to Compel Arbitration of
First Amended Complaint and Stay All proceedings

Opposition to Motion to Reconsider Class Certification
or, in the Alternative, Motion to Decertify Class

Transcript of Hearing on Motion to Compel Arbitration
Opposition to Plaintiffs’ Motion to Approve Notice

Reply in Support of Defendants’ Motion to Reconsider
Class Certification or in the Alternative for
Decertification

Transcript of Hearing on motions

The Class’s Reply in Support of Motion to Approve
Class Notice

Order Denying Motion to Compel Arbitration of the First
Amended Complaint

01/20/11

02/04/11
02/11/11

02/15/11
02/28/11
09/15/11
09/21/11

09/22/11
09/29/11

10/07/11

10/07/11

10/14/11
10/18/11

10/25/11

10/25/11
11/02/11
11/10/11

11/11/11
11/14/11

11/30/11

W W w w w

w

523-535

536-549
550-558

559-579
580-605
606-611
612-637

638-645
646-653

654-679

680-766

767-773
774-796

797-814

815-834
835-841
842-856

857-882
883-889

890-893



38 Notice of Entry of Order to Reconsider Class 12/09/11 4 894-898
Certification or, in the Alternative, Motion to Decertify
Class

39 Notice of Entry of Order Granting Motion to Approve 01/17/12 4 899-904
Notice

40 Motion to Dismiss Defendants’ Counterclaims; 01/26/12 4 905-928
Alternative Motion to Strike Counterclaim Class Action
Allegations

41 Rapid Cash Defendants’: (1) Motion to Amend Class 02/09/12 5 929-947
Notice; (2) Motion to Enlarge Time for Mailing Class
Notice; and (3) Motion for Order Shortening Time

42  Opposition to Plaintiffs’ Motion to Dismiss Defendants’  02/14/12 5 948-966
Counterclaims; Alternative Motion to Strike
Counterclaim Class Action Allegations

43  Class Plaintiffs’ Opposition to Rapid Cash Defendants’:  02/22/12 5 967-983
(1) Motion to Amend Class Notice; (2) Motion to
Enlarge Time for Mailing Class Notice; and (3) Motion
for Order Shortening Time

44  Reply to Defendants’ Opposition to Motion to Dismiss 02/23/12 5 984-999
Defendants’ Counterclaims; Alternative Motion to Strike
Counterclaim Class Action Allegations

45  Reply in Support of Rapid Cash Defendants’: (1) Motion 02/27/12 5  1000-1014
to Amend Class Notice; (2) Motion to Enlarge Time for
Mailing Class Notice

46  Order Granting Motion to Dismiss Defendants’ 03/15/12 5 1015-1024
Counterclaims, Denying Defendants’ Motion to Amend
Notice, and Granting Defendants’ Motion to Enlarge
Time for Mailing Class Notice

47  Motion for Stay Pending Appeal of the Order Denying 05/08/12 5  1025-1056
Defendants’ Motion to Compel Arbitration and
Application for Order Shortening Time

48  Opposition to Defendants” Motion for Stay Pending 05/11/12 5  1057-1065
Appeal of the Order Denying Defendants’ Motion to
Compel Arbitration

49  Transcript of Hearing on Motion for Stay Pending 05/15/12 5 1066-1093
Appeal

LEWIS

AND

ROCA

—LLP—
LAWYERS 1



50

o1

52

53

54

55

56

S7
58

59

60

61
62

LEWIS

AND

ROCA

—LLP——
LAWYERS

Order Granting in part Rapid Cash’s Motion for Stay
Pending Appeal of the Order Denying Defendants’
Motion to Compel Arbitration

Motion to Dismiss Claims Seeking Relief from Justice-
Court Judgments

Motion for Order to Show Cause Why Rapid Cash
Should Not be Held in Contempt of Court for Violation
of Stay; Motion to Strike

Ex Parte Motion for Order Shortening Time

Opposition to Motion for Order to Show Cause and to
Strike

Reply to Opposition to Motion for Order to Show Cause
Why Rapid Cash Should Not be Held in Contempt of
Court for Violation of Stay; Motion to Strike

Motion to Dismiss Claims Seeking Relief form Justice-
Court Judgments

Opposition to Defendants’ Motion to Dismiss

Transcript of Status Check and Hearing on Motion to
Dismiss

Notice of Entry of Order (1) Denying Dismissal,
Decertification and Arbitration and (2) Granting Stay
Pending Appeal

Supplemental Notice of Appeal
Case Appeal Statement
Affidavit of Richard Duke Gee

05/22/12

05/22/12

06/01/12

06/05/12

06/19/12

06/20/12

07/09/12

07/11/12
07/12/12

07/20/12

07/31/12

07/31/12
09/27/10

1094-1097

1098-1112

1113-1119

1120-1125

1126-1140

1141-1147

1148-1162

1163-1175
1176-1210

1211-1216

1217-1233

1234-1239
1240-1312



000231

1€2000

000231

000231



2€2000

1400 FHL 40 MET0

Y

0102 6T 130

Q3AI3O3H

000232

¢ O
ORIGINAL

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

¥ * x * %

CASANDRA HARRISON, et al.

Plaintiffs

V3.

PRINCIPAL INVESTMENTS, INC.,
et al.

Defendants

Electronically Filed
10/15/2010 08:49:12 AM

Q%;.W

CLERK OF THE COURT

CASE NO. A-524982
DEPT. NO. XI

Transcript of
Proceedings

BEFORE THE HONORABLE ELIZABETH GONZALEZ, DISTRICT COURT JUDGE

HEARING ON MOTIONS

TUESDAY, OCTOBER 12, 2010

APPEARANCES:

FOR THE PLAINTIFFS: DAN I. WULZ,

ESQ.

JENNIFER DORSEY, ESQ.
J. RANDALL JONES, ESQ.

FOR THE DEFENDANTS:

MARK S. DZARNOSKI, ESQ.

MARTIN BRYCE, ESQ.

COURT RECORDER:

JILL HAWKINS

TRANSCRIPTION BY:

FLORENCE HOYT

District Court Las Vegas, Nevada 89146

Proceedings recorded by audio-visual recording, transcript

produced by transcription service.
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LAS VEGAS, NEVADA, TUESDAY, OCTOBER 12, 2010, 9:15 A.M.
(Court was called to order)

THE COURT: ©Oh. Good. My case I have to make
disclosures on.

Mr. Jones, I was on the phone with Mr. Jones your
brother and Mr. Peek and Mr. Campbell, and I apologize for
being late.

MR. JONES: Your Honor, I undexrstand. .

THE COURT: BAll right. Here's my disclosures on
this case. Or at least I think they relate to this case.

This is Case Number A-624982. I used to be chairman of the

board of Clark County Legal Services before I was a judge.

And I think, Mr. Dzarnoski, you called me about issues related

to this case and who you should talk to within the court
system,

MR. DZARNOSKI: Spoke with Judge Togliatti.

THE COURT: And I sent you somewhere else. Or did
she call me and say who I should send you to?

MR. DZARNOSKI: I spoke with Judge -- I spoke with
-- I spoke with Judge Ritchie.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. DZARNOSKI: Judge Ritchie asked Judge Togliatti
to call me, and I spoke with Judge Togliatti. I never spoke
with you, Your Honor.

THE COURT: My note says I can't remember if I
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e ]

actually talked to you or Jenna or Melissa asked me who you
should talk to.

MR. DZARNOSKI: You did not speak with me.

THE COURT: Okay. I was on vacation when some of
the issues related to these kind of things occurred, and as
presiding civil judge I delegated an administrative
investigation on this to Judge Togliatti, who was acting as
presiding civil judge at that time. She reported on the
results of her investigation, which was mainly how many cases
did we have in District Court that were affected by the
process server issue at a civil judges meeting. And when I
was recruiting attorneys to do pro bono, I think at Jones
Vargas, I asked Barbara Buckley if they were filing a class
action, and she said ves.

And then I also have a disclosure about John Gutke,
who I think now works for your firm and used to be my law
clerk.

MR. DZARNOSKI: He does work for our firm.

THE COURT: Okay. Those are all my disclosures.

MR. DZARNOSKI: May I have a moment to speak with --

THE COURT: You may have a moment.

MR. DZARNOSKI: -- my client representative?

THE COURT: And by the way, I don't think that
anything that I just told you would cause me not to be fair,

which is why I didn't disqualify myself. But I went through
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the list for you.

MR. DZARNOSKI: Thank you.

{Pause in the proceedings)

MR. DZARNOSKI: None of those disclosures cause us
concern, Your Honor.

THE COURT: All right. Then let's start with your
motion to compel arbitration and stay all proceedings.

MR. DZARNOSKI: May I as a preliminary matter
introduce Mr. Martin Bryce from Ballard Spar.

MR. BRYCE: Good morning, Your Honor.

THE CQOURT: Good morning.

MR, DZARNOSKI: And I tried to get an order
shortening time on admitting him pro hac vice. We have
circulated it to opposing counsel. If they would not object,
I have an order.

THE COURT: Is there any objection?

MR. JONES: ©No cbjection, Your Honor.

THE COURT: I'd be happy to sign your order, Mr.
Dzarnoski. And I'm sorry, but I got it yesterday and I
couldn't set it for today because I didn't have a day's
judicial notice.

MR. DZARNOSKI: I understand. We tried Friday, and
you were in trial or something.

THE COURT: I'm always in trial. There you go.

MR. DZARNQSKI: Thank you, dJudge.
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THE COURT: All right. 1It's your motion.

MR. DZARNOSKI: Again good morning, Your Honor.

Let me start with the observation that I'm fully
aware that you have ruled on far more arbitration clauses than
I'm ever going to read in my lifetime. That said, my review
of the current arbitration agreement that Rapid Cash is using
is that it's probably the most consumer-friendly arbitration
provision I've ever seen, and I'm hoping that you also believe
that.

Insofar as I am awarxe, the two most recent cases
that have sort of bubbled through our District Court system
that involve arbitration clauses and class action waivers were
before you and were before Judge Denton. You compelled
arbitration in an -- for an arbitration clause containing a
class action waiver in the Nissan Motors case in October of
2008. Judge Denton compelled arbitration in the Hyundai
Motors case about a week after your decision, and that has
been sent up to the Nevada Supreme Court on a writ of mandamus
and is currently pending before the Supreme Court of the State
of Nevada.

THE COURT: For almost two years.

MR. DZARNOSKI: Yes. I had the opportunity last
night to read the supplemental briefs that have recently been
filed in that case, and I would firgt like to bring your

attention to the fact that the Nevada Supreme Court is acutely
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aware of two recent United States Supreme Court cases that are
at issue or are relevant to this case. And one is Stolt-
Nielsen. Excuse me for turning my back, Your Honor.

THE COURT: 1It's all right, Mr. Dzarnoski. I know
there's a lot of paperwork that you probably need to get.

MR. DZARNOSKI: The second is Rent-A-Center West,

Inc. v. Jackson. And the Nevada Supreme Court had asked most

recently for supplemental briefs in light of those two cases
for the parties to brief whether or not the District Court
would have jurisdiction to hear claims regarding the validity
and enforceability of arbitration agreements if the
arbitration agreement provides that that should go forward and
be decided by an arbitrator.

THE COURT: Can I ask a question, though, to sort of
cut to the chase here,

MR. DZARNOSKI: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: I agree with you that this is a very
well-written arbitration clause, and the right to reject
arbitration provision is probably one that would generally
make this clause valid.

My question is, though, given the filing of the
litigation by Rapid Cash and its related entities, don't you
think there has been a waiver of the arbitration provision
given the wording that is contained in it?

MR. DZARNOSKI: No, Your Honor.

—
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THE COURT: Tell me why.

MR. DZARNOSKI: Yes, Your Honor. First, I believe
that the issue of waiver, again, would be decided by the
arbitrator, rather than before this Court. That goes to the
issue of the validity, the enforceability, and the scope of
the arbitration agreement. Those are covered clearly and
unambiguously in both the older version of the arbitration
agreement and the current version of the arbitration
agreement. So that issue I don't even think is before you.
So I think an arbitrator would be the one to decide whether
there's been a waiver. But let's dispense with that for a
moment and let me answer the question.

The old agreement specifically excludes from the
definition of claims those things that were filed in the Small
Claims Court, reserves the right for the parties to file
actions in Small Claims Court. The newer version of the --
I'll call it the state-of-the-art arbitration agreement
specifically indicates again that those cases can be filed in
Small Claims Court, and it contains the language that there is
no waiver that should be inferred or implied from filing the
cases.

And let me look at the exact language in here.
Quote, "Even if the parties have elected to litigate a claim
in court, you or we may elect arbitration with respect to any

claim made by a new party or any new claim asserted in that
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lawsuit, and nothing in that litigation shall constitute a
waiver of any rights under this arbitration provision."

S0 therefore we have a clear statement that there's
no waiver by filing of a Small Claims Court action. Does that
answer your question?

THE COURT: Not really. But I understand the
position.

MR. DZARNOSKI: ©Okay. May I ask, though, and cut to
the chase, why is it the language isn't sufficient?

THE COURT: I think here you have claims that go
beyond -- I'm sorry, litigation claims in this complaint that
go beyond what could be argued would be subject to an
arbitration provision especially given the manner in which at
least one of the codefendants, who apparently has now been
convicted, conducted himself.

MR. DZARNOSKI: Well, I --

THE COURT: So I certainly think that it is
problematic for your client to try and enforce an arbitration
provision that is brought as a result of a discovery of
problems with process in the other actions that they chose to
1itigate despite the arbitration provision and the definition
of claim.

MR. DZARNOSKI: Well --

THE COURT: Because the arbitration provision says

~- it gsets forth when and how claims "which you or we have

000239

000239



012000

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

000240

against one another will be arbitrated instead of litigated in
court.” Okay. That's great. Your guys picked litigation.
Even if it's in Small Claims, and I assume the argument the
argument under the newer definition, that means that you don't
get to -- you get Lo not have a waiver. But given some of the
other conduct that's alleged, it is of concern to me as to
whether I should determine that is a waiver of the provision
because of at least the nature of what went on in these very
unusual circumstances and the unusual nature of the claims in
this particular case.

MR. DZARNOSKI: Thank you for that clarification.

THE COURT: Do you understand what I'm saying?

MR. DZARNOSKI: I do.

THE COURT: Because this complaint isn't just, we
don't owe the money, or, we were forced to -- or executed this
agreement for payday loan or whatever it's called under
duress. This isn't -- that's not what this case is about.
This case is a lot bigger than that.

MR. DZARNOSKI: Absoclutely much bigger than that.
However -- and let me respond in two ways. One, I think that
the issue you're bringing up now is different than the issue

of waiver. The case of Stolt-Nielsen, for instance, makes it

very clear that under the Federal Arbitration Act the parties
are free and the United States Supreme Court will allow

parties to define anything they want to arbitrate. I mean,
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they could specifically identify this, this, this, and this
that they want to arbitrate and exclude that. aAnd when they
have done that and they have specifically put the things that
are included in the arbitration and they have excluded other
claims from the arbitration agreement, then the agreement of
the parties will be enforced. And you wouldn't have a waiver
situation if you have carved out a specific portion of claims
that you are not going to arbitrate. So you don't have the
issue of waiver. That's what we've done here.

But the other issue, more directly to what you are
speaking of, is that, again, in the definition of "claims"
under both agreements the claims involve -- include a broad
array --

THE COURT: Yeah, it does.

MR. DZARNOSKI: -- of matters, one of which is
specifically included "disputes arising out of collection of
any amounts you owe."

THE COURT: And that's small Arxrabic (5) -~ or, I'm
sorry, small Roman (v).

MR. DZARNOSKI: That's in the new arbitration
agreement under "Definition of Claim."

THE COURT: And it's under "Meaning of Claims,*"
small Roman (v).

MR. DZARNOSKI: That would be under the old

arbitration agreement, correct. So we have a specific
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reference to anything that derives in both of them out of
collection efforts. There is -- I don't see any way you can
get around looking at this as the filing of a Small Claims
Court matter that is excluded from the definition of claims
for arbitration is not part of the collection effort that
Rapid Cash has undertaken in order to get its money.

So we are specifically dealing with all claims that
might arise out of the collection issues with respect to both
agreements. And therefore, even though it involves failure to
serve process, it still derives out of those collection
¢laims. And keep in mind that every one of those parties or
persons who c¢laim -- although right now we have four, let's
keep that in wind, we don't have a massive amount of people
who have claimed that they have not been served process. The
conviction that you just referred doesn't have anything to do
with Rapid Cash customers. None of those victims that were
subject to the criminal prosecution came from Rapid Cash's
customers. That dealt solely with a collection agent, and I
can't remember the collection company -- Richland Holdings, I
believe. So we have four people that are sitting here. All
four of those people could file a 60(b) motion to set aside
their default judgment in Small Claims Court and proceed. And
all four of those, as a matter of fact, could choose
arbitration if they wanted to. They could make a filing and

choose arbitration on their own. But --

11
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THE COURT: And do you think the County Commission
is going to approve the master that Justice Court asked for to
assist with that process?

MR. DZARNOSKI: Your Honor, I -- you mentioned that
I have discussed with Judge Togliatti, and I'm not certain I
should make that the request as to what I --

THE COURT: I don't -- yeah. Okay. I just know
that there's something on the County Commission agenda about a
master for Justice Court dealing with it.

MR. DZARNOSKI: And believe me, Your Honor, Rapid
Cash is ready, willing, and able to assist the County and
anybody else to try and resolve all of these claims.

Now, I would also like to point out, though, Your
Honor, in terms of the first arbitration agreement -- because
we -- you have to look at the terms of both.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. DZARNOSKI: In the older arbitration agreement
clearly the issue of falsification of affidavits would fall
under the definition of claims, because the definition of
claims is "Any claim, dispute, or controversy between you and
us that arises from or relates in any way to service --" oh.
I'm soxry. This is -- this is the new one. Let me get to the
old one., Lots of paper.

"Claims means any and all claims, disputes, or

controversies that arise under common law, federal or state

12
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statute or regulation, or otherwise.” Doesn't say, in
connection with this agreement. It doesn't say that are
limited to collection matters. There's no limitation
whatsoever. It is broad and covers every single claim or
dispute that arises under common law or under statute.

Every claim that the plaintiffs have made in this
case arise under common law or under statute. So under that
circumstance, no matter how bizarre, you look at the situation
that we're all facing now, clearly the first agreement covers
all of those disputes. I argue strenuously that because it is
in connection with collection efforts that it falls under both
the current agreement and the initial agreement. But the
first agreement certainly covers all of those claims.

THE COURT: Thank you, Mr. Dzarnoski.

MR. DZARNOSKI: Is there any further questions?

THE COURT: Not yet. I'll probably have more to you
after the other side goes.

MR. DZARNOSKI: Thank you, Your Honor.

THE COURT: I do see a lot of arbitration
provisions. This one's better than most.

MS. DORSEY: I would agree with you. It is better
than most on the surface. It absolutely looks better. But in
effect it's no better than any other.

And, Your Honor, I think that you got right to the

heart of the question, which is, given the filing of the
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litigation in the ridiculous numbers by Rapid Cash -- we're

talking about almost 17,000 Justice Court actions in the last

five years, 17,000. We don't have a single anecdotal piece of

evidence that they've ever tried to arbitrate a single claim
under their agreement with any of thege customers, but we do
know that they've used the Justice Court in the last year --
last five years 17,000 times.

And so when we look at what constitutes a waiver

under Nevada law we look to that Nevada Gold case

particularly. Aand the two factors that I think are most
important, the first one is conduct that indicates an intent
to waive, conduct that indicates that you would prefer to use
the District -- or prefer to use the court system over
arbitration. I think 17,000 cases probably gets us there.

And interestingly enough, the defendant has failed
to provide you with any case of litigation of this type of
magnitude where a court did not find that there was waiver.
And in fact I would suggest that this is such an egregious --
such an egregious case of using the court systems over
invoking an arbitration clause that you won't find a case
that's quite this severe.

And the second prong under the Nevada Gold case is

prejudice. And we also know that of these 17,000 cases

they've taken most of these to judgment, and there have been

numerous courts that have held that if you take a case through

14
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litigation to judgment, the person you get the judgment
against is sufficiently prejudiced that there's a waiver
found. This is a pretty clear-cut case of waiver. I would --
I would argue that you probably wouldn't find a case of such a
clear indication to waive the arbitration provision.

Now, defense counsel cited to two different recent
Supreme Court cases, and he suggests that these Supreme Court
cases would lead you to decide that there was no waiver here.

The first one is the Stolt-Nielgen case. And he tells you

that this case out of the Supreme Court says the parties’
agreements have to be enforced on their terms.

The Stolt-Nielsen case is so completely

distinguishable on its facts that it has absolutely no

application here. In Stolt-Nielsen we were talking about two

multi-national companies, not consumers, not payday loan
consumers who really have no options monetarily like our
clients do. The case is so distinguishable. And essentially

what the Stolt-Nielsen case holds is that when you have two

sophisticated, multi-national businesses you can apply the
contract that they have -- that they've negotiated between
them. It is not a case that applies any state law. It's
completely a federal case. And the issues that you're
presented with in this case are not present in that case. So
that's just simply not a case that you need to look to when

you decide the issue in front of you right now.
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The other thing that I want to talk about is how
this c¢lause truly, even though it may appear to be a better
consumer clause, in fact I think defense counsel said that it
was one of the most consumer-friendly provisions he's ever
seen, how it doesn't in fact make it more consumer friendly.
He essentially indicates that we've got this opt out clause
and so -~

THE COURT: It does. It has a right to reject
arbitration after they give you the money.

MS. DORSEY: A right to reject the -- that's
absolutely trxue. But what it doesn't do is it doesn’'t change
the fact that this is a completely adhesion contract. None of
these customers can change a single word in the agreement at
the time that it's being signed. What it does allow someone
to do is within the 30 days after they go home after signing
this agreement they can send a certified letter to Kansas,
saying, I don't want to have arbitration apply to me in the
event that we have some kind of a dispute.

Well, in order for those kind of clauses to be
enforceable they need to be meaningful. And the disputes in
this case all arose more than 30 days after the signing of
these contracts. So none of these customers would have ever
had the opportunity to recognize that they should opt out of
this arbitration clause, because the conduct that the

defendants are involved in all happened more than 30 days
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later. So this is just not a meaningful opt out provision.
It doesn't change the nature of this as an adhesion contract.

So essentially what you have here is a provision
that forecloses the ability for these consumers to come into
court. Now, they've suggested -- there are four plaintiffs at
this point. They've suggested that all four of these
plaintiffs could go to the Justice Court and they can file an
action to have their default judgments reopened. Again, we
need to look at how realistic this is. First of all, that's
just the four that we represent right now. As you know, we
framed this as a class action because we believe that of those
17,000 lawsuits they filed in the last five years there are
going to be more than four people who were the victim of the
service that was employed for our clients.

S0 essentially what they're saying is that these
low-income clients need to get a lawyer, they need to go to
court, and they need toc set aside these judgments, so that
they're suggesting that these people can actually, one, get a
lawyer to do this for them, and, two, that the court system
can actually shoulder the burden of having all of these people
individually file lawsuits. And, as you know, Your Honor,
that's not something that this court system can bear,
particularly if we get up to the kind of numbers that we
anticipate in this case, particularly 17,000.

And finally, what makes them think that they

17
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wouldn't then invoke the arbitration clause and force all of
these people into arbitration even if they individually filed
these lawsuit? So if they're suggesting that with these four
we need to have the -- they're invoking the arbitration clause
and that it should apply, there's no reason for us to believe
that they wouldn't do the exact same thing if these people
filed individual actions to set aside those default judgments.
I also want to address the scope of these
arbitration clauses, because defense counsel discussed those
with you. The -- he notes that the definition of "claims® is
extremely brocad. And I would agree with that. It's extremely
broad. But what it isn't is so broad that these consumers
should have known at the time that they signed these
agreements that an action like this, an action arising £from
fraud, not from legitimate collection activities, but actual
fraud would be covered under an arbitration provision in a
loan agreement. That's just not something that's foreseeable.
And so even, Your Honor, if the language appears to
include something all encompassing, he indicates that it
includes any common-law or statutoxry claim whatsoever, go it's
completely all encompassing. But the law says that there have
to be -- says that there has to be limits on these incredibly
broad provisions. Courts have held that you can't apply
contractual arbitration agreement to tortiocus conduct that a

consumer could not have reasonable foreseen when entering into
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the agreement; and here this dispute really has nothing to do
with the contractual relationship between these parties, but
the subsequent post-contractual tortious conduct by these
parties and a fraud on the court.

So we cited to the Aiken case in our brief, Your
Honor. And, like the court in the Aiken case, this Court
should refuse to interpret this arbitration clause so broadly
to apply it to outrageous tortious conduct that the consumers
could not have possibly anticipated. BAnd that's exactly what
we're asking this Court to find here, that this is --

THE COURT: And that's your public policy argument.

MS. DORSEY: That is the public policy argument.

And unless you have any questions --

THE COURT: No. Thanks.

Mr. Dzarnoski.

MR. JONES: Your Honor, and I apologize, I've got a

deposition that starts at 10:00, and I'm going to have to run.

So I wanted to let you know that's why I was leaving.
THE COURT: Thank you, Mr. Jonesg. Have a nice day.
MR. JONES: Although I would be very interested to
stay to the end of this argument, but --
THE COURT: I'm sure we'll be done soon.
MR. JONES: In that case, Your Honor, I may --
THE COURT: It's only 9:41.

MR. JONES: I may walt another few minutes.
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THE COURT: Unless you've got to drive down to

Howard Hughes, you might make it.

MR. JONES: I will wait for a few more minutes, Your

Honor. Thank you.

THE COURT: Mr. Dzarnoski.

MR. DZARNOSKI: Thank you, Your Honor.

I'm going to start out a little bit in a backwards
direction. But let me address the last point as to
foreseeability and Counsel's argument that nobody could
foresee that this might -- these arbitration provisions might
include claims of fraud. Let me read from the arbitration
provision.

"rClaim’ is to be given the broadest possible
meaning and includes claims of every kind and nature,
including, but not limited to, initial claims, counterclaims,
cross-claims, and third-party claims and claims based on any
constitution, statute, regulation, ordinance, common law,
including rules relating to contracts, negligence, fraud, or
other intentional wrongs in equity."

You've got an arbitration agreement that in its own
explicit language tells the person that it is going to include
claims of fraud. I don't see how you can make a claim that
anybody who reads that would not understand that the
arbitration agreement would cover claims of fraud.

THE COURT: But don't you think it's against public
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policy to have all fraud claims covered by an arbitration
provision?

MR. DZARNOSKI: No, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. DZARNOSKI: The Federal Arbitration -- the
Federal Arbitration provision -- or Administration Act has
been specifically found by the United States Supreme Court to
trump state statutes and/oxr state public policy provisions
because the parties are allowed to arbitrate. And in this
particular case the Federal Arbitration Act applies. Public
policy issue just simply isn't going to fly in the face of the
public policy that the United States Congress had when it
enacted the Federal Arbitration Act. So you've got two public
policies. I mean, you can either enforce the public policy
that the United States Supreme Court set for us, and the
Congress of the United States said is preeminent, or you can
enforce what the Counsel here believes is a state public
policy. We think the choice is pretty clear and ought to be
done with the United States Supreme Court and the
Congressional legislation.

As to, again, issue of waiver, Counsel had brought
up some Nevada caselaw dealing with the issues of waiver. 1I'd
point out that all of those cases involve proceeding in
litigation with respect to a particular claim. We wouldn't be

sitting here today saying that since we proceeded with a claim
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to collect and we went into the Justice Court to collect, that
we --

THE COURT: But don't you think that's in and of
itself against public policy to go in and get a judgment and
then under your arbitration provision to try and specifically
take out any actions relating to those collection activities,
including, arguably, setting aside the judgment?

MR. DZARNOSKI: They can bring those claims in the
Small Claims Court action. We're not saying they can't bring
those claims. They have the relief in that action. 2And we
would not be able to remove those claims in that action to
arbitration, because we have proceeded with the litigation.

THE COURT: But the claims that are being made in
this case, which would then be a compulsory counterclaim in
the Small Claims Court action, would not fall within the
jurisdiction of eithexr the Small Claims Court or the Justice
Court, and then I have a joinder problem when all of those
cases get transferred by Justice Court up to District Court
from a practical standpoint.

MR. DZARNOSKI: &and from a practical standpoint if
that happened and they did -- and you're right, if they
asserted those compulsory counterclaims, we had the issues of
jurisdiction and it gets moved back up here to you, you know
what, we file another motion to compel arbitration because

these provisions say that any counterclaims or new claims that
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comeé in are then subject to the arbitration provision. So
we're right back where we are today.

But you're right, that is -- that is what should
happen under this agreement if they are going to be following
the agreement, is they should be asserting those in Small
Claims Court. We will then have to decide what happens in
Small Claims Court when the facts play out. But you can't
make a decision based on what might happen later after Small
Claims.

But I also want to point out that they indicate that
that's unworkable, and you seem to be accepting that a little
bit --

THE COURT: Only from a practical, administrative
standpoint as the presiding judge of the Civil pivision, not
in my capacity here today as a Business Court judge.

MR. DZARNOSKI: And I am ever hopeful that we will
find a way to work with the special master and the Legal Aid
Society of Southern Nevada to find a mechanism to keep the
judicial system from being overburdened by this problem. That
is in all of our interests, and I think that we can do that.
But we don't need to do it within the context of this case.

THE COURT: Let me ask you another question to focus
on. Ms. Popick [sic] said there were about 17,000 examples
anecdotally of times that your client had chosen the

litigation system and there was never a selection by your
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client of arbitration in this jurisdiction for any of its
customers enforcing an agreement.

MR. DZARNOSKI: Collection actions. We've only
brought collection actions.

THE COURT: Okay. But all of them have been
litigation, as opposed to some other collection actions have
an arbitration that they proceed through for purposes of the
collection, and then file a petition with the court to confirm
an arbitration award.

MR. DZARNOSKI: We have never filed -- we, wmy
clients, have never filed a direct claim for arbitration. It
is my understanding that there has been, and I'm not sure in
this jurisdiction, maybe I could get a nod, that there has
been a request for removal to arbitration. I'm not sure in
this jurisdiction, as well. In other jurisdictions there have
been requests to remove Small Claims Court actions to
arbitration by the customer.

Now, and I also want to bring this out as very
important, because Counsel's saying these people, it's not
workable for them to f£ile in Small Claims Court. Don't
discount the fact that each of these people could claim or
file for removal and arbitration on their own. As you saw in
this -- in this agreement, that is a very, very valid
alternative for each of these individuals to follow because of

the bump-up provision in terms of damages.
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THE COURT: Extra hundred bucks?

MR. DZARNOSKI: No. An extra 10,000, Your Honor,.
The minimum amount of the judgment is the jurisdictional limit
of the Justice Court plus $100. So if they're out there with
a $300 loan and they go to arbitration and they win and they
get a money judgment against my client, in arbitration they
get a judgment for a minimum of $10,100 plus attorney fees.
So you tell me how this prejudices any of these customers to
have -- to have the ability to go in and challenge in
arbitration. This is what makes this so consumer friendly.

THE COURT: ©No, I think this is a better arbitration
provision. Ifve said it a couple of times. This arbitration
provision taken in total is a better arbitration provision
than many I have seen. My concerns are, and I think I've hit
them for you, are waiver and the public policy issue. Band,
you know, those are to me the two central concerns, because T
think your client in drafting the agreement probably did a
very, very good job. The question is once we get past the
drafting and we're in the how do they act with respect to the
agreement, we may have some problems.

MR. DZARNOSKI: But when you get to how you act --
and again, on the issue of waiver I've already covered the
aspect that the cases that have been brought forward by
plaintiffs’' counsel are cases where we've proceeded in

litigation as to a specific claim. They say we have never --
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we haven't shown a case to you where there's been this number
of Small Claims Court actions that have been filed where a
court has not found a waiver. Well, Your Honor, they haven't
brought forth a case where anybody's filed Small Claims Court
actions and collection agent actions in a Small Claims Court
and subseguently had somebody or some court rule that there is
a waiver. That has not happened, and they don't have a case
that they can provide to you that shows that.

The fact of the matter is that the Rapid Cash
defendants have not taken any action or filed any action or
proceeded in any litigation that is inconsistent with their
rights under this arbitration agreement. And again, and I

can’t emphasize the Stolt-Nielsen case enough, the Stolt-

Nielsen case stands squarely for that proposition that the
parties can decide which claims get arbitrated and which
claims don't. And when the parties decide that, then that's
the way the agreement is going to be enforced.

The Rapid Cash defendants have filed their actions
in Small Claims Court because that was a carve out from the
arbitration provision agreement. For a carve out, something
not covered by the arbitration agreement, to now be considered
a waiver of the agreement ignores the carve out to begin with.
The carve out was there for a reason, and that reason was to
prevent that from occurring.

Very briefly, this clearly is not a contract of
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adhesion when, as you noted, they have 30 days to opt out of
the arbitration provision. Not only do they have the right to
opt out of the provision, but they keep the money. This isn't
a question where they opt out and they have to return the
money and rescind the agreement. The agreement is in full
force and effect, they keep the money, and the terms of the
agreement -- the lending agreement stay in full force and
effect.

I fear that one of the things that is going through
your head, and Counsel is bringing this up, they're saying
there's more than four people. And you're talking about case
manageability already at this point in the litigation.

THE COURT: I don't know we're going to have more
than four people, because the motion to certify a class is on
the chamber calendar in a couple weeks, and I may not certify
the class given the no class provision in the agreements. But
that's a different issue that we're not doing today.

MR. DZARNOSKI: Okay. And there's other
deficiencies there. But you're right. We have four people.
That's what we've got. I don't care that there were 17,000
complaints filed or default judgments taken in this case.
First of all, it's a big leap of faith for these plaintiffs to
come forward to you, Your Honor, and tell you that there's
going to be more than four people or that there's going to be

a hundred or there's going to be a thousand. There is no
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evidence that they've presented, no evidence that has been
presented in the criminal trial, no evidence before this Court
or anywhere that this was a systematic and systemic problem
that spanned for five years. And I have put in as a proffer
of proof in one of our other motions that is bhefore you the
fact that I've spoken with the lead detective, Nate Chio
[phoneticl, in this case, and we are cooperating and providing
information and names and contact information. 2nd he's told
me outright, I've contacted customers of Rapid Cash, I'm
locking for victims so I can add you as a victim to our file,
Rapid Cash, because you paid $500,000 for this guy to serve
process, and he sits there and he tells me numerous people
that he's interviewed acknowledge that they've been served
process. I don't have a number yet of people who haven't been
served process. Nor do they. Despite this ongoing
investigation -- I mean, this has been in the papers for how
long? Months.

THE COURT: Since this summer.

MR. DZARNOSKI: Yeah. And we have four --

THE COURT: I was on vacation.

MR. DZARNOSKI: We have a grand total of four
customers of Rapid Cash who are saying that they weren't
served. And there's no proof of that yet. They're just
saying that they haven't been served or that they had no

notice of these.
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Now, we have our own little goody bag when we get
into discovery, if we have to, where we can show them the
contacts that were made with these individual plaintiffs and
what was done to apprise them of their problems and for them
-- I mean, we're not at the evidentiary stage. But what
you're faced with now is four people and a valid, binding
arbitration agreement.

And, like I said, I fear that you’re thinking down
the road towards manageability issues that -- in a worst-case
scenario. And believe me, if I were in your shoes as the
person who has to handle this huge building, I might be doing
the same thing. But my clients today are entitled to a
decision based on the case that is before us. And that case
before us is four people and a valid arbitration agreement and
no issues of manageability, and the fact that each of these
four people could walk in, demand arbitration after trying to
set aside their judgment, get $10,100 plus attorney fees if
they prevail, which is far more relief than they would ever
get in a class action lawsuit. The class action lawsuit is
not protecting their interests better than the arbitration
would. It's being pursued for other purposes, but not for the
protection and the ultimate outcome for these four people.
And you shouldn't be making your decision based on those four
people and manageability.

THE COURT: Thank you, Mr. Dzarnoski. I appreciate
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that. And I want to compliment counsel on the briefs. They
were very well done, and the arbitration provision in my mind
is very clear.

Unfortunately, the conduct of the defendant in its
collection efforts in my constitutes a waiver of the right to
elect arbitration. In the Court's opinion it is against
public policy to allow litigation, even if it is in the Small
Claims Court, and then require arbitration of those claims
which arise from the alleged tortious and fraudulent conduct
of defendants and its agents in those collection activities.

So the motion to compel arbitration and stay the
proceedings is denied.

There's one other motion that's on calendar for
today, and then there's also a motion to certify the class
that is on for October 15th on the chambers calendar. First,
do you want to have oral argument on the motion to certify the
class, Mr. Dzarnoski?

MR. DZARNOSKI: Yes, Your Honor. I've made that
request in my opposition.

THE COURT: Do you want me to move you to the 19th,
or the 21st, a Tuesday or a Thursday?

MR. DZARNOSKI: Either one ig fine.

MS. DORSEY: I think I'd prefer the 21st.

THE COURT: 21st?

MR. DZARNOSKI: Could we do both those motions, the
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one today and the certification of the class on that day?

THE COURT: Well, let me get to my note on that one,
because I do have a note to ask a question. Shift my file a
little here.

S0, Susan, if we could move the motion that's on the
15th to the 21st.

And then the other motion we have is the motion for
essentially a no contact order. 1Isg that an easy way to phrase
it?

MS. DORSEY: Yes.

THE COURT: And basically what you're asking me, Mr.
Wulz and Ms. Popick, is that I not permit any additional
collection efforts with requests to any Rapid Cash judgment at
this point.

MR. WULZ: That's true. And we also have other
concerns since they have judgments against a few of the class
members, and we would have concerns about oral contacts with
them, trying to get them to settle, give up their remedies in
this case.

THE COURT: I'm not inclined to grant such a broad
order until I certify the class. Do you want me to wait and
hear the motion on the same day as I have the motion to
certify the class?

MR. WULZ: That's -- it's more -- typically it's

more appropriate to hear the motion for class cert and then
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the motion for a Rule 23 order.

THE COURT: So I'm going to continue that motion
which is on today for the 21st, as well, Mr. Dzarnoski?

MR, DZARNOSKI: I'm sorxyy?

THE COURT: So the 21st, as well,

MR. DZARNOSKI: Yes.

THE COURT: Just so you're getting all these notes
of dates.

MR. DZARNOSKI: Thank you.

THE COURT: Okay. Anything else?

MS. DORSEY: No.

THE COURT: Any housekeeping matters?

Thank you for coming. Go to your Department 9 case.

MS. DORSEY: Thank you.

THE PROCEEDINGS CONCLUDED AT 9:59 A.M.

* k * k %
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CERTIFICATION

I CERTIFY THAT THE FOREGOING IS A CORRECT TRANSCRIPT FROM THE
AUDIO-VISUAL RECORDING OF THE PROCEEDINGS IN THE ABOVE-
ENTITLED MATTER,

AFFIRMATION

I AFFIRM THAT THIS TRANSCRIPT DOES NOT CONTAIN THE SOCIAL

SECURITY OR TAX IDENTIFICATION NUMBER OF ANY PERSON OR ENTITY.

FLORENCE HOYT
Las Vegas, Nevada 89146

10/14/10

T /4
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FLORENCE HOYT, TR%NSCRIBER DATE

33

000264

000264



000265

G92000

000265

000265



992000

\&

10
i1
12
13
14

16
17
18
19
20

- Electronically Filed
10/15/2010 02:47:48 PM

RPLY R Kl

Dan L. Wulz, Esq. (5557}

Venicig Considine, Esq. (11344)

LEGAL AID CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA, INC.
300 South Eighth Strect

Las Vegas, Nevada 89101

Telephone: (702) 386-1070 x 106

Facsimile: (702) 388-1642
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CLERK OF THE COURT

J. Randall Jones, Esq. (1927)

Jennifer C. Dorsey, Esq. (6456)

KEMP, JONES & COULTUHARD, LLY
3800 Howard Hughes Plwy, 17% Floor
Las Vegas, Nevada §9169

Telephone: (702) 385-6000

Facsimile: (702) 3835-6001
L@kempiones.com

Attorneys for Plaintiffy and Putative Clags Counsel

DISTRICT COURY
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

Casandra Harrison; Engene Varcados;
Concepeion Quintine; and Mary Dungan, Case No.: A-10-624982-13
individoally and on behalf of all persous Dept. No.: X1

simifarly situated,

Plaintifls,

V. PLAINTIFFS REPLY TO
OPPOSITION TO MOTION FOR
RULE 23 NO CONTACT ORDER
OR, ALTERNATIVELY, FOR A
PRELIMINARY INJUNCYION

Principal favestoents, Ine. dibda Rapid Cash;
Granite Financial Sexvices, Ine. dib/a Rapid
Cash; FMMR Investments, Inc., d/b/s Rapid
Cash; Prime Group, Inc., &b/ Rapid Cash;
Advance Group, Inc., d/bfa Rapid Cashy,
Mauries Carrotl, individually and db/a On
Seene Mediations: W.AM, Rentals, LIC
and dib/a On Scene Medsiions; Vilisia
Colenaan, and DOES T through X dnctusive,

Daaje of Hearing: Oclober 21, 2010

Time of Hearing: 9:00 &AM,

Defendants.

Platndiffs, Casandra Harrison, Fugene Varcados, Concepelon Quintino, aad Mary

Dangan, individually and on behalf o all persons stintlarly situated, (hereafier “Class

Representatives” or “ihe Class™), by and through counsel, J. Randall Jones, sq. and Jennifer C.

Dorsey, Esq., Kemp, Jones & Coulthard, LLP, Dan L. Wulz, Esq., and Venicta Considine, Esq.
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Legal Asd Center of Southern Nevada, Joc., hereby il this Reply,

This Reply is based upon the pleadings and papers filed herein, the following
Memorandinn of Poinis and Autharities, supporting exhibits, and any argument which the court
will allow.

DATED this _15™ day of October, 2010,
LEGAL AID CENTER OF
SOUTHERN NEVADA, INC,

By isf DAN L. WULZ
Dan L. Wulz, Esq. (5557)
Venicia Considine, Esq. (11544)
800 South Fighth Street
[as Vegas, Nevada 89101

J. Randall Jones, Esq. (1927)

KEMP, JONES & COULTHARD, LLP
3800 Howard Hughes Pkwy, 17" Floor
Las Vepas, Nevada 89169

Attorneys for Class Representatives and
Putative Class Counsel

MEMORANDUM OF POINTS AND AUTHORITIES
L INIRODUCTION

In Plaintiffs’ Motion For Rule 23 No Comtact Ovder Or, Aliernatively, For A Prefiminary
Injunction (the “Motion™), Plaintiffy requested that this Court grant a Rule 23 no contact Order
to preserve the integrity of the class, the remediss avaifable o the (.‘.-I ass, and to prevent the
exercise of undue influence by Rapid Cash upon the Class, and including collection activity on
void default judgments against the Class. b the alternative, the Class pursuang to NRCP 63
movest the Conrt to enter s Prelimiary hypuuction to preserve the sigius guo, with the same
relief as that requesied under Rule 23,

In Opposition, Rapid Cash claimed the requested Order was Jxrer alin overhroad.’

Plaintiffs hereby specify with greater particularity the relief requested and parrow the relief

' Rapid Cash also argued that borsowers who were served with process in Justice Cowrt and thus
have not been not injured arg included due to the overbroad class definition. The definition of the Class
will be addressed in Plaintifls™ Reply concerning class certification.

Page 2 of 9
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requested as to Rapid Cash and its counsel as follows:

1. Prohibiting ex parie contact in writing concemning this

litigation, which inherently includes the undertying Justice Court

fitigations, other than normal business commanications, without

prior approval of the Court.

2. Prohibiting ex parie oral contact which might concem or relaie

to any effort {o settle and/or obtain a release of any claim made in

this Utigation, which inherently inclades ihe undertying Justice

Court litigations,

3. Prolibating ey parte oral contacl which might concern or relate

to any effort (o obtain a disavowal, disapproval or a desire to opt

out of this hitigation.

4, Prohibiting any action in the anderlying Justice Court

litigalions against any member-of the putative Class which has the

effect of tmiting or mooting any remedy available herein, without

prior approval of the Court, '

S. Collection of any Justice Cowrt judgment against a putative

Class member who has indicated they were not served with

¥

process.”
As narrowed, the relief requested is entirely appropriate under Rule 23, or alternatively may be
ordored as a prelininary injunction.

fI, THE RELIEY REQUESTED IS A¥PROPRIATE UNDER RULE 23
A. The Evidence
Rapid Cash complaing of g lack of proof ot the main issne of Hability, to wit: that

employees of On Scene Mediations did not serve process upon members of the potative Class in
Rapid Cash’s Justice Court actions, Of course, the case has just begun and the potative Class
has not been provided the opporiimity 1o obtain any discovery, much less discovery on a class-
wade basis. Regardless, we do know this mach: (1) the Justice Count noticed a paitern ol g
wireasonably bigh pumber of On Scene Mediations aflidavits of service of process attesting that

the docuinenis were parsonally served on the day they were received (a near-miracle In process

serving) {Declaration of Detetive N. Chio, attached as Exhibit No. 1) (3} in the rave case that a

* Plaintiffs no longsr seek an order with respect 1o present ongoing collection from putative
Class members at this time. Rapid Cash, however, should be well advised that ongeing collection from
putative Class members on judgments which jndeed are void will ereale vequests for additional anil
enhanced relief lerein.

Page 3 of 9
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defendant learned of his suit in tinie (o set aside the default Rapid Cash casily obtained against

him, Rapid Cash would swifily stipulate to the set-aside t0 avoid any evidentiary hearing on the

validity of the service (Id,); (3) Sergio Pinto, employed to serve process by Maurice Carroll/On

Scene-Mediations, admitted to Metro that he was told by “the ladies in the office™ to falsify
alfidavits of service, claiming thai he made service of process to individuals, but had not done
so (1d.); (4) Sergio Pinto told Metro. that Maurice Carroll also directed him to falsify affidaviis

of service (Id,); (5) Nickyta Lonsorta, employed to serve process by Maurice Carroll/On Scene
Mediations, admitled (o Metro thal.she signed affidaviis of service at the direction of Maurice
Carrolt withoui ever having gone out 1o perform the services, in effect falsifying Affidavits (1d.);
(6) Mawrice Carroll admitted to Metro that he had falsified affidavits of service, but elaimed ibat
his office manager, Vilisia Coleman, told him the documenis had been sexved while he was ont
of town {Id.); (7) in Angust, 2010, Maurice Carroll and Vilisia Coleman were both eriminally
indicted {judicial notice); (8) Coleman’s crimiunal defense attorney, meanwhile, has stated in
open court that On Scene Mediations owner Manrice Carroll had procedures in place to commit
ceiminal wrongdoing long before she wag hived (Exhibit No. 2, attached); (9 all four Plaing{ls
were not served with process when Rapid Cash filed an affidavit of service of process
completed by an On Scene Mediations employvee (Plaintiffs” Affidavits attached to Plaintiffs’
Motion To Certify Class); (10) Magrice Carvolt was convicted on 34 of 34 counts of perjury in
completing affidevils of service of process for Richland IHoldings (i'a-ld.ici al notice), 1t would
strain credulity 1o believe that On Scene Mediations behaved any differenily in s service of
process practices depending upon the identity of the creditor,

Accordingly, while it is not the posilion of the Plaintiff Class that On Seene Mediaticns
reever sevved process upon a Rapid Cash defendant, all obiective evidence points toward a high
provability that hundreds i not thousands of putative Class members were not served.

B. Mo or {dmited Contact QOrdars under Rale 23

On this issue, Defendants typically ctte and selectively quote from Guif Qily. Bernard,
452 1.8, 89 (1981), as Rapgnd Cash has done in its Opposition. But, Gulf O] concemed a quite

bizarre districi court order imposing a complete ban on all commanications by Plainiiff Class

Paged ol 9
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Counsel concerning the class action with counsel's own putative class (as well as on the parties
and their counsel, but Gulf Oif was exempted from the order 8$ to communications involving an
garlier BEOC conciliation agreement srid its seitlement process. whicl undercut the entire class
action litigation). It is hardly surprising this generated aunaniroous United Siates Supreme
Clourt opinion finding the distriet court abused its discretion in limiting “communications from
named plaintiffs and their counsel to prospective class members, during the pendeucy of a class
action.” {d., at 91, As soch, the Cowt’s analysis was sot in the context that the order . .created
at least poteatial difficulties for them [class counsel] as they sought to vindicate the legal rights
of a class of eraployees,” “...interfered with their efforts to inform potential ¢lass members of
the existence of this lawsait...,” and “made it more difticult for ... the class representatives, ©
at 101, Tt was m the next sentence that the Court said:
Because of these potential problems, an order baniting

communications between parties and poteniial class members

should be based on a cleay record and specific findings that reflect

a weighing of the need for a limitation and the potential

interference with the rights of the parties. Only such a

detesmination can enswee that the courl is furthering, rather than

hindering, the policies embodied in the Federal Rules of Civil

Procedure, especially Rule 23,
Id.. at 101-102 (emphasis supphed). Moreover, as concerns the policies embodied in Rule 23
that should be furthered rather than hindered, the Conrt had carlier saidy “Class actions serve an
the Court was looking at Rufe 23 no contact orders through the lens of furthering the policies in
Rule 23 whan it said: “Bot the mere possibitity of abuses dogs not jostify rounne adopiion of'a
communication ban that huerferes with the formation of ¢ class or the prosecurion of a elass
action fneccordanee with ihe Rules.” Id,, at 104, When Defondaniz-—as Rapid Cash has done
in its Opposition-pick phrases out of Gull Ol 1o give the impression that Rule 23 no contact

orders can be imposed only in the most narrow of clicamstances on Defendants (who, indeed,

may be seeking to hinder Rule 23 policies by preventing the formation of a class or the
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defendants in class actions, Kleiner v, First Ntl. Bank of Atlanta, 751 ¥.2d 1193 (11* Cir. 1985)

{Rule 23 no contact order imposed on bank, and bank’s counsel sanctioned for soliciting

exclusion requests from potential class members), contains a careful analysis of Gulf Qil. In

Kleiner, the defendunt Bank organized a force of 175 Joan officers to telephone potential class

members [o, according (0 the Bank, “insure that the class members in the Kletner ltigation
anderstood the merits of the dispute and their right 10 opt oul” with the objective being “to
persuade the borrowers 1o “withdraw from the class.”™ I, at 1198, Neadless to say, the Cowt
had little trouble in saying and holding:

Unsupervised, upilateral communications with the plainiiff class
sabolage the goal of informed consent by urging exclusion on the
basis of a.one-sided presentation of the fact, “without opportunity
for rebuttal. The damage from misstatements could welt be
irreparable. * ¥ * The Bavk’s 5 ag tions obstructed the distriet couri
in the discharge of its duty to “protect both the absent class and the
nm,;:n ty of the judicial process by monitoring the actions before

> The Bank’s subterfuge and subversion constitnied an
mmlel able affvont to the authority of the disteicl covrt to police
class member contacts. Accordingly, we hold that the trial court
had ample discrotion under Rules 23(b)(3) and 23(d) to prohibit
the Baok’s overtures. ‘

presented at this carly stage of litigation herem, the Court found that particularized findings and
explicil proof or findings of hawm or injury were ot vegaived, not when a commanication is
irherently conductve to overreaching, and a coart can prevent harm hefore it happers:

[E} is nnnecessary for a trial court 0 issue particalavized findings
of abusive conduct when a given form of speech ts mherently
condugive to mr&n:ez:;uhing and duress, ¥ * * Under sugh
chreurnsiances, ‘the abserce of explicit proof or findings of barm
o1 injury is inumaterial,” and the trial court is cmpmwxcd e ander
propyylactic orders designed 0 prevent banm before it bappens,
LA
Given the inherent coercion conveyed by the Bank's covert
campaign, we agree that the disteict courd possessed the authority
to regulate such ¢ contacts without the predicate record and findings
required i Berward.

fel. at 1206 (nternal citations omitted),
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Another reason the Kleiner case is so buportant here is that it cogently observes that
where the parties to the litigation have an ongoing business relatiouship, communications from
the class opponent may be inherently coercive:

The class consisted of Bank bortowers, many of whomn were

dependent on the Bank for future financing. Bank customers

affected by the litigation included ‘those who anticipated seeking

anote “rollover,” new loans, extension of lines of credit, or any

type of diseretionary {inancial indalgence from their foan officers,

and who did not have convenient access to other credit sources.”

As the district court pointed out, the high number of exclusion

requests was witness o the inherent coercion of the Bank's

wrachinations.
id., at 1202 (internal cilgtions omiited). Flere, the putative Class consists of Rapid Cash.
borrowers, and Rapid Cash has « fudgment against every member of the putaiive Class. The
power of a judgment creditor is substantial, and even more so against nnsophisticated payday
loan borrowers seho now find themselves as judgment debtors.

Lastly, this Court should prohibit any action in the onderlying Justice Court litigations
against any membder of the puiative Class which has the effect of limiting or mooting any
remedy available herein, without prior approval of the Court.

The Couort must exercise its power and duly under Rule 23 o protect the putative Class,

and to prevent harm betore i happens by policing class member contacts.

WL ALTERNATIVELY, APRELIMINARY INFUNCTION IS APPROERIATE

Although Rule 23(d) platuly grauts this Court the broad power to police class member
contacts, that sape refiel is also available through this Cowt’s equitable power to grant
unctions,

The irreparable harm from the nanow scope of coramunications soaght to be enjoined is
self-evident, There can be no doubt that it would frseparably harm a putative Class member to
be sceretly approached to have bisfher claim herein (and the underlying Justice Coort actions)
settled and released, or to be approached about opling out of or disavowing the class as well.
Repesting Kleiner, supre:

Unsupervised, unilateral commuanications with the plaintiff class
sabotage the goal of informed consent by urging exclusion on the
basis of a one-sided presentation of the fact, without opporfunity

Page 7 of 9
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for rebuttal. The damage from misstatements conld well be
rreparabie.

Id., at 1203. It is irue as well thal, under the circumstances present here, any patative Class
member who has disavowed service should not be subjected 10 ongoing collection on a void
judgment.

V. CONCLUSION

The Class respectfully requests that this Court grant a Rule 23 limited coniact Order or

Preliminary Injunction {o prevent Rapid Cash and its counsel] from the following:

{. Prohibiting ex parfe comtact in writing concerning this
litigation, which inherently includes the underlying Justice Court
lmg ions, other than normal business communications, withoul
prior approval of the Cowrt;

Prohibiting ex parte oral contact which might concern or refate
to any effort to seltle andfor obtain a release of any claim made in
this litigation, which inberently ncludes the underlying Justice
Court Hitigations,

3. Prohibiiing ex parte oral contact whieh might concern or relate
o any cffort 10 obtain a disavowal, disapproval or a desire 1o opt
out of this litigation,

4. Prohibiting any action in the underlying Justice Court
hnmtrom against any member of the putative Class which has the
effect of .lnmtmt* or wmooting any remedy available herein, without
prioy approval of the Court.

5. Collection of any Justice Court judgiient againsl a puiative
Class member who hag tndicated they were not served wiih
Process.,
DATED this _18%_ day of October, 2010
LEGAL AIB CENYVER OF
SOUTHERN NEVADA, INC,

S5CRAN L WU
Dan L. Wiz, Esq. (3557)
Venicia Considine, s, (11544)
800 South Eighth Steeot
Las Yegas, Nevada 89101
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J. Randall Jones, Esq. (1927}

KEMP, JONES & (0( LTHARD, LLP
3800 Howard Hughes Plwy, 17th Floor
Las Vegas, Nevada 89169

Attorneys for Class Representatives and
Patative Class Counsel
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

THEREBY CERTIFY that on the 153" day of QOctober, 2010, I placed a trus and correct
copy of the aitached PLAINTIFES’ REPLY TO OPPOSITION TO MOTION FOR RULE

addressed as follows:
By U.8. Mail and Facsimile to:

William M. Noall, Esq.
(GORDON SILVER

3960 H. Hughes Plwy., 9" Floor
Las Vegas, NV 89169

Fax: (702) 369-2666

By U.S. Mail to:

Mawrice Carrol}
6376 Briney Deep Ave.
Las Vegas, NV §9139

Maurice Carroll
5911 Red Dawn St
North Las Vegas, NV 89031

23 NO CONTACT ORDER OR, ALTERNATIVELY, FOR A PRELIMINARY
INJUNCTION via facsimile and in the United Stales Mail, postage fully pre-paid thereon

fsf Rosie Najera
An employee of Clark Couniy Lc gal Services Program, Ine.
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. LAS VEGAS METROPOLITAN #ULICE DERARTMENT
DECLARATION OF WARRANT/SUNIMONS
{(N.R.S, 171.108)

(MR8, 53 amended 07/13/93)

BVENT:  100620.2141

STATE OF NEVADA ) MALRICE CARROLL
Jes:  IDE1D30280
COUNTY OF CLARIK }

DETECTIVE N. CHIQ, heing first duly sworn, deposes and says:

That he Is & police officer with the Lag Vegas Metropolitan Palice Department, being so employed for &
period of 14 years, assigned to investigate the crime{s) of PERJURY {(17CT8.), FALSIFYING
NSTRUMENT TOBEFILED IN COURT (17C78.), OBTAINING MONEY UNDER FALSE PRETENSES
sommitted o or about May 2010 - June 2070, which investigation has developed MAURICE CARROLL
as the pemeirator thereof.

THAT DECLARANT DEVELORED THE FOLLOWING FACTS IN THE COURSE OF THE INVESTIGATION OF SAID CRIMETO

WHT:

On May 8, 2010, at 1330hrs., Sgt. M. Pence and et with Justice Court Judges Dianne Sullfvan and
Melissa Saragosa at the Regional Justice Center, The purpose of the mseting was to disquss possible
eriminat activity discoverad by the two Judges involving civil process servers, and several lawyers. Also
present at that meeting was Calin T. Murphy from the Siste of Nevada Privale nvestigators Licensing
Board.

Judge Sullivan and Saragoss {old us the following:

£n wvery civil case, the person baing aued must be formally served & sUnwmons and somplaint filed
by the lawyers raprasenting the plaintifls, 10 ensure that the person being sued has due process and is
aware of the lawsuit,  This i routinesly done by procsss servars who are sither contracied by the lawyers
or work divectly for the fawysr. The process servers are regulated by the Slats of Nevads Private
fnvestigators Licensing Bosrdd, There are thrae diffsrant tyes of servics that the procsss sever cat
sohdust

1. Personal service: when the procaes server serves the actual person being suad by handing tha
paraan the sumimaons snd complaint.

2. Sub-gorvice: when he procsss seiver sones a parsen of fsgal age and who & related 1o the parson
baing sued such as & spouse, significant other, or family member.

Public notics: After ihe provess server has made savart attsmpts at service and can’t serve anvons,
the susiimons and complaint is published publicly in the newspapesr.

o

The procass servers fill oul & sworn affldavit of servios under penally of parjury, which details the date
they received the summaons from the iawysy, the dale they served the defendant, whers they centactey
the defandant during seivice, and aiss whether the senvics was done peraonally, sube-ssrvicsd, of the
due difigencs atfemply of senvics for public notice, These affidaviis of service are then nolarzed, under
penalty of perjury, and fled with the cowrt by the attorney.

LIPS 314 [Roy, 198y « AYTRBTED
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LAS v%e_;xs METROPOLITAN POLIGE F—— o
DECLARATION OF WARRANT/SUMMONS
Page 2

BVENT: 1006292141

Prior to January 2000, civil sases wers distributed to all Justics cowt judges. Afier Jangary 2009, al
civil cases were assigned 1o Judges Sullivan and Saragosa. Since that date, the two judges have
bscome very familiar with the lawyers , plalntiifs, and names of ths process seivers invalved in the casss.
The two Judges bagan noticing some peculiarifias in the cases involving several lawyers. The lawyers
wers Lizzie Hafeher, who reprosents Rapid Cashy Wilde and Assosiates who routinely represent

Richland Holdings; and Shumway Van & Hansen who also routinsly represent Rishtand Holdings.

They noticed that cases involving these lawyers routinaly went to a default judgement. The plaintifi
ware providing the court with art affidavit of service of the defendant, but the defendant was not pressnt
and the plaintiffs were granted a default fudgementin their faveor. In thoss Instances that the defendants
wotdd clain they wers never served, the judges would set an evidentiary hearing. However, in sach oase
the plaintiffs counselwould stipulate (o selting aside the defaultjudgement instead of having the procsss
servar come 6 and testify,

On mamerous affidavits of serviee, the process server would only use thelr first inifiat and last nams,
which made it difficut to identify the process server. Alse, on numerous affidavite, (he process server
would recsive several summions and be able to serve the defendants the saine day, which was highly
suspect. The judges alsonoticed thatl the signatures on the affidavits of service from the sams process
server were somelimas noticeably different, :

Judige Sullivan and Saragosa felt that on numerous votaslons, the court was in effect, being provided
false documenis whigh deprived the defendants thelr due process and was also agalst the law, They
suspectest that the affidavils of service were false, which constituted the arfime of perjury by the process
sutvars,  They felf sthically bound to repart their susplclons but also siressad that they needed to
rempve themesbves fram the hvestigation so that they may remain imparntisl as jikigss.

dudge Sullivan's executlve assistan, Jennifer Clark had baen compiiling data on these susploivus
cases on Dahalf of the judges. She providsdine a printout and coples of ths cases I question and alse
several names of the provess servers that had completed suspect atfidavils of sevvice.

Frovn examining soverst of the cases, seversl names of the process servers and! or notary publics
sesmed {r be recuring more than others. Thess ware Mawioe Caroll, Lizzia Halcher, Teri Smith, amd
Visilia Qolemian, | wss able © ideniily sach of these dividuals through SCOPE ang Nevada
Department of Motor YWehlsle (OMV) recortds as having the following personal dontilises:

« Mawise Canroll DO
& listed address of
s Liwvle Mateher DO
3 listed address of

Navada {3

Ve Smith DOB o W lioonse numbeny
Las Vagas, Nevada 88118,
N a Colemean ROB? , LMD 108 Mevada DMV loeres numbs

with a listed sddress o
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According to Maurice Carroll's SCOPE racords, Carrafl was a former police officer with the Las Vegas
Meatropolifan Polics Department (LVMPD), Your declarant conducted & records check with LVMPD
pergonnst depariment and lsamed that Carrolf was hired in September 1800 and was {enninated In
March 2000, During bis carger with LVMPD, Canell underwent Defensive Tactics tralning, firearms
ralning Bnd alga tralning m police tactics, Carroll also has & curment Concenled Weapons Parmit
authorizing him to g ingflald XD 45 semi-sutonmatic handgun. On his application, Carroll listed
his address as North Las Vegas, Nevads, Yaur declarant aiso learned through an
administrative sibpoenato Nevada Power and Southwest Gas that Maurice Carrall currently has service
at that addrass from both companies. A check through LVYMPD Pawn records also showed that Carroll
has humerous fireanms registarsd 1o him, Carralt has a prior arrest for Cosrcion with Foree in 2008,

Your declarant discovered that alf the suspects were notary publics for the Slate of Nevada., Hatches
Is also a licensed atlorney in Nevada, On all of the suspected cases of false service, ons of the four
parsons sted gbove ware the Notary Fublics on the affidavits. With the axception of Lizsie Hatoher, the
othier three suspacts also comipleted affidaviis of service a8 Process servers.

by the cou:'ts iniem pmcess m,wws falssiy ol to have served aﬁxdavﬁs when they fhave not and

whe g large amout of afidavils are falsely claimed o bave besh served at one lime.

beaing empioyed by g

Your declarant leamed through court filihgs that Visilia Col
ochmpany oalled On Scene Medistions with anr address off North Las
Yegas, Nevada 88031, Your declarant sonducted @ public records check of OUn Seene Medistions, and
imarned that Mastics Carroll was fisted as the business owner of On Scene Medistors through the City
of Morthy Las Vogas dusiness license database. Hoawever, the license for the business expived iy 12-31~
2004, | also iearnad thel Camoll had ebtained a Fistitlous Firm name cerlificats for On Suene Medintions,

filed i August 2009,

Yourdeclarant contacied Colin Murphy from the MNavada Privale Investigators Llosnsing Board (RILR;S,
whio osnses Process servers srd protess sarving compardes, and asked him o queny their detabase
0 oheak if On Scene Madistions was § leanssd process serving compary, s also iF Maurices Casrall,
Visilis Coleman, and Tent SBmith were lioensed process servers, Golin Miaplyy informed ros that none
of the persons ware licensed andOn Seens Madialiony was nol a licensed company,, W, Musphisalss
toki e that Carnell haa bean prevjousty u’mi%n 2003 for doing nusiness a8 O Soensg \iiematmm as A
pracess serving mmmn‘y ‘imt}hm@ a livenses i QR the VB, My, Murpty provided a sepy of tha citption
dated Devember 23, QC .

% R “&

gg}‘ Jum KA 2{}‘?(3 veur ciec farant comacted Maut Ligyio, th& owner of Richitand Holdings me and
Acutcorp of Soumsm Nevgda Rx;niand Holdings wees o numerous oowrt filings with sugpes sted falsa
aifidavits of sepvicn cnnnec’m& ‘with Carolf and VisiligGoleman,  Richland Heldings s a collection
aganoy contracied by saversl local campanies. kxgglo fold me that be uses several process serving
companies, including On Seene Mediations. Ligglo stated that bs has beer using On Soeie Mediations
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for several years and knows that Matrice Carroll is the owner and that Visilia Coleman is one of his
snployees who regularly comes to their office to piok up court papers and o drop off involees, Liggio
provided me a copy of the last invoics that He pald to On Scene Mediation dated June 14, 2010, The
invoios showed Carrolt billed Liggio for the service of 23 persons for a {otal cost of $750. Liggio also
provided me a copy of the negotiated check ha paid ta Carroll for $7580. The check was drawn on
Richland Holdings business account through Wells Fargo bank and depaosited into a busi oLt
at Bank of America by WA M. Rentals LLG. DBA On Scene Msediation, account number
on June 14, 2010,

Liggio provided me & copy of all the affidavits of service completed by Cartoll.  Each affidavit of
service was signad by Mawrlee Carroll and notarized by Terd Smith. Athough Liggie was billed for 23
persons, only sightesn affidavits of seivice ware completed. This was dug 1o one affidavit of sarvice
heing used fora hushandiwife service. Forinstancs, Roger and Elizabeth Alvarsz wers allegedly served
using one aifidevit of service on Elizabueth Alvarez.

Crimirval intsfigence detsctives atternpied 1o contant each persen allegoudly served by Carroll, and
were able 1o contact sl except Siscey Bamack. All ths persons contacied clalmed (o never have bean
served any court papers during the times ststed by Canoll in the affidavits he completed. In several
nstances, thare was no way that Carroll had seived the person he claimed o have, The Tollowlng is &
synopais of the follow up investigation and Interviews sanducted with ths persons contacted:

1. Roger and Elizabeth Alvares; slieged date of survies on May 13%, 2040 a2 0945hve., 20 TN
3 8, Honderson, Nevada, in person on Blizabeth Alvaoer, On June 29, 2010,

Dechsrant went {0 the above address, aiso known as the Villa Serena Apartmenms. After getling no
answar at e agarment, | contactad the front office o inquire if Roger and Ellzabstly Alvares lived
there. Shile Wasitko, a rental agent of the spartmyent complsk, told me that the Alvarsz's had not
v axthai apartment since April, 2010, She statad ihat thay had mioved o another spaniment inslde

116 8@ complex, apaitmeniXDY on Aot 2, 3010, | el my contsct infonmiation with Wasliko anid
asked her {0 have Elivabeth Alvarez contact me. Later that day, | rgoeived a phane calt from
Elizsbeth Alvares who corrpboraled the above facts and confirmad she was naver serverd any sourt
papers, Alvamz completed a voluntary statament W the above fadly,

6 2.0”&) de@ﬂtivw ; n‘ o] xh& above acddpess o att&mw m Sont zwt Sar ;ack On hoth oeoaskons,
there was 1o answer at the residense. Businass vards wers left on the o door, buf no contaot has

beon made at {his time.

3 Brent &, Cpx; atfoped date oF servics on May 18, 3048 at 1118hes,, at §
Handerson, Nevaila, 83074, i parson on Beet &, Cox.  Detective Danton want 1o thal address
and saw tat the home was vacant and for sale. Declavant sontacted the listing resl esiate ageny,
Jacob Mitro trons Refax Advantage who told me thet Mr, Cox had moved to England in March 2018
and the home had beernt vacant since then, Declarant contacted Agent Willlam Hedges from
Imrnigrations amd Customs Enforcement, who condimed that according to US Customs repords,
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Brent Cox left the United States on March 31, 2010 from Atlanta, Georgia to Manchester, England
and s of this date, there was no record of re-entry inte the United States, Declarant asked Mr. Mitro
to get in towch with Brent Cox, Mitro told mis that the only contact he has had with Cox has been vig
emall and that be would forward my contact information to him, On duly 12, 2010, Declarant was abls
to contact Cox via long-distance telephone and obtaled a taped voluntary statement with his consent
to the above facls,

4. Charmaine Fobbs; aliegied date of service June 13, 2010 at 1138hrs, a
: Las Vegrs, Novads, in person on Charmaine Fobbs. Detective Downing PR7042
attempted o conmtact Fobbse st that address on June 30, 2010 and received no answer at the
. Downing contacted the apartment manager 4t the front office, Michaal Moransen
Mottensen told Det, Downing that Fobbs moved out in April 2010 and left no
forwarding addresas or contact number. Mortensen provided Det. Downing a copy of the final account
statement for Fobbs which showed the move out date of Aprit 21, 2010,

. ﬁyuki Galngy and Dosn Galney; slisged date of sarvice May m‘** 2010 at 1048hre, af
HNuorth Las Vegas, Nevada, 33881, in pergon on Qyuké alney. OnJune 24,
2010, Detectve Munking PE7309, contacted Oyuki Gmney at heor home. Gainey stated she was at
wark during that ime, never recelved any courf documents and fifled ol ¢ voluntary statement to that
faok,

&5

8. Robyn Haskett; alleged date of service May 13, 20148, at 02080, X
Wogss, Nevads, 89430, servad on loyoe, so-cooupant”’, Detactive %*mnkms contacted Maskett
onLduly @, 20, Haskett told Detective Munking she had moved from fhat addrews in February 2010,
and did not know a "Joyee”. Haskett slso stated she was in Bbeneazer, Mississippi on that date on

vaeation,
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\;.':.~ w; Wgﬁ&, Nwad&, seFved ﬁn mrsm oy ds:sssma 1. i»icsward {fiezexw 5!’3 me i"?‘M’i 12,
ccmtszm&ci Moward oy June 28,2018, Howard claimsd to never being served on that day or within the
fast OO days.

8. Tiaha and Thomas Kalser, sHogmd date of servics o Moy 13, 84, at 0¥i8hrs., ady
S Morh Las Usgas, Nevads, served in porson on Tishs Keiser,  Delsctive
{ }mwmng; vomm«t d Tisha Keizeron June 30, 2010, Kelser statsdd she had not been serverd any courd
papers and was &8 work from 0828hrs. 1o 1838hrs. on that day.

8. ¢ svRe, sioged dale of servive on May 13, 2849, at 1028hs., sHNNER N
\ ™ Lag Vegas, Nevada, served in peraon oft Qendl Masls Devario. Deciaram
sontacted Masin Devanso on Jung 28 20'!0. She oigted she naver lived of that address and has

ived af hoy current addrges, s Nsince Febryary 2009.

10, Brandy Notrs, slleged dats of servies on June 43, 2010, at 1130hrs., af
§ ¥ North Lax Vogas, Novads 88084 in porsont on Brandy Norrds, Detagtive Rowning
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contacted Norls on June 30,2010, Norris stated she was never served any paperwork and was
at work from 0800hfs.- 1500hrs. on that day,

Jonnifar Olaon, stisged date of servics on May 13, 2010, at 1108k, &
Handerson, Nevads, 88015, in person on Jennifer Olson. On June 30, 2010, declaran went
to the above address and gantacted the current resident, Daniel Orliz. Ortiz stated that he had
livad there sines Aprlt 2010 and did not know a Jennlfer Qlson. Ortiz gave me a contact number
for the owner of the home, who Is Ortiz’s landlond, | spoke with the owner of the home, Duatin,
who wis ableto confitt that Jennlfer Olsan had not lived at that address since April and would
give my number to her tacri me. | spoks with Olson later that day and she condirmed that
she had moved from g in Aprit 2010, and arvanged for ber © mset with Detective
Hunkins the following day t npiéte a statement,

Guitlermc T. Ramos, aleged dale of servise on May 13, 2016, at 1055hes., &
Henderson, Nevada, 38018, by porson on Guillermic T, Ramos, On July 1, 2010,
declarant conitacted Ramos who claimed to have never been ssivad amy court papers o that day.
Ramos claimed {o have been on his way to work at that ime since he stets bis ahift at 1130hrs
at MoCGarran International aipost, which is an approximately 40 mintde commuts.

2

iait Rich, allegad date of sarvice on June 13, 3048 at 1048k, at

Henderson, Nevada, 83003 In persen on Matt Rich, On July 6, 2010, declarant sontacted
Desires Comiguez, the regident at the above address. She stated that Matt Rich was her ox-
boyiriend who she has a child Iy commory with srrd does ot live af thet adilrsss. She forwarded
my eontact information fo Rich who laler called me thatday, Rich stated he was never served any
vourt paperwork and surrently tives in 8t Georgs, Uiah, Rich agreed o do w {fapsd statement
aver the telephone sinee he was not inn town, _

cortacted Mr aebac;ﬁar he r)!d m& that h was naver sem«d and ma nc;t Hved 2t that address
for seversl mnanths,  The spariment complex manager confirmad do vestgeiors that My
Sebastian had moved out of his spartment o March 34, 2010,

RN SRR
X \ H&mdwmm E\smmﬁ 8042, In ;mrsw os& E\&swie www er dune 23, MO"L,,
De’sex,twe Denton contscted Tolrey at har homs, Tetav sinimed 1o have never bean served sny
oourt papewark and stated she was st work al the Mirage Holel & Casing at that fma. |
confirmed win Tetrev's supearvisor, Mary MoKenzie, that Tetrev was af work that day. MoKenzie
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provided me a copy of Mirage's employse management database confirming that Telrev did work
that day, clocking In at 0748hrs and elooking aut at 1548hrs,

7. Aas ting, alleged date of servios on June 13, 20108, at 1010hes., ot S0
Hensdsreon, Navada 88802, in person on Asren Valengine, Dele
contactsd Valentine on July 1, 2010, Vaienilne clalmed to never been served and stated he was

out of town in Utah with bis fam:iy on that date,

1.as Vegns, Novads, 89132, served on “.hey boyeiend, co-oguipat..
contacted Villanuevs on June 29, 2010, Villanueva claimed 1o have never been served, and
stated she wag homae the whale day on June 18, 2010.

Voluntary staterments wers oblalned from those persons contaciod by defectives, Dus tothe factthat
Carroll did perpetrate g scheme to defratd by acting as alicenssd process server/ COMPANY, eiammf
0 have served ;aerscm when he, i fact did not \and charging Liggio’s company for the service, & orims
report was complated for Ligglo for the arime of Obialning Money Under False Pretenses, isting Maurice
Carroll AKA, On Sceng Mediations as the stspect.

On June 30, 2014, Reclarant obitained a search warrant for Carvoll’s residence aig
North Las Vegas, Nevada, The search warrant was signed by Judgs T. Willlamns, LV
team was utllized for the service due 1o Garroll's prior law enforgemant fraining, The warrani was

axecuted without Incident. Several persons were taken Into custody, including Maurice Camroll. Two

other persans, whose name | recognized as provess seivers from the coplss of documents provided 1o
me wars aiso taken into susiody, Niekyta Lonsoria DOB »and Berglo Pinto DOB

Deglarant conducted post Mirandas interviews and subseguent tspad stafements with all thres
suspects. Det. Denton RE7308, was also present during all thrse interviews.

Tha first suspect ! inlenvdewsd was Niskyis Lonsorla, Lonsoria stated that on sevem oocasions, she
signed Affidavits of Service at the direetion of Carrotl, without ever having gone out to o the services,
ity sffert fabsiying affidaviis. Lonsorin statsd she was pald by Carroll §200 10 do this.

et interviewssd Pintoe who stated he has worked for Maurios Carroll for three yemrs as & grocess
sapver. Pinto stated that the mygjority of mes, he would seive porsons with cowt papers and 1 o
affidavits of sanvies swearng 1o that fact. MHowever, Pirfo told us that on several poeasions, e was told
by “the ladies In theoffier”, who he ideniified as Lss and Yvelle, to falsiy affidavits, Me also siated that
Carroll himsell directsd bim to falsify affidaviis on several ccessions.

Carrolt was interviewed jast. During the infendew with Garroll, he sdmitisd to falsiving sl of the
affitavits he biflod to Richland Holdings on June 14, 2010, which | had been investigating. Camrol stated
his oifice manager, Vilisia Coleman foftd him the documents had bean served while be was out of fown.
Carroll stated itwas bad [udgement on his part fo falsify the setvice but he had faith i his offics manager
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that the documents had been served, Howsver, Garroll signed the dosumonts saying that he himself
served the documents, Talsifying the affidavit of seivice,

The original aftidavits of services signed by Carroll were tecavered from Richland Holdings offios,
Justice Gourt and Nenderson Justics Court by me and impounded inte evidence. Arrangements ware
made by Ligyio to have the court papers properly served by another process seiving company.

Fram the svidense gathered It appears that Mawios Cavoll Is perpstrating an ongoing schems to
defraud the cours and his “clients” using his Talse businass of On Scene Mediation. Each falss affidavit
fillerd ouf by Maurdee Carrolf is an act of Ferjury in violation of NRS 198,120 and Falsifying an Instrumant
to be filsd In court in viskation of NRS 238.300. From the inveios dated Junsi4, 2010, billed by Carrof
fo ActCorp AKA, Richland Holdings for $750, Investigators confirred that Carroll did falsify seventesn
affidavits of service and defrauded AcetGorp AJCA. Richland Holdings ouf of §750.

Wherefore, desclarant prays that & Warrant of Arrsst b8 issued for suspsct MAURIGE CARROLL ean &
charge(s) of PERJURY (17CT8&.), FALSIFYING AN INSTRUMENT TO BE FILER IN COURT {17078,
OBTANING MONEY UNDER FALSE PRETENSES.

1 declare under penalty of pajury under the law of His State of Nevada that the foregoing s rus
and correct

Exectod on thin 2ist day of July, 2010,

.,»-* ens

DECLARANT; \\v&; (W“f*““

] >y v J N..v“"". - . -
WHTNESS: <t e S DATE: ol 2040
]
e

At
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Suspect in cowrt documents case directs blame at business owner

By IEFE SERMAN
LAS VEGAS REVIEW-JOURRAL

Vilisia Coleman, the former office manager of an embattled process serving company, was a
“pawn” in a courthouse scheme to file false affidavits, her lawyer told a district judge on
Wednesday,

Attorney Dan Winder said the company's ewner, Maurice Carroll, had "procedures in piace” to
commlt criminal wrongdoing long before Coieman went to work for the corapany.

Winder would not elaborate, bub he feld District Judge Elissa Cadish that his client, whom he
described as an "avid churchgoer,” is not "as culpable as the allegations make her out te be. This
Is a defensiple case."

Carrolf's jawyer, Craig Mueller, declined to comrment on Winder's allegations.

Coleman, 3 46-year-oid convicted felon, pleaded not guilty 1o a nine-count fefony indictment,
charging her with perjury and filing false cowt docurnents and a false notary public application
with the state.

Cadish reduced her bail from $£50,000 to $35,000, daspite obiections from Chief Deputy District
Attorney Mike Staudaher, who clted her criminal history, An Oct. 4 trial was sel,

The charges are tied to what authorities call a sweeping scharne by Carroll's unlicensed compay,
On Scene Medlations, o file false-affidavits that allowed payday loar and debl coliection
compacties Yo get Justice Court default judgments,

Las Vagas Justice Courl officizls plan to review some 20,000 defauit cases that might have links to
On Scene Medistions fn an effort to determing whether the rights of the defendaniy were violated,
Las Vagas Police belleve the company has been operating without a license since 2003.

Carroll, a 41~year-old former Las Vegas police officer, faces a separate 35-count indictmient
chawging Rim with pericry and filing false court documrients, In an interviaw with detectives cadlier
this year, Carroll biarnad his troubles oo Coterman, whio has since left the company.

Autharities allege in both ariming Cases that Carrol and Cotemait fied in the notarized affidavils
when swearing they had served defendants with copies of court papers on behalf of debt coilection
agency Richland Heldings. The company obtained default judgments after the defendants failed to
respond to the lawsuits.

Contact Jeff German at jgarman@review journat.com or 702-380-8138% or read more courts

hitp://www printthis.clickability com/pt/cpt?action=cpt&title=Sus... 9/2/2010
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Dan L. Wulz, Esq. (5557)

Venicia Considine, Esq. {11544) CLERK OF THE COURT
LEGAL AID CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA, INC.

800 South Eighth Street

Las Vegas, Nevada 89101

Telephone: (702) 386-1070 x 106

F acmmxlc ( 702) 388-1642

J. Randall Jones, Esq. (1927)

Jennifer €. Dorsey, Esq. (6456)

KEMP, JONES & COULTHARD, LLP

3800 Howard Hughies Pkwy, 17% Floor

Lag Vegas, Ne\zada 89169

Telephone: (702) 383-6000

}acsnmk, {702) 385-6001
H@kempiones. com

Atiorneys for Plaintiffs/Putative Class Coungel

BISTRICT COURY
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

Casandra Harrison; Eugene Varcados;

Coneepeion Quintino; and Mary Dungan, Case No.: A-10-024982-13
individually and on behalf of all persons Dept. Mo XI

similarly situated,
Plaintifls,
v,

Principal laveslents, Ine. d/bfa Rapid Cash;
(:rcmm Finaneial Services, Ine. d/bva Rapid
Cash; PR hwcstmmh. e, d/bia Rapid
Cash; Prime Group, Inc., dfbia Rap;d( asly;
'\d»ame Group, ne., d/bia Rapid Cash;
Mauzice Cartoll, mdzvxduai] and d/bia On
Scene Mediations; W.A.M. Rentals, LLC
and d/b/a On Scene Mediations; Vilisia Diate of Heartng: October 21, 2010
Coleman, and DOES T thvoegh X, inclusive, Time of Hearing: 9:00 AM

REPLY IN SUPPORT OF
MOTION TO CERTIFY CLASS

Defendants.

L.
INTRODUCTION
Rapid Cash’s lead arguments in opposition to Plaintifly” class certification motion are

based on the premise that this Cowrt rejected last week when denying Rapid Cash’s Motion to
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Compel Arbitration: this class action is prohibited because Rapid Cash’s lending agreemenis
with its payday loan customers bar the cowrthouse doors for these victims of Rapid Cash’s
outrageous tortious conduct. These argoments fail for the very samie reasons that Rapid Cash’s
arbiteation clause is unenforceable. Rapid Cashi's class aclion ban has no force or effect because
it is contained inside the arbitration clause that this Court already deemed waived. Even if this
ban survived that determination, it is independently nnenforceable because it is unconscionable
and it would violate public poliey to deny Rapid Cash’s victims the only litigation vehicle that
they can afford to redress these wrongs. And any defense that the plaintiffs cannot pursue this
litigation because they fatled to follow the pre-litigation dispute resolution procedures in their
contracts that Rapid Cash ignored nearly 17.000 times surcly has been watved.

Rapid Cash next attacks the definition of the Class, claiming - almost as a refrain
throughout its opposition — that the potential that the class definition includes Rapid Cash
customers who were, in [act, served with process and therefore not ingured prevenis class
certification of such a broadly defined class. But the law Is clear: the inclusion of potentially
non-injured persons within the class does not defeat class certification becanse these persons can
be excluded after discovery or by a later narrowing of the class definition.

Finally, Rapid Cash argues that ihe prevequisites for Rule 23 class certification cannot be
met. To take this position, Rapid Cash operates with blinders on, repeated ly stating that the
identification of four class represeniatives means there ave only four class members and wishing
the ot (o nfer that no other Rapid Cash defendants in Justice Cowrt were the victims of
sewer service, But this Court must aceept the alfegationy in the Complaint as true when
svaleating the propristy of olass certification, and the Complaint is rife with detailed
circumstaniial evidence that casily saiisfies Rule 23, Nevertheless, Plaintiffs hereby
supplernent the facts with the affidavits of Legal Aid emplovees, Violeta Hernandez and Venicia
Congsidine, Esq. (attached as Exhibiis | and 2, respectively), which provide more strong
gircnmstantial evidence that customers of Rapid Cash sued in Yustice Cowrt and who were
allegedly served by a represerdaiive of On Seene Mediations u fact were not served.

Rapid Cash bas failed to offer this Court any legitimate and faiv reason to deny class
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cerlification for the claims arising from the uniformly illegal conduct and policies, practices, and
procedures for which it is sought to be held accountable involving hundreds, if not thousands, of
its customers. This Court should grant Plamtifls’ motion for class certification and permit this
action to proceed wnder NRCP 23(b)(2) and NRCP 23(b)(3).
i
ARGUMENT
Al The Class Action Ban ts Unenforcesble.
1 Putative Class Claims ave not Subject to the Class-Actionr Ban i ils

Arbiteation Clanse because Rapid Cash Waived its Right to Fnvoke its

Arbitration Provision,

Rapid Cash cannot argue thai Plaintfly’ claims are subject to an arbitration agreement
due to the Court’s decision o Oetober 12, 2010, finding that Rapid Cash waived arbitration by
litigaiing to judgment against every member of the priative class without once seeking
arbitration, and that such 2 clause in any contract would violate public policy as applied to the
facts in this case. The Federal Arbitration Act now has no influence on this case because Rapid
(Cash waived i{s right to arbitation.

Fven if the class-action ban survives the waiver, the FAA does not preempl state laws

that invalidate unconscionable terms. Bureh v, 2ist Gt 118 Nev. 438, 442 2002). Defendants

cite Stoli-Mielsor 8.4, v, AnimalFeeds o' Corp, 130 S, CL 1758 (2010) to force arbitration.

Stoli-Niglson 13 vot applicable here becnass, unlike the agreement between the parties tn Siolt-
Mielson. here there Is no digpute that the Rapid Cash contract inclades a provision on classwide
proceedings, Further, Stoli-Nigison ts not apphieable beranse it way decided soder federal
antitrust and Maritime faw, and the issue i this case tans on Nevada faw, which samalng 8

wealth of authority on unconscionabilily.!

2 Rapid Caste’s Cigss-Action Ban is Unconscionadle and Therefore
Erenforceadle.

Like the rest of ity avbitration elause, Rapid Cash’s class-action ban is both procedherally

' Gee authority collested i Opposition to Maetion 1o Compst Asbitration and Stay All

Proceedings at 1516, incorporated herein by reference.
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and subgstantively unconscionable, and it effectively serves as an exculpatory clause, relieyving
Rapid Cash of any realistic Hability for widespread harm. When a confractual provision is both
procedurally and substantively snconscionable, the Court can refuse its enforcement. R.R.

Horton, Ine. v, Oreen, 120 Nev. 549, 533, 96 P.3d 1159 (2004). Proceduralunconscionability

concerns unequal bargaining power, whereas substantive unconscionability “focuses on the one-

sidedness of the contract terms.” DR Hoxton, 120 Nev. at $534 (quoting Ting v. AT & T, 319

3 1126, 1149 (91 Cir. 2003). “The more substantively ojipressive the contract term, the fess
evidence of procedural unconscionability s required to come to the conclusion that the tenm is
unenforceable, and vice versa ™

Contained in a textbook, take-ii-or-leave-it adhesion contract,” Raptd Casly’s class-action
ban is procedurally unconscionable. And the plaintiffs and the other class members lacked any
meaningful opportunity Lo agree (© its terms and the inctusion of this class action ban. This
characteristic alone eslablishes procedural unconscionability in Nevada. See D.R. Horton, 120
Nev. at 554 (“clause is procedwrally unconscionable when a party lacks a meaningfid
opporiunity o agree to the clause terms, . . because of vnequal bargaining power, as in an
adhesion contract....””) (cmphasis added).

The class action ban is also substantively unconscionable because it is entively one-sided
(indeed, Rapid Cash would never have reason to sue its customers in a class action) and it
effectively serves as an exculpatory clavse, relieving Rapid Cash of any lability for wrongdoing
in siuations like ithis, wherz the potential recovery to individuals is small and a lack of financind
and legal soptustication by the consumer is the norns. Noted conservative Judge Fosnor has

cogently observed, ¥The readistic aliemaiive 1o a class action is sot 17 million individeal sulls,

! Avmendarizoy. Foundation Health Peveheare, € P3d 669, 690 (Cal. 2000); accord, Chalk ¢, -
Mobite USAlag, 360 £.3d 1087, 1093 (9% Cir, 2009) (Conly substantive unconscionability is absolutly

necessary.”); 18 WILLISTON ON CONTRACTS § 1763A (3d ed. 1972) (“Essentially a shiding seale is

invoked which disregards the regulanity of the procedural process of the contract formaation, that creates

the terms, in proportion to the greater havshuess or unreasonableness of the substantive terms
therselves.™).

“ See g.g Obsteirics and Gynecologists v. Pepper, 101 Nev, 1035, 693 P.2d 1239, 1260 (1985)
¢The distinstive feature of arcadhesion contract is that the weaker party has ne choice as to its terms., ™).
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but zero individual suits, as only a lunalic or a (snatic sues for $30.” Carpegie v. Household

Int’l. Inc.,, 376 F.3d 656, 661 (7ih Cir. 2004). The Ninth Circuit reached a similar conclusion in

Ting v. AT & F, 182 F. Supp. 2d 902, 930-31 (N.D. Cal. 2002), ¢ff'd as to unconscionability,

319 F.3d 1126 (9® Cir. 2003), holding not only that the prohibition on class actions was
substantively unconsclonable because it was one-sided and non-mutual, but also becavse it acted
as a de facto exculpatory clause that would “prevent class members from effectively vindicating.
their rights in certain categories of ¢laims, especially those involving practices applicable to afl
members of the elass but as 1o which any consumer has so little-at stake that she cannot be
insutficient 1o motivate private counsel {0 assume the risks of prosecuting the case for just an
fadividual on a contingency basis.” |d. at 918,

Numerous regoried state court and federal coust decisions interpreting siate law have
similarly declaved clags action bans unconscionable where they exculpate corpovations fiom

liability for small claims.® Others bave found class action hans to be exculpaiory where the ban

* Even proponents of class action bans have adrnitted that their primary use is to exculpate their
drafters from ltability. See e.g. Edward Wood Dhasham, The Arbitvation CGlavse as 8 Class Action Shigld,
16 FRANCENSE L.J. 141, 141 (1997) (“the franchisor with an arbitration clagse should be able to require
cach franchises in the potensial class to parsue individua! claims in a separgte grbitration. Since many
{and perhaps most) of the putative class members may never do that . . . swict enforcement of s
arbitrafion clagse shoultd enable the franchisor to dramatically reduce its sgeregaie exposure.™)

¥ See e.g. Skivclud v, Dvoamics Researsh Corg.. Ing, 432 F. Supp. 2d 175, 181 (D, Mass. 2006),

aff'd, 208 F.3d 49 (Tst Cie. 20073 (class action ban subsiantively unconscionable b‘.(;t)xl%k, it
“circumscribes the legal options of these employees, who may be unable to incor the expense of
individnally pursuing thely claims™); Leonard v, Terminix o] Co. 854 So.2d 528, 339 (Ala. 2002) {by
“foreelosing the Leonards Trom an attermp? 1o seak prastics! 23 redress through a class actios and
restricting them o & disproportionalely expensive individual action,” the defendants had ccse,ni'.iaﬁy
clogad the door of justics (o these consumers)y $.0.8. Autos, fixg. v. Ghrzanowskl, 970 56.2d 600, 606
(¥ Dist. Cr App. 2007) (a class aetion ban “effentively prevents consumers with smail, mdmdn‘li
slaims based upon swtor vehicle denlers’ violations of [Florida®s Unfair or D(‘wpmc Agt» or Prasticss
Statwie], from vindicating their statutory rights™y Whitnev v, All-Tel Comuny, 1773 5.W.3d 300, 314 (Mo.
Ct. App. 2005) {cluss action bans in consumer coptracts held unconscionable whers exculpatory because
they “would effectively strip consumers of the protections afforded to them wuder the [Missourt]
Merchaadising Practices Act and anfairly allow companies fike Allel 10 insulate themselves from the
consumer protection laws of ihis State™);, Mubmomad v, County Basl of Rehobsth Beach, 912 A.2d 83,
91, 99 (N.J. 2006} (holding that ¥|TThe class-arbitralion walver in s consumer conyracl is
anenforeeable™ because of the fact that the plaintiff™s “individual consumer fraud case involves a small
amount of damages, rendering individual enforcoment of ber rights, and the rights of her Fellow

e
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impedes the pursuit of statotory legal remedies for those barmed by fraudulent activity. See e.g.

Gentry, 42 Caldth at 457 (holding that “such a walver can be esculpatory in practical terms

because it can make it very difficuli for those injured by onlawtul condact o pursue a legal
remedy™), And at feast four state supreme courts have struck down class action bans in part on
the ground that the vast majority of consumers, absent the class action device, would not realize
that they have o claim.*

Each of these uncouncionability touchsiones is present here, and each independently
requires this Court to find Rapid Cash’s class-action ban unenforceabie ag a result, By
fraadulently manipulating the court system (o obtain defauli judgments, leaving hundreds of
consumers in the putative Class unaware that their Jogal rights were violated, Rapid Cash has
thwarted the pursuit of legal remedies by denying class members their right (0 know they were
éven being sued. A class action Is the only practical manner to remedy this illegal conduct and
stop Rapid Cash from benefitting from its fraud. As-this provision is procedurally and

substantively unconscionable, it cannot be enforced,

cansumers, difficuHt i not impossible.™); Fiser v, Dell Computer Corp., 188 P.3d 12135, 1220 (N M. 2008)
(“In view of the facs that Plaintiff's alleged damages are just ten to-twenty doflars, by attempting to
prevent it from seeking elass vehef, Defondant hiag essentially foreclosed the possibility that Plaintiff
may obtain any relief . . .. On these thets enforeing the class action ban would be tantamount 1o allowing
Defendant to aintateraily exempl itsell from New Mexico consumer protection laws.™) Yasquez-l.opez
v. Benefiei] Oregon, fng., 152 PIE 940, 956 (O, Ct App. 20073 (holding that enforcement of the class
action ban would excolpate the lender from Hability)y, Thibodeau v, Comeast Corg., 912 A2 874, 383
{Pa. Super. €t 2006) 1 1s ondy the class action vehicle that makes consumer litigation possible . ..
Should the lavs vequive consomers to litigate of 'wbi’iz'am indivichially, defendant corporations are
effectively immunized from redress of geievanses. ™y Scotty, Clagular Wikeless LLG, 161 P.3d 1060,
1003 {Wash. 2007) ("Class action aad arbitration waivers are nod, in the abstract, excalpatory clagses,
But besmise ... damages in consumer cases are often sroalt and becauss “{a] sompany that wrongfolly
exasts a dollar from sach of nothions of customers will veap a handsome profin,” .. | “the olass sction is
often the anly effective way 1o halt and redress such exploitation.”) (internal ututmna omitied).

9 See Kinkgl, 887 NE2d af 268 (*The typical comsumee may feel that such a charge is untair, bot

: 'oni mih ihe aid \>E an attorney w&l m r:omumu o dwarc that he or she may have a cladm that js

161 P.';‘)d at 1007 (“W mou: Ivkm amon\] mm CONSLITIESS Ay not sven rs,szlemi Thny haw clmm.
The class antion movnk,\ a mechanism to alert them 1o this fact.™) {internal citations onmitted}; ¢, Geniry,
42 Cal4th at 462 “some individual employees may not sue because they ave unaware that their t“g‘\i

\

rights have been vialawed™).
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A Enforcing the Cluss Action Ban i this Case World Violate Public Policy.
The Rapid Cash class action ban as applied to this case is also void as against ihe public
policy of the courts to control their own dockets and prevent abuses of the judicial process.

Republic Ins. Co. v, PAICO Receivables LLC, 383 F.3d 341 (5% Cir. 2004). Rapid Cash’s

process servers did not alert members of the putative class that Rapid Cash was suing them. The
result was numerous default judgments. Rapid Cash used On Scene Mediations and the Nevada
‘courts to oblain at least 16,663 default judgments. Now, when the Plaintiffs, vepresenting
hondreds if not thousands of people, some of whom may s/ be unaware that a defanh
judgment has been entered against theny’, desire to efficiently resotve the problem through a

class action, Rapid Cash moves 1o block them with its class-action ban. As the Calitornia

Supreme Courd expressed when finding a class-action ban unconscionable iu Discover Bank v,

“Pully aware that few customers will go to he time aud trouble of
suing in small claims court, Discover has instead sought to create
for itself virtual immuaity from class or representative actions
despite their potential werit, while suffering no similar deteiment
10 its own rights.” ... The clause is ot only harsh and unfair to
Discover customers who might be owed a relatively small sum of
money, but it also serves as a disincentive for Discover to avoid
the type of conduct that might lead to clags action litigation inthe
first place. By imposing this clanse on s customers, Discover has
cssentially granted itself a license o push the boundaries of good
business practices to their fusthest lisnits, fully aware that
relatively few, 1 any, customers will seek legal remedies, and ilat
any remedies obtained will ondy perfain to that single customer
withouot collateral estoppel effect. The potential for mitlions of
customers to be overcharged small amounts without an effective
method of redress cannot be ignored. Thercfore, the provision
yviolates Pundamentn] notions of fatraness, ... This is not ondy
substantively wnconscionable, it violates publie poliey by
granting Biscover a “get vat of jail free” gard while
compromising mporiant consmmern rights,”

Rapid Cash may bold on to default judgments for signiticani periods of time before garnishing a
person. Therefore, defaili judgments obtained many mohths ago, i 0ot a year or more, may be sitting in
Rapid Cash’s office and, outside this fiigation, customers may ot know of the Titigation sgainst them
wntil thewr wages are garnished or basl accoents are frozen,

S 113 P34 1100, 1:07-08 (Cal. 2005) {emphasis added) (in part quoting Szetsla v, Riscover

prohibition in a credit card comsumer contract was both proceduralfy and substantively unconscionable,
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I || Rapid Cash cannot be permitted to use its “get out of jail free” card after havipyg conpromised

2 1| these consumers’ rights. This case must continue as a class action to HHlustrate to the public that
3| if Rapid Cash did in fact knowingly participate in & scheme to deny Nevadans of their rights, the
4 1| public judicial system is the proper forom and the class aclion s the proper action to litigate and
5 || correctibe bebavior.

65 B Defendants Waived Pre-dispute Resolution When they Obtained 16,663 Defaals
Judgments in Court and Not Ones Followed thelr Own Pre-dispute Resolution

7 Procedures,

8 Rapid Cash next audaciously argues that Plainiffs® claims are subject to pre-dispute

9 | resolation procedures including mediation, and the failure (o follow those procedures operates as
10§ abarto class cevtification. What Rapid Cash conveniently ignores, however, is that these pre-
L1 dispute resolution provisions ave miutual and pot the same obligation on Rapid Cash to follow
12} these provedares prior to conmencing any gction against its customers. ee Opposition at 7
13 1 {guoting the mediation agreement, “Youo and We Agree to dediate Claims. You and we apree
14 |F that befove either of us staves » lawsuit . . We will submit any and alt “Claims” that we
15§ have against vou . . . 0 a neutral, individual (and ot class) mediation™) (emphasis added). Of
161 cowrse, Rapid Casls failed {o comply with its own pramise to mediate before obfaining alimost
V71 17,000 default judgments, demonstrating a clear intent that its pre-dispoie procedures never be
18} enforced. By categorically ignoring this pre-dispute resolution process - just like it ignored its
19 1l arbitration clause ~ 17,000 times, Rapid Cash has cleasly watved i3 right 1o now invole this

[ provision as a shicld to this lawsuit or class certification.”

emphasizing the “manifest ope-sidedness™ of the provisice and noting that the wlauss was idended to
24 preeinde customers with small claims from obtaining reliel, thereby providing Discover with “virtual
ramunity™ from class actions); ace also Swate ex, rel. Dunlap v, Berger, 367 S.E2d 265 (W . Va,, 2002}
{finding a class action svaiver uinconselonahle in & contract for jewelry insurance, reasoning that the

26 || waiver effectively gave compaies immumity to conunit iWegal acts when the $8.46 akled to plainills
Jewelry purchase was “precisely the sort of smali-dotlarthigh volume (allegesd) illegality that class action
o7l clains and remedies are effective at addressing™).

Arbitration and Stay all Proceedings at 9«11, incorporated herein by reference.
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C. The Class Detinition Is Adeguate.

The primary argument advanced by Rapid Cash in its Opposition to the Motion to
Certify Class is that at Jeast some Rapid Cash borrowers when sued in Justice Cowrt were served
by On Scene Mediations, thus the class definition is overly broad as including non-injured
borrowers. Although the general rule is that class definitions should be made according to
objective eriteria, there are notable exceptions to that rule, particularly for exceptional cases like
this one. Should this Cowrt have concerns about the scope of the class based on the proposed
definition, this Counrt.can: (1) shift the burden to the defendant to exclude persons from a defined
class; (2) narrow the class definition at a later time after discovery; or (3) namrow the class

3

definition i add the eriteria “and who wore not served with process,” all withoul defeating

clasa certification.
1. The Court Should Shift The Barden To Rapid Cash To Exclude Persons From
The Class As Defined,

First, it bears noting that the class definition is nof over-broad; it's narrow, and it does
not include alt persons agaimst whom Rapid Cash obtained default judgments, or all persons who
were “served” by On Scene Mediations. 1t includes only all persons against whom Rapid Cash
obtained default judements gnd for which Rapid Cash’s oaly evidence of service of process is an
affidavit signed by a representative of On Scene Mediations.

Second. althoogh Rale 23 requires that prospective plainiiff# propose a class defintiion
that is readily asceriainable, i is not necessarily the case that 1t be “readily ascertamnable™ by the
plaisiifs, Rather, this conrt should put the burden of excluding persons from the Clags onthe
defendants becauss they ave in a belier position to know whether o1 not the Affidavits signed by
the representative of On Scene Mediations were gotually served.

This is precisely the approach taken by the court in Smith v, Montgomery County, Md.,

P17 BRI 372 (DMAL987), Plaintiff Vivian Smith fled a 42 U.8.C. § 1983 aclion on behalf
of hersell and 2s o putaiive named clasy represemative of two classes of similarly situated
persons atleging that the Moptgomery County Detention Center’s policy of indiseriminately

“strip-searching” all pevsons detained at the Center violated the Fourth Amendwent. 117 ER.D.
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at 373, Smith had been detained for contempt of court afler failing to appear in court on a child

support sction. Upon her awrival at the detention center; Smith was strip-searched. One of her
prospective classes sought an injunction prohibiting the detention center from permitting or
promulgating a policy requiring a strip search of detainees except upon probable cause to believe
that such detainee had weapons or contraband concealed on his ov her persan: the other sought
damages resulting from the detention center’s policy of indiscriminate strip-searching.” The
court cortificd the second class but redefined it to include all persons who were temporary
detainees (held for fewer than 24 hours) ot the detention center during the time i question, and
who were sivip-searched swithont probadle cayse (o believe that they possessed either weapons
or contraband. Id. at 611,

Predictably, the defendant protested that the class was not ascertainable because the
existence of “probable canse” would be foo indefinite to support class certification. [, But the
Conri disagreed and held thal the class could be readily ascertained by the defendant’s records,
as “probable cause” could be determined by its pwn data detailing the nature of the chavge, the
regson for refease, and the subsequent history of the detainee, See id, The defendant then
obtained addresses through the DMV for persons that fit the description of the lass based on its

own records. See Smith v, Montgomery County, Md., 643 . Supp, 435, 437 (D, Md..1986).

The court ater redelined the class, this e resivicting i to temporary detainees that were
searched without “reasonable suspicion™ of weapons or contraband and held that the court
would:

o Jegve it the parties 1o detsanine which members of the class of
umpomn detainzes were sirip searched in violation of their Foorth
Amendment vights under the tevms of the Cowrt’s fuling. [l
hehieve that thu\ had individoghzed sromids for 4 reasonable be
detaines arrested for aminor offense was concealine w papons or
contraband. the defendants shall submit a writien slatement of those
individualized reasons to the Court, 1 ¢ any of those statements of
veasonable suspicion create issoes of Tact, brief evidentiary heavings may
be necessary,

Id. at 443 {emphasis addad). Thus, the court did not conelude that the putative class was not

Y See Smith v. Montgomery Gounty, Md, 373 F. Supp. 604, 607 (13, Md., 1983) (superseded by

subsaquent appellate history, discussed nira).
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